

FAIRSEA (ID 10046951)

"Fisheries in the AdriatIc Region - a Shared Ecosystem Approach"

D4.7.1 – Calibrated Ecopath with Ecosim model for the Adriatic and Ionian region

| Work Package: | WP4 - Implementation of a shared and integrated platform Activity 4.7 FWM – Food web modelling |
|------------------|---|
| Type of Document | The model developed using all information available from literature and data will be calibrated to time series of available data. |
| Use | Internal |
| Responsible PP | LP-OGS |
| Authors | Simone Libralato, Igor Celic, Natalia Serpetti, Davide Agnetta, Diego Panzeri, Marco Reale, Gianpiero Cossarini, Cosimo Solidoro [LP- OGS], Pasquale Ricci, Giulia Cipriano, Roberto Carlucci, [PP6- CONISMA]; Nedo Vrgoc, Igor Isajlovic [PP1-IOF]; Giuseppe Scarcella, Francesco Masnadi, Silvia Angelini [PP03-CNR], Danijela Miokovic [PP02-MPS]; Svjetlana Krstulović Šifner [PP10-UNIST] Lucio Labanchi [Mably Scarl, external service] Tommaso Russo, Lorenzo D'Andrea L. [Università Tor Vergata; external service] |
| Version and date | Version 01, 31/12/2020 |



Deliverable 4.7.1

Calibrated Ecopath with Ecosim model for the Adriatic and Ionian region

FAIRSEA – Fisheries in the Adriatic Region – a shared Ecosystem Approach

FAIRSEA is financed by Interreg V-A IT-HR CBC Programme (Priority Axis 1 – Blue innovation)

Start date: 01 January 2019

End date: 28 february 2021 (extended to 31 August 2021)



Contents

| List o | of Acronyms used | 5 |
|--------|--|----|
| 1 | INTRODUCTION | 6 |
| 1.1 | Fitting with the specific objectives of FAIRSEA | 7 |
| 1.2 | A cornerstone element of the decision support tool for EAF | 8 |
| 2 | Ecosystem model development | 9 |
| 2.1 | The Ecopath with Ecosim approach | 10 |
| 2.2 | Topographic, oceanographic and administrative features of the region | 11 |
| 2.3 | Fisheries in the Adriatic Ionian region | 14 |
| 3 | Structuring the food web model of the Adriatic-Ionian Region | 15 |
| 3.1 | Domain of the ecosystem models developed | 15 |
| 3.2 | Ecological structure of the models: defining functional groups | 16 |
| 3.3 | Placing fisheries in the ecosystem context: defining fleet structure | 18 |
| 4 | Parametrization of the Ecopath models | 19 |
| 4.1 | Food web initial conditions: Ecopath | 19 |
| 4.2 | Biomasses for plankton groups | 19 |
| 4.3 | Biomasses of fish and large invertebrate species | 21 |
| 4.4 | Biomass of cetaceans | 23 |
| 4.5 | Basic parameters and diet composition | 23 |
| 4.6 | Rapresenting species into multi-stanza groups | 24 |
| 4.7 | Landings | 25 |
| 4.8 | Discards | 27 |
| 5 | Balancing and Adjustments and PREBAL diagnostic | 30 |

3



| 6 | Fitting Ecosim models | 39 |
|-------|--|-----|
| 6.1 | Dynamic Food web modellig: Ecosim | 39 |
| 6.2 | Ecosystem drivers: primary productivities and fishing efforts | 40 |
| 6.2.1 | Primary productivity by phytoplankton | 40 |
| 6.2.2 | Fishing effort | 40 |
| 6.3 | Time series of biomasses and catches for calibration | 68 |
| 7 | Fitting strategy: preliminary testing results | 74 |
| 8 | REFERENCES | 81 |
| 9 | ANNEXES | 103 |
| 9.1 | A1 Input data and data sources of the Adriatic and Ionian Sea models | 103 |
| 9.2 | Landing data treatment | 125 |



List of Acronyms used

| CFP | Common Fisheries Policy |
|---------|--|
| EAF | Ecosystem Approach to Fisheries |
| EAFM | Ecosystem Approach to Fisheries Management |
| EwE | Ecopath with Ecosim |
| FAIRSEA | Fisheries in the AdrIatic Region – a Shared Ecosystem Approach |
| FG | Functional Group |
| TL | Trophic level |
| GSA | FAO Geographical Sub Areas |
| LOA | Length OverAll |
| MEDITS | International Bottom Trawl Survey in the Mediterranean |
| SOLEMON | Sole Monitoring beam trawl survey |
| ОТВ | Bottom Otter trawl |
| DCRF | Data Collection Reference Framework |
| STECF | Scientific, Technical and Economic Committee for Fisheries |
| GFCM | General Fisheries Commission for the Mediterranean and Black Sea |



1 INTRODUCTION

The FAIRSEA project aims at enhancing transnational capacity and cooperation in the field of an ecosystem approach to fisheries in the Adriatic region by exchanging knowledge and sharing good practices among partners. The complementary expertise of the partners is shared, interlinked and integrated, considering also challenges and opportunities identified by stakeholders. The best way to reach sustainability, in fact, is to ensure stakeholders' participation in the process that requires time, trust, transparency and efficient steering.

Ecosystem approach to fisheries: "an extension of conventional fisheries management recognizing more explicitly the interdependence between human well-being and ecosystem health and the need to maintain ecosystems productivity for present and future generations" (Garcia et al., 2003)

The efforts are embedded in a **spatially explicit management platform** that will allow to share expertise, create a common pool of knowledge, boost the operational application of the ecosystem approach to fisheries, enhance the competence in complex system dynamics, and foster a consensus on the state of the environment and fisheries in the region.

The collective development of the integrated platform will enhance partners' expertise on an approach seldom carried out in the Mediterranean Sea. The platform will result in a spatially explicit dynamic tool, integrating cornerstone elements for an ecosystem approach to fisheries that are: water masses circulation and connectivity (module HYDRO), biogeochemical planktonic processes (BGC), distribution of resources (BSTAT), catch and fleet statistics (FSTAT), effort distribution (EFFORT), bioeconomic responses (BIOECO) and food web dynamics (FWM). The attention to the spatial components in the distribution of the resources, the variability of the oceanographic condition, the management policies and the socio-economic impact is a particularly innovative and extremely valuable aspect. The shared integrated platform will be used as a planning tool to implement demonstrative testing of applicable fisheries policies both at local (subareas) and whole Adriatic scales. It will provide a scientific basis to formulate and evaluate shared management advice in the local and international participatory processes, answering to the need of reference points knowledge for the optimisation between ecological and socio-economical sustainability.



The process developed in FAIRSEA will provide an opportunity to describe best practices and define guidelines for a sustainable fishery management. The integrated platform will result in a product that constitutes the basis for a science-based decision support tool and a preliminary step towards the future development of multiannual fishery management plans.

1.1 Fitting with the specific objectives of FAIRSEA

This deliverable concerns the the calibrated food web model developed in the Activity 4.7 "FWM – Food web modelling" of the WP 4.

The development of the food web model required considering a very broad and multidisciplinary set of ecological information, quantitative and qualitative data. Thus the development fo the food web model involved several expertise and disciplines from marine ecology to fisheries technology, from plankton dynamics to fish biology, from physical oceanography to socio-economic aspects of fisheries. This multidisciplinary work for the first time was carried out in an integrated manner by involving scientists from both sides of the Adriatic Sea, integrating competences and expertise. The food web model development, therefore, contributed to the **FAIRSEA specific objective 1: Enhance transboundary integrated competence in the field of ecosystem approach to fisheries**. The interdisciplinary work for developing the food web model and its successive use contribute to enhance the transnational competencies and skills in the field of EAF in the partnership.

Furthermore, the food web model is a cornerstone element of the integrated platform. At its maximum development (spatial dynamics) will include elements of most of the other modules (HYDRO, BGC, BSTAT, FSTAT and EFFORT) by integrating existing information and numerical approaches applied in the Adriatic basin (GSA17, GSA18 ad GSA19). The multitarget and multigear model developed in this Activity 4.7, therefore, contribute also to the **FAIRSEA specific objective 2: Implement a shared "state of the art" integrated platform for the region, b**y integrating dynamics of primary production, of target marine species and their food, dynamics of fisheries and their landings. The food web model is developed into a territorially integrated conceptualization of the EAF beyond existing boundaries as a decision support tool useful in the framework of the Common Fisheries Policy (CFP).

The food web mdoel will permit testing different policies that will be analysed and presented to stakeholders and policy makers for a joint discussion. The food web model represents an



integrated tool enabling quantitative application of an ecosystem approach to fisheries through scenario analysis and the insights obtained from pilot applications that will be shared in participatory approaches and technical meetings. In this way this activity will contribute to the **FAIRSEA specific objective 3: Share benefits and challenges of ecosystem approach to facilitate the achievement of CFP objectives.** The food web model will constitute a tool used to enhance processes for a collaborative and participated definition of policies to be tested. Given the complexity of the matter, the potentialities and the difficulties of food web model application for fisheries management support will be clarified, in order to increase awareness and facilitate comprehension of robustness of results. The food web model is anyway a continuously growing and improving tool: its further development in the region and outside the region is foreseen by the project itself.

1.2 A cornerstone element of the decision support tool for EAF

The integrated decision support tool is developed in FAIRSEA by including a series of aspects and disciplines. The platform represets an application of a transboundary and transdisciplinary approach that integrates physical, biochemical and biological processes. At the basis of the approach is the consideration of trophic and technical direct and indirect interactions through a multispecies and multigear quantitative description. This is pursued since an harmonized management can be achieved by going beyond single species and single gear approaches, and at the same time moving beyond boundaries. Given the importance for management the socioeconomic drivers and the fisheries displacement are included in the platform. Overall FAIRSEA would move toward an operational application of the ecosystem approach to fisheries useful for providing advice for the development next generation management plans.

According to original project objectives, "elements are integrated into a dynamic spatially explicit tool, whenever possible by using a two-ways coupling, in order to represent at best spatial dynamics observed in the past 10-20 years (according to data). The integrated platform will be developed by the technical partners also considering issues, criteria, and management actions that are foreseen in the region as emerging from technical meetings (WP3) and stakeholder engagement (WP5). The platform is then used as a demonstrative and applied tool to highlight potentialities of the EAF at different target groups. A simplified version containing some scenarios will be used as a demo for dissemination (WP2). Some of its results and controlled simulations will be used for an efficient communication with stakeholders of the Adriatic Region and simulation of alternative local management actions will result in pilot applications (WP5)."



The ecosystem food web modelling work done in this activity fullfill these original objectives. The food web model for the Adriatic-Northern Ionian shelf and upper slope is developed using Ecopath with Ecosim software platform. Food web models developed for subareas of the region are calibrated with available data. These local subregional applications will serve as a basis for a definition of an Ecopath with Ecosim model for the entire region embedded in the integrated platform. The models represent main dynamics and interactions among main target species (with a focus on demersal and small pelagics indicated also in regulatios for the region) and their food sources, driven by dynamics of primary production and by the dynamics of the different fishing fleets.

2 Ecosystem model development

The food web model for the Adriatic-Ionian region is developed considering the need for fisheries management. Fishing in the area is carried out through a wide series of gears and targeting several fish species (FAO GFCM, 2020). The food web model, therefore, needs to describe not only the priority species indicated by management bodies, but also considering the importance of species in the landings of the region (see also the deliverable D4.4.1 "Catches and fishing capacity by fleet segment and port" produced in the Activity 4.4). It is also important to consider direct trophic interactions among species (e.g., European hake and anchovy are predator and prey; Riccioni et al., 2018) or non trophic direct interactions (es., the habitat forming species beneficial to other fish species).

According to FAIRSEA aims it was necessary to develop a modelling tool comprehensive of the description of different fishing gears operating in the area allows considering the technical interactions that inhevitably occur but are seldom considered (e.g., fishing mortality induced by one gear on a non target species can affect another fishing gear; Agnetta et al., 2019).

Furthermore the food web model can be forced by environmental and anthropogenic drivers, which are tpically the primary production and the fishing effort, respectively. Thus the "food web" model can be refer more comprehensively and accurately as an "ecosystem food web model", that was developed using the software package Ecopath with Ecosim (<u>www.ecopath.org</u>; Christensen et al., 2008) which is a flexible tool largely used wordwide and that embeds a series of approaches and diagnostics that facilitate its application (Heymans et al., 2014).



2.1 The Ecopath with Ecosim approach

The Ecopath with Ecosim (EwE) modelling approach (Christensen et al. 2008) was used to describe the energy balance of the food web models developed for the Adriatic-Ionian region. Food webs are described by means of compartments representing species, an ontogenetic phase of a species or groups of species with ecological significance and functional to the aims of the model and thereafter called Functional Groups (FGs). The FGs in the food web can represent consumers, autotrophs and non-living compartments, such as forms of organic matter, and links between FGs are formally described by a set of linear equations, one for each FG, representing the balance of energy and matter expressed as:

$$B_i \cdot \left(\frac{P}{B}\right)_i * EE_i - \sum_{j=1}^n B_j * \left(\frac{Q}{B}\right)_j * DC_{ij} - Y_i - E_i - BA_i = 0$$
(Eq. 1)

where B_i is the biomass of group (i), (P/B)_i is the production of (i) per unit of biomass; the consumption i by the other FGs of the food web is then represented through (Q/B)_j the consumption per unit of biomass of all j predators the proportion of (i) in the diet composition of predator (j) in terms of biomass (DC_{ij}); other losses on group i are represented by fishery catches, Y_i, the net migration rate E_i and eventually the biomass accumulation BA_i. The parameter EE_i represents the ecotrophic efficiency, i.e., the proportion of the production of group (i) which is utilized within the system modelled (Christensen and Walters 2004). Energy balance for each group is also ensured by equating its consumption (Q/B_i) with the sum of production (P/B_i), respiration (R/B_i) and unassimilated food (U/Q x Q/Bi). The system of equations is solved according to several ecological constrains by providing EwE with diet composition, the unassimilated food, the catches, the exports for each group and three of the basic parameters B_i, (P/B)_i, (Q/B)_i and EE_i (Christensen et al. 2008). The solution provides a snapshot of the trophic flows within the ecosystem (further details on EwE modelling approach can be found in review literature: Christensen and Walters 2004; Heymans et al. 2014).



2.2 Topographic, oceanographic and administrative features of the region

The FAIRSEA project area of work is the Adriatic Sea and the Nothern Ionian sea. The inclusion of the Northern Ionian was done by considering the enormous relathionships and exchanges of water masses and species among the Otranto Strait. Notably, in fact, the circulation of the Ionian Sea and the Adriatic sea are deeply interconnected and several long term changes in the biological communities might be explained by large circulation changes (Civitarese et al., 2010).

The area of work of the Adriatic Sea and of the Northern Ionia Sea is divided by the GFCM in three subareas, GSA 17, 18 and 19 (see Figure 1) that were defined on the basis of ecological features, considering the admistrative boundaries and data collection.



Figure 1. Study area and its subdivision into the FAO GFCM Geographic Sub-areas 17, 18 and 19.

The proper Adriatic Sea is a semi-enclosed basin that extends over 138000 and is characterised by the largest shelf area of the Mediterranean. The Northern and Central parts of the Adriatic Sea are



very shallow with a large continental shelf of depths lower than 100 m. The Central part of the Adriatic Sea (GDA17) has the deepest are in the Pomo/Jabuka Pit (200-260 m). The Eastern and Western coasts are very different; the former is high, rocky and articulated with many islands, the Western coast is flat and alluvial with raised terraces in some areas. The basin of the Southern Adriatic Sea (GSA 18) is connected to the Northern Ionian Sea through the Otranto Channel, which represents the area in which an annual mass flow of water for 35 million m3 is conveyed. The Southern Adriatic has a relatively narrow continental shelf and a marked, steep slope; it reaches the maximum depth of 1223 m. The hydrography of the Adriatic Sea region is characterized by water inflow from the Eastern Mediterranean (entering from the Otranto channel along the Eastern Adriatic coast) and freshwater runoff from Italian rivers. These features seasonally produce both latitudinal and longitudinal gradients in hydrographic characteristics along the basin (Mannini and Massa, 2000). The North Western Ionian Sea corresponds to the GSA 19 and extends from Cape Otranto to Cape Passero along a coastline of about 1000 km. This GSA cover a very wide area reaching very deep zones (up to 4000 m depth). The North-western Ionian is divided by the Taranto Valley into an eastern sector represented by a broad continental shelf and a south-western one where the shelf is generally very limited and many submarine canyons are located along the coasts (Rossi and Gabbianelli 1978).

The circulation of water masses in the Adriatic sea is typically cyclonic (Artegiani et al. 1997). The Dense Waters of the Northern Adriatic (NADW), the Deep Waters of the Adriatic (ADW) and the intermediate Levantine Waters (LIW) flow into the basin. The NADW Dense Waters (cold waters) flow from north to south along the western continental shelf, the Deep Waters originate in the pit of the lower Adriatic Sea, while the Levantine Intermediate Waters, warmer and saltier, enter from the northern Ionian Sea through the Canale d'Otranto and flow in a south-north direction along the eastern coasts of the Adriatic (Manca et al. 2001). These masses of water make the bottoms of the eastern part of the southern basin characterized by higher alino and thermal regimes than in the western part (Artegiani et al. 1997). These salt concentrations determine an oligotrophic condition and the chlorophyll-a concentration is estimated to be 0.5-1.5 μ g / 1 (Rizzi et al. 1994). Concerning the geomorphology and bathymetry of the area, the maximum depth of the Lower Adriatic is 1233 m in the so-called "Fossa di Bari". This depression has rather asymmetrical contours with the steeper eastern escarpment. The western area shows substantial differences in the two northern and southern portions; the first, where the Gulf of Manfredonia is located, has a wide continental shelf (distance between the coast line and 200 m depth of 45 nautical miles) and a slightly steep escarpment; the second instead has islands of close depth, so much so that the 200 m can be



reached about 8 miles from Capo Otranto. From a hydrographic point of view, the Ionian Sea is characterized by a complex system of water circulation in superficial and deep layers (Civitarese et al. 2010 and references therein), showing a general cyclonic circulation markedly influenced by the cold dense deep-water masses of the Adriatic Sea in flowing through the Otranto Channel. Hydrographic observations and current measurements performed in the 1990s revealed strong modifications in the dynamics of the entire water column termed the Eastern Mediterranean Transient (EMT) which at present seems to have concluded (Klein et al. 1999).

The presence and distribution of marine flora and fauna, as well as the main ecological characteristics of the basin are linked to environmental and morphological differences in the whole Adriatic-Ionian basins (Marano et al., 1998). In the Adriatic Sea all types of bottom sediments are found, muddy bottoms are mostly below a depth of 100 m, while in the Central and Northern Adriatic the shallower sea bed is characterized by relict sand. The area includes a complex set of habitats going from the large shallow trawleable area in the North and Central Adriatic Sea exploited since centuries (Jukic-Peladic et al., 2001) to deeper areas of the Southern Adriatic Sea and Northern Ionian hosting important demersal fishery resources (Maiorano et al. 2010, Carlucci et al. 2016, Russo et al. 2017). The area also include several hot spots of biodiversity such as rocky outcropts in the Northern Adriatic (Guidetti et al., 2005), Cold Water Coral habitats at the interface between Adriatic and Ionian Seas (D'Onghia et al., 2011, 2012b, 2016) and submarine canyons in the Ionian Sea (Capezzuto et al. 2010, Vassallo et al. 2016).

From an administrative point of view, on the shores of the North and Central Adriatic Sea (GSA 17) there are the countries: Croatia, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Italy and Slovenia. For the southern Adriatic Sea (GSA 18) the countries involved are Italy, Albania and Montenegro. The Pomo/Jabuka pit area comprises three depressions (> 200 m depth) in the middle of the Adriatic Sea, covering an area of approximately 2000 km2 (Russo et al., 2018).

The modelling development considered only areas up to depths of 800m (thus excluding deeper areas), because this is the limit of i) scientific trawl survey used for monitoring demersal species; ii) the limit of most of the exploitations going on in the area (fishing at depths > 1000 m is forbidden in the Mediterranean sea and only few vessels can fish at depths >500m).



2.3 Fisheries in the Adriatic Ionian region

In the Northern and Central Adriatic Sea, the dominant fish species in terms of biomass are the red mullet (Mullus barbatus), poor cod (Trisopterus minutus), various species of triglids, sole (Solea solea), various species of flatfishes, gobies and pandoras (Pagellus spp.) On the continental shelf from 10-50 m depth (UNEP, 2014). In addition, the anglerfish (Lophius spp.), European hake (Merluccius merluccius), greater forkbeard (Phycis blennoides) are also abundant, as well as blue whiting (Micromesistius poutassou) at 100 to 200 m deep. The continental shelf of the Adriatic Sea is also rich in invertebrate fauna, where some of the most abundant species are cuttlefish (Sepia officinalis and S. elegans), octopuses (Eledone moschata, E. cirrhosa and Octopus vulgaris), squids (Loligo vulgaris and Alloteuthis media), mantis shrimps (Squilla mantis), rose shrimp (Parapenaeus longirostris), Norway lobster (Nephrops norvegicus) and scallops (Pecten jacobaeus and Chlamys opercularis). In addition, the presence of the Well-Sorted Fine Sand biocenosis provided suitable conditions for the occurrence of the striped venus clam (*Chamelea gallina*), which is exploited by dredges. The main small pelagic species are sardine (Sardina pilchardus), anchovy (Engraulis encrasicolus), horse mackerel (Trachurus spp.) and mackerel (Scomber spp.). In the northern 5 area, sprat (Sprattus sprattus) is found, although it was more abundant during the 1960s and 1970s than nowadays.

In the GSA 18, the demersal species landed on both the western and eastern sides of the basin with a respective distribution of 97% and 3% (Massa & Mannini 2000). Concerning the trawling, hake (*Merluccius merluccius*) represents 20%, while the species Norway lobster (*Nephrops norvegicus*), pink shrimp (*Parapenaeus longirostris*), mullet (*Mullus barbatus*), suri (*Trachurus spp.*) and dormouse (*Eledone spp.*) contribute 5-10% each (Ungaro et al. 2002). The area potentially exploited by the trawlers is equal to 15,000-17,000 km2 (70% on the western side, 30% on the eastern side).

In the Northern Ionian Sea, fishing exploitation occurs from coastal waters up to 800 m depth. The trawl fleet is characterized by vessels with a length-over-all (LOA) of 12–18 m and it mainly exploits the shelf break and slope grounds (Maiorano et al., 2010; Russo et al., 2017; Carlucci et al., 2018). Trawlers represent about 21% in number, 64% in gross tonnage and 56% in engine power with respect to the whole Northern Ionian Sea fleet (Maiorano et al. 2010). Most of the boats are registered as polyvalent fishing vessels because they often change type of gear, according to the season and sea/weather conditions, as well as the variable availability of resources and market demand. Considering the effect of trawling, and to a lesser extent of other fishing gears, the General



Fishery Commission for the Mediterranean (GFCM FAO) created a new Fishery Restricted Area (FRA) on the Santa Maria di Leuca cold-water corals (SML CWC) recommending the prohibition of towed gears (D'Onghia et al., 2016; Capezzuto et al. 2018). The most important demersal resources in the north-western Ionian Sea are represented by the red mullet (*M. barbatus*) on the continental shelf, hake (*M. merluccius*), rose shrimp (*P. longirostris*) and Norway lobster (*N. norvegicus*) over a wide bathymetric range and the deep-water red shrimps (*Ariste antennatus* and *A. foliacea*) on the slope.

3 Structuring the food web model of the Adriatic-Ionian Region

The ecosystem food web model(s) are developed following criteria of ecological accuracy and fisheries relevance: two concepts that are fundamental for an appropriate EAF. The models were developed for multiple areas as described in the project proposal.

I spite of the ecological differences within the domain of the FAIRSEA project, it is important to highlight that **the same structure was used to develop the models**, **by considering the same functional groups and fisheries fleets**. In fact, despite local differences both in ecological (e.g. relevance of river in the north Adriatic), biological (e.g., absence of relevant stocks of clams in the Northern Ionian) and fishing terms (e.g., lack of deep shrimp fisheries in northern Adriatic Sea) a common structure was used for all the models developed. This is an essential requirement for facilitating comparison, integration and merging of the models.

3.1 Domain of the ecosystem models developed

As indicated previously, the models represent areas up to 800 m depths, that implies full representation of the GSA17, representation of most of the GSA18 surface, but consideration of only a narrow area of the GSA19, which is dominated by large deeper areas. Thus the modelled areas in GSA 17 extends for a total of 92,261 km², followed by the GSA 18 with 29,008 km² and lastly, the GSA 19 with 16,347 km². The Ionian region has been modelled from Otranto to Capo Passero (Sicily). Each modelled area is ranged between 10 and 800 meters of depth because this space represents the area maily exploited by the fisheries in all GSAs.

The Adriatic region (GSA17 and 18) has been modelled as a unique area (total modelled surface of 120000 km2) dominated by the shelf grounds in the northern and central zones. Differently, the southern area is characterized by the occurrence of both shelf and slope grounds up to 1000 m in the Otranto channel.



3.2 Ecological structure of the models: defining functional groups

In order to build the structure of the food web for Adriatic EwE models, a total of 1067 taxa, with 405 taxa only in the benthic domain, were listed after checking their presence in biomass or catches related databases. Biomass related data come from the international research project "MEDiterranean International Trawl Survey' (MEDITS) (Anonymus, 2017), SOLEMON for the benthic assemblage in the Central North Adriatic Sea, the OBIS Sea Map database for the cetaceans and turtles, along a time series 1995-2019. Moreover, after collection of diet data (see dedicated section) further taxa were added in the list, when missing from the biomass databases.

The species/taxon'list was aggregated in a total of 73 functional groups (FGs), which describe the basic biological compartments of the food webs in the 3 GSAs (Tab. FGs). In particular, the clustering of species in the FGs followed several criteria:

- the trophic similarity among the species
- the life-history traits of the species
- the ecological importance in the food web (e.g. large top predators)
- the commercial interest for the fishery in the modelled areas

The choice of groups were based on the biological background and modeling experience of researchers from a side and the maximum capability of the model on the other side. Moreover great attention was paid on the distribution of the species along the investigated bathymetric gradient. Thus, the groups' nomenclature stresses the belonging to the shelf (h) or slope (s) grounds. Some species of commercial interest were detailed in the food web model by means of the splitting of the juvenile (0) and adult (1) and (2) components represented using the Ecopath multi-stanza routine (Christensen and Walters, 2004). These divisions of the components allow to represent the life-cycle of these valuable species, which will be useful in the spatial management scenarios developed by Ecospace module. In addition, for the hake and the common sole were adopted a total of 3 multi-stanza, where the third represents the individuals which become liable to contact (recruited) with the fishing gear.



| Table 1. Functional groups (FGs) represented in the model their short name used in the graphs and i | n |
|---|---|
| the following. | |

| Functional Group name | Short name | Functional Group name | Short name |
|------------------------------------|------------|---------------------------------|------------|
| Seabirds | G01_SBR | Hake (age 1) | G38_HKE1 |
| Marine turtles | G02_TTL | Hake (age 2+) | G39_HKE2 |
| Mid-large odontocets | G03_ODO | Other cephalopods (Slope) | G40_CPXs |
| Common Bottlenose Dolphin | G04_DBO | Other cephalopods (Shelf) | G41_CPXh |
| Striped Dolphin | G05_DST | Squids | G42_SQD |
| Fin whale | G06_FIW | Common cuttlefish | G43_CTC |
| Rays skates (Slope) | G07_BATs | Musky-Horned octopus | G44_OCM |
| Rays skates (Shelf) | G08_BATh | Mantis shrimp (age 0) | G45_MTS0 |
| Sharks (Slope) | G09_SELs | Mantis shrimp (age 1+) | G46_MTS1 |
| Sharks (Shelf) | G10_SELh | Norway lobster (age 0) | G47_NEP0 |
| Blackmouth catshark | G11_SHO | Norway lobster (age 1+) | G48_NEP1 |
| Large pelagics fish | G12_PLS | Blue and Red Shrimp | G49_ARA |
| Medium pelagics fish | G13_PMS | Red Giant Shrimp | G50_ARS |
| Demersal piscivorous fish (Slope) | G14_DPSs | Deep-water Rose Shrimp (age 0) | G51_DPS0 |
| Demersal piscivorous fish (Shelf) | G15_DPSh | Deep-water Rose Shrimp (age 1+) | G52_DPS1 |
| Epipelagic fish | G16_EPI | Caramote prawn | G53_TGS |
| Mesopelagic crustacean feeding | G17_MCF | Decapods_Reptantia (Slope) | G54_REPs |
| Zooplancton jellyfish feeding fish | G18_ZJF | Decapods_Reptantia (Shelf) | G55_REPh |
| Demersal fish (Slope) | G19_DEMs | Decapods_Natantia (Slope) | G56_NATs |
| Demersal fish (Shelf) | G20_DEMh | Decapods_Natantia (Shelf) | G57_NATh |
| Other flatfishes | G21_FLX | Peracarida (suprabenthos) | G58_PER |
| Turbot and brill | G22_FTB | Clams | G59_CLM |
| Gurnads | G23_GUR | Scallops | G60_SCL |
| Other gadids | G24_GDX | Other Benthic invertebrates | G61_BIX |
| Other small pelagics | G25_SPX | Seagrasses | G62_SGR |
| Mackarels | G26_MCK | Seaweeds | G63_SWD |
| Anglers | G27_LOP | Jellyfish | G64_JLY |
| Sardine (age 0) | G28_PIL0 | Macrozooplankton & Euphasiacea | G65_ZMA |
| Sardine (age 1+) | G29_PIL1 | Mesozooplankton | G66_ZME |
| Anchovy (age 0) | G30_ANE0 | Microzooplankton | G67_ZMI |
| Anchovy (age 1+) | G31_ANE1 | Bacterioplankton | G68_BPL |
| Solea (age 0) | G32_SOL0 | Phytoplankton - diatoms | G69_PDM |
| Solea (age 1) | G33_SOL1 | Phytoplankton - dinoflagellates | G70_PDF |
| Solea (age 2+) | G34_SOL2 | Discards, carrion | G71_DSC |
| Red mullet (age 0) | G35_MUT0 | Suspended detritus | G72_POM |
| Red mullet (age 1+) | G36_MUT1 | Bottom detritus | G73_BTD |
| Hake (age 0) | G37 HKE0 | | |



3.3 Placing fisheries in the ecosystem context: defining fleet structure

The main relevant fishing gears operating in the Adriatic and Northern Ionian Sea were described in the model using "fleets" desctription that combine gear used and dimension of the segment based on the lenght out all (LOA) of the vessels. The fishing fleets definition was based on knowledge of importance in the area, taking care of features ad main target species that might require separation among fleets. Also importance in terms of landings and management measures were considered for definig the fleets that were represented in the model as in Table 2.

Table 2. Fleets used to describe the fisheries in the food web model. The fleets results from a combination of gear and size category (based on the LOA) also considering importance for the area and available information on landings, capacity ad effort.

| Fishing gear | Gear | Vessel length segment (LOA) | |
|----------------------------------|------|-----------------------------------|--|
| | code | | |
| Boat dredges | DRB | all vessels (VL-ONE) | |
| Set nets | GNX | all vessels (VL-ONE) | |
| Longlines | LLX | all vessels (VL-ONE) | |
| Small scale fishery, pots, beach | MIX | all vessels (VL-ONE) | |
| seine and other gears | | | |
| Bottom otter trawlers | OTB | smaller than 18 meters (VL—18) | |
| | | between 18 and 24 meters (VL1824) | |
| | | larger than 24 meters (VL24++) | |
| Mid-water pair pelagic trawlers | PTM | smaller than 18 meters (VL—18) | |
| | | between 18 and 24 meters (VL1824) | |
| | | larger than 24 meters (VL24++) | |
| Purse seines | PS | smaller than 18 meters (VL—18) | |
| | | larger than 18 meters (VL18++) | |
| Rapido trawlers | TBB | smaller than 18 meters (VL—18) | |
| | | larger than 18 meters (VL18++) | |

The fleets were defined in the food web models also considering available data in terms of landing, capacity and effort measures. Therefore, the definition of fleets as in table 2 represent a compromise between perceived ecological and fisheries importance and availability of data.



Several official datasets and other information were used for the scope that include: socioeconomic data from Economic Analysis from STECF and Data Collection Reference Framework (DCRF) from FAO GFCM as provided by the Italian and Croatian Ministries of agriculture; Socioeconomic information obtained from Mably Scarl (external service of the LP-OGS); furthermore some additional information were retrieved from websites of officials statistics and reports: the Report on status of resources and productive structures in the Italian seas; Croatian Bureau of Statistics consulted online; BiosWeb - Biological database of the Fisheries Research Institute of Slovenia, Albanian Ministry of Agriculuture and Rural Development reports. Finally the definition of fleets considered landings and catches as reported in the deliverable D4.4.1 "Catches and fishing capacity by fleet segment and port" and effort information as described in D4.5.1 "Fishing effort map distribution".

4 Parametrization of the Ecopath models

4.1 Food web initial conditions: Ecopath

The Ecopath models were implemented considering data for a reference period of 3 years (2004–2006), that was chosen to facilitate future successive steps of time-dynamic model analysis by means of the Ecosim routine (Christensen et al., 2008). The start year was chosen considering the extension and the best overlap of time series of available biomass and catch data. Biomass time series started in 1995, while the first complete and reliable data series of fishing catches was available since 2004.

All data (biomass, parameters, landings and discards, diets) were gathered by species or at the lowest taxomical level possivle and successively data were aggregated according to respective functional groups assignment (see Libralato et al., 2010).

4.2 Biomasses for plankton groups

The outputs of the biogeochemical model (BGC) developed in the Activities 4.1 and 4.2 were used to describe the phytoplankton (diatoms, dinoflagellates), zooplankton (microzooplankton and mesozooplankton), bacterioplankton and detritus groups (suspended detritus and bottom detritus). There were 16 variables covering a spatial distribution of the FAIRSEA study area (Table x). Each variable variable has five depth layers (0-50, 50-100, 100-200, 200-500 and 500-800).



| Code | Unit | Variable Name |
|------|-------------------------------------|--|
| 02 | mmol O ₂ m ⁻³ | Dissolved oxygen |
| Т | °C | Temperature |
| S | PSU | Salinity |
| B1 | mg C m ⁻³ | Pelagic Bacteria |
| P1 | mg C m ⁻³ | Diatoms |
| P2 | mg C m ⁻³ | Nano Flagellates |
| Р3 | mg C m ⁻³ | Picophytoplankton |
| P4 | mg C m ⁻³ | Large phytoplankton |
| Z3 | mg C m ⁻³ | Carnivorous Mesozooplankton |
| Z4 | mg C m ⁻³ | Omnivorous Mesozooplankton |
| Z5 | mg C m ⁻³ | Microzooplankton |
| Z6 | mg C m ⁻³ | Heterotrophic Flagellates |
| R1 | mg C m ⁻³ | Labile Dissolved Organic Matter |
| R2 | mg C m ⁻³ | Semi-labile Dissolved Organic Carbon |
| R6 | mg C m ⁻³ | Semi-refractory Dissolved Organic Carbon |
| R7 | mg C m ⁻³ | Particulate Organic Detritus |

Table 3. List of the available variables from the biogeochemical model.

The synthesis of the data was conducted maintaining the monthly temporal resolution, while the data were spatially divided into the GFCM Geographical sub-areas (GSA): north and central Adriatic (GSA 17), southern Adriatic (GSA 18) and northern Ionian sea (GSA 19). We selected and used only data for bacteria (B1), phytoplancton (P1, P2, P3, P4), zooplankton (Z3, Z4, Z5, Z6) and organic and detrital mater (R1, R2, R6, R7).

The same procedure was for each value. Biomass of each volume unit was calculated by multiplying the density (mg C/m³) by the height of the depth level (m) and its surface area (m²). Average density per surface unit was obtained by dividing the sum of biomasses at different depth strata by the surface area of the cells. The average biomass density was calculated by averaging the



density of all spatial cells. Wet weigth biomass was obtained converting the acctual biomass expressed in carbon (mg C/ m^3) by multiplying by a conversion factor of 12.5.

4.3 Biomasses of fish and large invertebrate species

Biomasses for several fish and invertebrates species were estimated using data from trawl surveys conducted in the Adriatic Sea and North Western Ionian Sea, i.e., in the geographical sub-areas (GSAs) 17, 18 and 19 as defined by the FAO-GFCM (General Fisheries Commission for the Mediterranean Sea). Moreover, for species with available stock assessment data, such as sardine (Sardina pilchardus), anchovy (Engraulis encrasicolus), common sole (Solea solea), red mullet (Mullus barbatus), hake (Merluccius merluccius), cuttlefish (Sepia officinalis) mantis shrimp (Squilla mantis), norway lobster (Nephrops norvegicus), deep rose shrimp (Parapenaues longirostris) and karamonte prawn (Melicertus kerathurus), biomass estimates from assessment model were used instead of survey data.

Biomass of demersal and benthic species

Biomass estimates of demersal and benthic species are based on data available from the scientific surveys MEDITS and SOLEMON.

MEDITS survey

The Mediterranean International Trawl Survey (MEDITS; Spedicato et al., 2019a) is a bottom trawl survey conducted up to 800 m depth from 1994 to 2018. The dataset consists on average 326 sampling sites (hauls) per year in the Adriatic and Northern Ionian Sea covering the shelf and upper slope of the three GSAs. Indices of demersal species biomass (kg/km2), retrieved from the MEDITS dataset, were calculated using the equation proposed by Souplet (1996)

$$I = \sum_{i=1}^{n} W_i \, \underline{x}_i$$

where I is the index, Wi is the weight of the stratum i, and xi is given by:

$$\underline{x} = \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{ni} x_{i,j}}{\sum_{i=1}^{ni} A_{i,j}}$$

21



where $x_{i,j}$ is the weight of the individuals in the haul j of the stratum i and Ai, j is the area trawled in the haul j of the stratum i; ni is the number of hauls in the stratum i. The stratum considered for the biomass standardization was 10-800 m.

The biomass indices derived from the MEDITS trawl surveys do not account for the catchability of the fishing gear, and thus, a catchability factor by species (q_i) was used to convert indices into biomass at sea. These catchability indices were obtained from the literature whenever possible (Fiorentino et al., 2013; Fraser, Greenstreet, & Piet, 2007). In some instances, catchability by species for demersal species was evaluated by comparison of MEDITS estimates with other data (e.g., benthic samples, other fishing gears, stock assessments) in order to determine more accurate absolute densities at sea: although this implies great uncertainty, it is a necessary step which is not always explicit in EwE modeling (see for example Arreguin-Sanchez, 1996).

SOLEMON survey

The Sole Monitoring (SOLEMON; Scarcella G., 2011, Grati et al., 2013) trawl survey is carried out with a modified beam (rapido). This trawl survey is conducted in the north and central Adriatic Sea (mainly in GSA17, with some hauls in GSA18). In 2007 a larger survey was conducted including the whole southern Adriatic Sea (GSA 18) in Montenegro, Albania and along the coast of Apulia in Italy. On average 70 sampling (hauls) per year were retrieved from 2005 to 2018; hauls were done up to a depth of 100 m. The common sole (*Solea solea*) is the target specie, but also all other benthic species were considered, such as shellfish and cephalopod and other flatfish. For this survey no catchability correction was applied, assuming that the fishing gear is specific for benthic species.

In this analysis we assumed that each of the two surveys is more specific for a certain group of species, while the other is less relevant. Therefore we summed the obtained species densities from the two surveys, assuming that one of them is more dominant than the other, and by doing this we included as much detail is available from the surveys.

Stock assessments

For the multi-stanza groups, biomasses were obtained by Stock Assessment reports (SA) of STECF and/or GFCM when available. SA reports provide information on the several biological parameters used in Ecopath multistanza such as total mortality by age, natural mortality, average growth rate, ratio between weight at first maturity and weight at infinity (see also Chrisetnsen et al., 2008 for inputs required for multistanza groups).



The representation of species into multi-stanzas (Ahrens et al., 2013) is very useful to parameterising species juvenile and adult components, either older than one year (age-1+), or two years (age-2+), as required by the multi-stanza setting in Ecopath. For the GSA 19, two SA were available for the red mullet and the deep water rose shrimp. Differently in GSAs 17-18, SA reports were collected for the European hake, red mullet, deep-water rose shrimp, sole, mantis shrimp, cuttlefish, caramote prawn, Norway lobster, sardine and anchovy. Biomass estimates from stock assessments were used for parameterising the multi-stanza species and, in Ecosim, stock assessment time-series were used as "absolute biomass" for the fitting procedures.

4.4 Biomass of cetaceans

Biomass data of cetaceans and marine turtles were derived from abundance data (N·km⁻²) collected from OBIS Sea Map database (Halpin et al., 2009) for the Adriatic and Ionian Sea and values of mean individual weight (Piroddi et al., 2010; Carlucci et al., 2020). Moreover for the Northern ionian region, additional density data was acquired through monitoring surveys carried out by Jonian Dolphin Conservation and Department of Biology (Univ. Bari) in the Gulf of Taranto since 2009.

4.5 Basic parameters and diet composition

The Production and Consumption rates were collected for a total of 304 taxa drawing from data used in other models developed in our GSAs or calculated by empirical equations. The P/B rate under most conditions corresponds to the total mortality rate (Z, see Allen, 1971), commonly estimated in fishery stock assessments as the sum of fishing and natural mortality. The available stock assessment reports provided by STECF or GFCM were used for the species multi-stanza parameterization. Differently, Q/B rates were estimated by empirical equations available on Fishbase based on the life-history traits and feeding behaviour of the consumer. Diet information (expressed in weight proportions) were collected for a total of 240 taxa acquiring the data form Fishbase (Froese and Pauly, 2019) and literature available.

Basic parameters and diet proportions of functional groups were weighted by species biomass contribution within each group (see also Libralato et al, 2010). Only the species that contribute to a 90% cumulative proportion were designated as major contributors to the group's characteristics. P/B and Q/B parameter and diet values were inferred from species with similar ecology when species-specific data were not found. A two steps procedure was carried out in order to calculate the input parameters. Firstly, basic parameters and diet compositions of the major species contributors within a group were weighted by species biomass contribution. Secondly, the residual



contribution of minor species to the group's biomass (less than 10%) was averaged and weighted cumulatively. This procedure allowed to calculate different input parameters and diet matrix characterising each group by their composition per Geographic sub-area (GSA).

4.6 Rapresenting species into multi-stanza groups

In Ecopath, multi-stanza allows representing species splitted into age classes in a way similar to what is conducted in stok assessment models (Ahres et al., 2013). This was considered for all the most important priority species for which a stock assessment was available, i.e., for anchovy, sardine, hake, red mullet, mantis shrimp, norway lobster, common sole and depp water shrimp. The setting required consumption over biomass ratio (Q/B) of adults and total fishing mortalities (Z) for all stages. Biomasses at age+ were then used with adult Q/B ratio and total fishing mortalities to estimate biomasses and Q/B of the juvenile stages (Table 3).

| Table 4. | Multistanza | aroups and | their | parameters |
|-------------|-------------|------------|-------|------------|
| 1 4 0 10 11 | manuscanza | groups and | unun | parameters |

| | | Age, | | Tot. | |
|-------------|----------|----------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| | Group | start | Biomass | mort. | Consumption / |
| | name | (months) | (t/km²) | (/year) | biomass (/year) |
| GSA 17 & 18 | G28_PIL0 | 0 | 0.1819 | 1.193 | 25.970 |
| | G29_PIL1 | 12 | 1.7350 | 1.302 | 10.658 |
| | G30_ANE0 | 0 | 0.4295 | 2.400 | 30.964 |
| | G31_ANE1 | 12 | 1.8700 | 1.363 | 13.500 |
| | G32_SOL0 | 0 | 0.0041 | 1.773 | 24.296 |
| | G33_SOL1 | 12 | 0.0104 | 1.820 | 12.615 |
| | G34_SOL2 | 24 | 0.0145 | 1.078 | 7.715 |
| | G35_MUT0 | 0 | 0.0191 | 1.410 | 16.989 |
| | G36_MUT1 | 12 | 0.1169 | 1.810 | 7.050 |
| | G37_HKE0 | 0 | 0.0063 | 1.459 | 16.764 |
| | G38_HKE1 | 12 | 0.0289 | 1.298 | 8.000 |
| | G39_HKE2 | 24 | 0.0809 | 1.167 | 4.149 |
| | G45_MTS0 | 0 | 0.0070 | 1.206 | 13.478 |
| | G46_MTS1 | 12 | 0.0449 | 1.459 | 6.168 |
| | G47_NEP0 | 0 | 0.0025 | 1.513 | 21.613 |
| | G48_NEP1 | 12 | 0.0466 | 0.866 | 7.565 |
| | G51_DPS0 | 0 | 0.0268 | 3.470 | 23.439 |
| | G52_DPS1 | 12 | 0.0302 | 2.484 | 10.975 |
| GSA 19 | G28_PIL0 | 0 | 0.0451 | 1.193 | 25.970 |
| | G29_PIL1 | 12 | 0.4300 | 1.302 | 10.658 |
| | G30_ANE0 | 0 | 0.2443 | 2.400 | 30.964 |
| | G31_ANE1 | 12 | 1.0636 | 1.363 | 13.500 |
| | G32_SOL0 | 0 | 0.0017 | 1.773 | 26.015 |
| | G33_SOL1 | 12 | 0.0044 | 1.820 | 13.507 |
| | G34_SOL2 | 24 | 0.0061 | 1.078 | 8.261 |
| | G35_MUT0 | 0 | 0.0065 | 1.410 | 16.989 |
| | G36_MUT1 | 12 | 0.0397 | 1.810 | 7.050 |
| | G37_HKE0 | 0 | 0.0067 | 2.000 | 17.345 |
| | G38_HKE1 | 12 | 0.0253 | 1.400 | 8.000 |
| | G39_HKE2 | 24 | 0.0658 | 1.200 | 4.123 |
| | G45_MTS0 | 0 | 0.0016 | 1.206 | 13.478 |
| | G46_MTS1 | 12 | 0.0100 | 1.459 | 6.168 |
| | G47_NEP0 | 0 | 0.0011 | 1.315 | 21.484 |
| | G48_NEP1 | 12 | 0.0237 | 0.850 | 7.565 |
| | G51_DPS0 | 0 | 0.0611 | 3.470 | 23.439 |
| | G52_DPS1 | 12 | 0.0690 | 2.484 | 10.975 |

24



4.7 Landings

Landing data were obtained from different data sources, both from data calls, official reports and data present on national or institutional repositories (Table).

| Source | Descrition |
|--------|---|
| code | |
| FSJ | FAO FishStatJ - Software for Fishery and Aquaculture Statistical Time Series |
| | http://www.fao.org/fishery/statistics/software/fishstatj/en |
| FAO | FAO GFCM data collection |
| EUR | EU Eurostat's database for Landings of fishery products (fish_Id) |
| | https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/fisheries/data/database |
| FDI | Fishery Dependent Information data |
| DZS | Croatian Bureau of Statistic (Državni zavod za statistiku) |
| | https://www.dzs.hr/ |
| IZR | Institute of Oceanography and Fisheries database (IOF) (Institut za |
| | oceanografiju i ribarstvo, baza podataka i pokazatelja stanja morskog |
| | okoliša, marikulture i ribarstva) |
| | http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex |
| MBL1 | Mably 1st data call |
| MBL2 | Mably 2nd data call |
| ANN | Report on status of resources and productive structure in the Italian seas |
| | (Maiorano P., Sabatella R.F., Marzocchi B.M. (eds) (2019) – Annuario sullo |
| | stato delle risorse e sulle strutture produttive dei mari italiani. 432 pp.) |
| BIW | BiosWeb - Biological database of the Fisheries Research Institute of Slovenia |
| | http://www.biosweb.org/?task=stat#tabs-year |
| FSR | Reconstructed data of FishStatJ (FSJ) landings for Croatia |
| MBLR | Reviewed data of 2nd MABLY data call. |
| MAR | Albanian Ministry of Agriculuture and Rural Development |
| | http://www.instat.gov.al/en/themes/agriculture-and- |
| | fishery/fishery/#tab1 |

Table 5 . List of available data sources for landing data.

Different sources had different spatial and temporal resolutions, therefore the first step was to compare the total landings of the group, divided by area, state and source. Each of the data were



converted into a common format, where country, area, fishing gear and length segments were unified. All fishing gears assigned as not known (NK) are assigned as mixed fishing gears (MIX).

Landing data from FAO FishStatJ for Croatia need integrations and corrections, since these data displayed a different species resolution in time. The beginning of the landing time series in 2004 has a lower number of taxa as some species were probably aggregated under the same taxa. More detailed information on landing composition were available in the same period when Croatia became a member of the European Union. Therefore we adopted a backward reconstruction procedure, where more recent landing composition was used to split older aggregated landing data into different taxa. This new dataset was called Reconstructed data of FishStatJ (FSJ) landings for Croatia (FSR).

Further integrations and corrections were carried to all data. Correction procedure involved the reconstruction of landings of some species with a discontinued time series. For this purpose another reference time series is identified as a guiding series, whose trend will be translated to the reconstructing series. An overlapping point in time is identified between the two series, and the ratio between the landings is multiplied to the guiding time series to obtain the reconstructed one.

The validation and correction of landings data are fully reported in the deliverable D4.4.1 "Catches and fishing capacity by fleet segment and port". The processes including considering outliers ad extremes in the time series. The analysis of landing data also showed that different sources for a specific country and group can change considerably (Appendix A2). Since landing data might have problems due to underreporting of landings or different reporting methods, we decided to select the ecological worst case scenario and use the maximum landing values between different sources per country, per area and per group. Still, we assumed that there is some kind of fishing activity when there is even some reported value between 2004 and 2018. Often such values are very low, indicating occasional landings, and might happen that landings are unreported or the reporting wasn't detailed in certain timeframes. However, correct simulations in Ecosim requires that a functional group should be present in its initial conditions in Ecopath. For this purpose, we completed the time series of groups where some landings are reported, if necessary assigning missing initial or ending values and further interpolating the gaps.

Disaggregation of landings by fishing gear

The selected yearly total landings of groups per country and area (CAYG format, i.e. country, area, year, group) are disaggregated by adding details of fishing gear (F) and length segment (L). Details



of proportions by fishing gear and length segment (CAFLYG format) are taken from additional datasets reported above. The disaggregation process followed a two step procedure since the reference disaggregated time series (CAFLYG format) do not have the same timeframe as the group's total landings per area, country and gear (CAYG format, 2004-2008). In the first step there are available data with corresponding years between yearly total landings (CAYG format) and disaggregated landing data in the CAFLYG format. In this case the same yearly proportions found in the disaggregated data are used to split the yearly total landing in the CAYG format. The second step deals when there is no correspondence between yearly total landings (CAYG format) and disaggregated landing data in the CAFLYG format, therefore no proportions are available for those years. In this case we used the whole dataset's average proportions of landings split by fishing gear and length segment and used the remaining years of yearly total landings (CAYG format) series. This completes the preparation of landings time series disaggregated by country, area, fishing gear, length segment year and group.

4.8 Discards

Discards were estimated using the available most recent declared discards in catch data (FDI, DCRF datasets), estimations from scientific surveys (MEDITS and SOLEMON) and discard estimates from field studies of commercial fishing activities in north Adriatic (SOSPECO project, Raicevich 2008) and commercial dredge of marine clams in Marche region, Italy (Morello et al., 2005). Reference landing data of each fleet segment (CAFLYG format) are provided from previous estimates, detailed by country, area, fishing gear, year and group (CAFYGx format). Time series of landing, discard and survey data between 2004 and 2018 are used for estimating discards.

Estimated discards (D_i) of each group coinsists of discard practices because of legal constrains (i.e., TL < MRCS) or because of non commercial value. In cases where the literature or data provided an estimate of discard ratio by gear and species (DLratio) the discards are calculated by multiplying the DL by the available estimates of landings by gear and species.

Discard ratios of both commercial and non-commercial species are estimated using the country, area, fishing gear, year and group resolution. We had detailed discard informations only for Italy and Croatia. However, there are no discard / landings ratios available for all countries or at CAFY resolution; therefore, the missing ratios are assigned from available D/L ratios. Specifically, Croatia's TBB fleet D/L ratios are taken from Croatia's DRB fleet. In Slovenia, in GNX, LLX, MIX, OTB, PS fleets D/L ratios are equivalent to Croatia's corresponding fleets, while the PTM fleet's D/L ratios are the same as Italy's PTM fleet. Discards ratio of the unique Bosnia and Hercegovina's fleet



are assumed to be similar as discards of Croatian set net fleet (GNX). For Albania and Montenegro's unique fleets we assumed that their discards are similar to a combination of Croatia's otter trawler (OTB), set net (GNX) and long line (LLX) fisheries. The derived hybrid (HYB) discard ratios sums the the individual discard ratios of the three fleets weighted by their contribution to the cumulative landings.

Estimating discards for commercial species

Different sources are available for estimating the discards of commercial species: FDI, JRC and SOSPECO project (Raicevich et al., 2005). Catch series of FDI and JRC reported landings and discards per specie, fleet segment and year of Italy and Croatia. The logic behind the reconstruction of discards was to use as much as possible the official discard data reported in catch records, and integrate with other sources only when these data are not available.

A preliminary analysis of reported discards data highlights that Croatia's catch records mostly contain discard data, while Italian records are mostly not available or zero. A further analysis between FDI and JRC reported discards shows that for Italy JRC discards are generally lower than FDI and they match only in the most recent years (2016-2018). Contrary to Italy, the same analysis indicates the two sources generally show similar discard values for Croatia. Therefore, the discard estimates are done using the FDI reported catches as the basis for estimating commercial discards. Once reconstructed discards from 2015 to 2018 are further used to estimate the group's average discard to landing ratio used from 2004 to 2014.

The reconstruction of each country's discard during 2015-2018 is done using primarily their own data and using the discards that are reported. For all other missing data a stepwise procedure is adopted, using from the most detailed data to averages by year and area. The SOSPECO project discard estimates per specie or per group fill other missing data. Italy has more missing discard data than Croatia, therefore, to fill the discard ratios only Italian fleets within SOSPECO project are used. The Italian discard estimates are detailed for otter trawlers (OTB, 9 hauls), rapido trawlers targeting scallops and soles (TBB, 8 and 6 hauls respectively), mid-pelagic pair trawlers (PTM, 7 hauls) and hydraulic dredges (DRB, 4 hauls). From these data were estimated the discards for the moat important fleets represented in the model.

Discards for OTB for non-commercial species are estimated on the basis of general information on total discards (SOMFI,2020) combined with information on non commercial catches from scientific



traw surveys (MEDITS and SOLEMON) and discard observations of commercial fishing (SOSPECO project, Raicevich et al., 2005; Morello et al. 2005).

For species with existing stock assessment (sardine, anchovy, sole, red mullet, hake, cuttlefish, mantis shrimp, Norway lobster, deep rose shrimp and caramonte prawn) the discards were considered from the data used in the stock assessment ad splitted into multistanza according to information on selectivity and catches.

For all functional groups we applied the discard mortality as in Table.

| Group | Discard | Group | Discard | Group | Discard |
|----------|-----------|----------|-----------|----------|-----------|
| | mortality | | mortality | | mortality |
| G01_SBR | 1 | G27_LOP | 1 | G52_DPS1 | 1 |
| G02_TTL | 1 | G28_PIL0 | 1 | G53_TGS | 1 |
| G03_0D0 | 1 | G29_PIL1 | 1 | G54_REPs | 0.5 |
| G04_DBO | 1 | G30_ANE0 | 1 | G55_REPh | 0.5 |
| G05_DST | 1 | G31_ANE1 | 1 | G56_NATs | 1 |
| G06_FIW | 1 | G32_SOL0 | 1 | G57_NATh | 1 |
| G07_BATs | 0.25 | G33_SOL1 | 0.9 | G58_SBT | 1 |
| G08_BATh | 0.25 | G34_SOL2 | 0.9 | G59_CLM | 0.005 |
| G09_SELs | 0.25 | G35_MUT0 | 1 | G60_SCL | 1 |
| G10_SELh | 0.25 | G36_MUT1 | 1 | G61_BIX | 0.5 |
| G11_SHO | 0.25 | G37_HKE0 | 1 | G62_SGR | 1 |
| G12_PLS | 1 | G38_HKE1 | 1 | G63_SWD | 1 |
| G13_PMS | 1 | G39_HKE2 | 1 | G64_JLY | 1 |
| G14_DPSs | 1 | G40_CPXs | 1 | G65_ZMA | 1 |
| G15_DPSh | 1 | G41_CPXh | 1 | G66_ZME | 1 |
| G16_EPI | 1 | G42_SQD | 1 | G67_ZMI | 1 |
| G17_MCF | 1 | G43_CTC | 1 | G68_BPL | 1 |
| G18_ZJF | 1 | G44_OCM | 1 | G69_PDM | 1 |
| G19_DEMs | 1 | G45_MTS0 | 1 | G70_PDF | 1 |
| G20_DEMh | 1 | G46_MTS1 | 1 | G71_DSC | 1 |
| G21_FLX | 0.9 | G47_NEP0 | 1 | G72_POM | 1 |
| G22_FTB | 0.9 | G48_NEP1 | 1 | G73_BTD | 1 |
| G23_GUR | 1 | G49_ARA | 1 | | |
| G24_GDX | 1 | G50_ARS | 1 | | |
| G25_SPX | 1 | G51_DPS0 | 1 | | |

Table 6. Discard mortality rates by FG applied to the model.



5 Balancing and Adjustments and PREBAL diagnostic

Initially, the Adriatic and Ionian models were not balanced mostly due to several EE values higher than 1 in different FGs. The models were manually balanced adopting a top–down approach (Mackinson & Daskalov, 2007) consisting of slight modifications to the production and consumption rates following the accepted range for the net food conversion efficiencies (production/consumption (P/Q) [0.05–0.3] for all finfish and <1 for all functional groups), respiration/assimilation (R/A [<1]), and production/respiration (P/R [<1]) ratios (Christensen et al., 2008), the slope of the biomass (on a log scale) should be in an order of approximately 5-10% decline with increasing trophic level, production/biomass (P/B) and consumption/biomass (Q/B) should also decline with increasing trophic levels (with exclusion of homeotherms) (Heymans et al., 2016).

Successively, a check of biomass values were carried out on the biomass data sources and catchability values. When the F mortality estimated for a group resulted higher than its P/B value, the biomass, landings and discard data were checked and adjusted to balance the group. Similarly, the excess of Predation mortalities on the P/B of a group were balanced by the correction of the diet values. The pre-balancing analysis (PREBAL, Link, 2010) was carried out to assess the coherence of the input data with the basic thermodynamic laws, rules, and principles of ecosystem ecology at the system level (Heymans et al., 2016).

Multiple groups showed variance from the trendline, whilst the mammals and seabirds show the largest divergence, their biological and behavioural differences as homeotherms tend to exempt them from many of the PREBAL ecological rules of thumb (Link, 2010). Seabirds showed noticeably biomass below the slope line due to their relatively light body mass.

The models were built using the same structure (same functional groups) in order to compare them and combined them to represent the entire Adriatic Sea. Therefore, in both GSAs there are functional groups that are not well represented in this ecosystem. These groups, indicated in the PREBAL figures, showed low biomasses in the PREBAL diagnostic (GSA 19: G22_FTB, G32_SOL0, G33_SOL1, G34_SOL2, G45_MTS0, G46_MTS1, G47_NEP0, G48_NEP1, G53_TGS – Figure?; GSA 1718: G02_TTL, G03_OD0, G05_DST, G06_FIW, G49_ARA – Figure ?).



Biomasses spanned over 7 and 8 orders of magnitude in GSA 17&18 and GSA 19 respectively. Biomass, on a logarithmic scale, declines over five trophic levels within the suggested ecological range (Link, 2010) by 6.9% in GSA1718 and 8.4% in GSA19 (Figures).

Production rates (P/B), on a logarithmic scale, showed decreasing trends below the ranges suggested (Link, 2010) for GSA 17&18 with declines of 3.9% whilst P/B declined of 5% in GSA 19.

Consumption rates (Q/B), on a logarithmic scale, showed decreasing trends below the ranges suggested for GSAs with declines of 2.9% and 3.3% for GSA 1718 and GSA 19 respectively.

On the balanced model, model production over consumption ratios (P/Q) and of course Ecotrophic efficiencies (EEs) met the criteria (Table). Top-predators had very little predation mortality and showed low EE. Low EE were also observed for phytoplankton groups as part of the production might be dispersed outside of the model domain and not consumed by zooplankton predation. Jellyfish feeding fish (G18_ZJF) in GSA 19 have a low EE as little is known regarding their predators. Similarly, for jellyfish (G64_JLY) in GSA17&18 low consumption by predators determined a low EE. The scallops (G60_SCL) in GSA17&18 also have low EEs as little is known regarding their predators.

When the model was balanced across all functional groups, a further correction was applied in order to balance the fluxes to detritus. In order to avoid overaccumulation of detritus or to represent exaggerated export of bottom detritus as leakage or outflow, the export of part of the plankton production was proferred. This was carried out setting emigration rates for the low trophic level groups (from pico-phytoplankton to large-zooplankton). The rates were calculated offline in order to balance the excess of fluxes to detritus by these low trophic level groups. The exports were set in order to achieve a balance between flows to detritus groups and consumption flows from detritus groups.



Table 7. PREBAL criteria used in the balancing of the models for the GSA17-18 and GSA19.

| PREBAL criteria | GSA 1718 | GSA19 |
|--|---|--|
| The range of biomass should span 5-7 orders of magnitude. | Biomass range spans 7 orders of magnitude. | Biomass range spans 8 orders of magnitude. |
| The slope of biomass (on a log scale) should be in the order of approx. 5-10% decline with increasing trophic level. | 6.9 % decline (Figure?) Groups excluded from the slope calculation as not represented in GSA 1718: G02_TTL, G03_ODO, G05_DST, G06_FIW, G49_ARA). | 8.4% decline (Figure?) Seabirds (G01_SBR) and turtles (G02_TTL) have biomass below the expected trends. Groups excluded from the slope calculation as not represented in GSA 19: G22_FTB, G32_SOL0, G33_SOL2, G34_SOL2, G45_MTS0, G46_MTS1, G47_NEP0, G48_NEP1, G53_TGS, G59_CLM, G60_SCL. |
| P/B ratio should decline with increasing trophic level (this rule excludes homeotherms). | 3.9% decline (Figure?) Excluding homeotherm top- predators odontocetes (G03_ODO), common bottlenose dolphin (G04_DBO), striped dolphin (G05_DST), fin whale (G06_FIW) and turtles (G02_TTL), that are also groups little represented in the GSA1718. G59_CLM and G60_SCL also showed lowed P/B values than expected. Zooplankton (G65_ZMA, G66_ZME and G67_ZMI) and jellyfish (G64_JLY) showed higher P/B than expected. | 5% decline (Figure?) Excluding homeotherm top- predators odontocetes (G03_ODO), common bottlenose dolphin (G04_DBO), fin whale (G06_FIW), striped dolphin (G05_DST) and turtles (G02_TTL), only zooplankton (G65_ZMA, G66_ZME and G67_ZMI) and jellyfish (G64_JLY) showed higher P/B than expected. |



| PREBAL criteria | GSA 1718 | GSA19 |
|---|---|---|
| Q/B should decline with increasing trophic level (this rule excludes homeotherms). | 2.9% decline; see figure The slope is smaller than expected due to low Q/B of G59_CLM and G60_SCL. Primary consumers jellyfish (G64_JLY) and zooplankton (G65_ZMA, G66_ZME and G67_ZMI) also showed high Q/B values and a large number of groups showed high variability above and below the expected ranges. | 3.3% decline (Figure?) The slope is smaller than expected due to high Q/B odontocetes (G03_ODO), common bottlenose dolphin (G04_DBO) and striped dolphin (G05_DST). Primary consumers jellyfish (G64_JLY) and zooplankton (G65_ZMA, G66_ZME and G67_ZMI) also showed high Q/B values and a large number of groups showed high variability above and below the expected ranges. |
| P/Q should fall between 0.1 and 0.3 for all finfish and <1 for all functional groups. | Criteria met (Figure?) Top-predators that showed P/Q values <0.1 (Seabirds (G01_SBR), turtles (G02_TTL), odontocetes (G03_ODO), common bottlenose dolphin (G04_DBO), striped dolphin (G05_DST)) there are also some juvenile groups that showed lower values than expected indicating the necessity of better assessing the stanza- groups. <i>Galeus melastomus</i> (G11_ SHO) also showed P/Q values <0.1. | Criteria met (Figure?) Top-predators that showed P/Q values <0.1 (Seabirds (G01_SBR), turtles (G02_TTL), odontocetes (G03_ODO), common bottlenose dolphin (G04_DBO), striped dolphin (G05_DST)) there are also some juvenile groups that showed lower values than expected indicating the necessity of better assessing the stanza-groups. |
| EE should be <1 for all functional groups | Criteria met (Figure?) | Criteria met (Figure?) |





Figure 2. Declining biomass with increasing trophic level. Line is linear regression of biomass and trophic level, grey bands represent S.E. Numbers indicated functional group ID, circles with black outline represent functional groups "well represented", grey outline "little represented" and red outline "juvenile stages". Colours represent groups categories.





Figure 3. Declining production/biomass ratio (P/B) with increasing trophic level. Line is linear regression of P/B and trophic level, grey bands represent S.E. Numbers indicated functional group ID, circles with black outline represent functional groups "well represented", grey outline "little represented" and red outline "juvenile stages". Colours represent groups categories.





Figure 4. Declining consumption/biomass ratio (Q/B) with increasing trophic level. Line is linear regression of Q/B and trophic level, grey bands represent S.E. Numbers indicated functional group ID, circles with black outline represent functional groups "well represented", grey outline "little represented" and red outline "juvenile stages". Colours represent groups categories.




Figure 5. Production/consumption (P/Q) values with increasing trophic level. Horizontal lines represent the advised ecological limits of P/Q. Numbers indicated functional group ID, circles with black outline represent functional groups "well represented", grey outline "little represented" and red outline "juvenile stages". Colours represent groups categories.





Figure 6. Ecotrophic efficiency (EE) values of the balanced model all below 1 (horizontal line) for all trophic levels. Numbers indicated functional group ID, circles with black outline represent functional groups "well represented", grey outline "little represented" and red outline "juvenile stages". Colours represent groups categories.



Fitting Ecosim models 6

6.1 Dynamic Food web modellig: Ecosim

Ecosim simulates the temporal changes of several Ecoptah parameters such as biomasses, catches, discards, predation mortalities, species consumptions etc. driven by a temporal ecosystem drivers that can be represented by fishing activities and environmental changes such as primary productivity and water temperature.

The ecosystem model describes the time course of state variables (Table X) based on the commonly made using the Ecopath with Ecosim software (EwE v6.6.5; assumptions www.ecopath.org; Christensen et al., 2008). The 73 state variables represent biomasses (in wet weigh, t km-2) of 66 consumers (eq. 2), 4 primary producers (eq. 3) and 3 non-living compartments (eq. 4) that include fishery discards (in t km-2 y-1).

Table x. Equations of the state variables of the time dynamic model for consumers (eq.2), producers (eq. 3) and non-living/detritus groups (eq. 4).

(2)
$$\frac{dB_{i}(t)}{dt} = \gamma_{i} \cdot \sum_{j=1}^{N} Q_{ji}(t) - \sum_{j=1}^{N} Q_{ij}(t) + I_{i} - (M_{i} + e_{i}) \cdot B_{i}(t) - \sum_{g=1}^{G} [F_{ig}^{m}(t) + F_{ig}^{d}(t)] \cdot B_{i}(t)$$
(3)
$$\frac{dB_{i}(t)}{dt} = PP_{i}(t) \cdot B_{i}(t) - \sum_{g=1}^{N} Q_{ij}(t) + I_{i} - (M_{i} + e_{i}) \cdot B_{i}(t)$$

(3)
$$\frac{dB_i(t)}{dt} =$$

(4)
$$\frac{dD_i(t)}{dt} = \sum_{j=1}^N \left[\delta_{ji} \cdot \left(M_j \cdot B_j(t) + u_j \sum_{k=1}^N Q_{kj}(t) \right) \right] + \sum_{g=1}^G \left(\delta_{gi} \cdot \sum_{j=1}^N F_{jg}^d(t) \cdot B_j(t) \right) - \sum_{j=1}^N Q_{ij}(t)$$

Biomass of functional group i. Bi

$$D_i$$
 Mass of detritus compartment of group *i*. Might be used by the scavengers of the food web.

$$Y_i$$
 Growth efficiency, $Y_i=1-(r+u)$, where *r* is the respiration rate and *u* the unassimilation of food.

- *Q_{ii}* Consumptions of group *i* over all of its preys *j*.
- *Q_{ij}* Predation on group *i* by all of its predators *j*.
- *I*^{*i*} Immigration.
- M_i Non-predatory natural mortality.
- *e*_i Emigration rate of group *i*.
- F_{ig} Fisheries mortality induced by each gear *g* through marketable catches ($C^{m_i} = F^{m_{ig}} B_i$) and discards ($C^{d_i} = F^{d_{ig}} B_i$).

*PP*_{*i*} Primary production rate for autotroph group *i*.

 δ_{ji} Detritus fate parameter, the flow of detritus produced by a consumer group *j* (unassimilated food $u_i \sum Q_{ji}$ and natural mortalities $M_i B_i$) to detritus group *i*.

 δ_{ai} Discard fate parameter, the flow of dead discards by gear *g* to detritus group *i*.



6.2 Ecosystem drivers: primary productivities and fishing efforts

6.2.1 Primary productivity by phytoplankton

In the model phytoplankton primary producers were represented by diatoms (functional group G69_PDM) and dinoflagellates (functional group G70_PDF). Monthly biomasses of these groups were extracted from Copernicus biogeochemical model (deliverable D4.2.1 "Production patterns in the Adriatic Sea") for the same temporal and spatial domains and used to calculate forcing functions to drive the ecosystem primary productivity in Ecosim. Annual averages forcing functions were also calculated and used for driving ecosystem productivity over time.



Figure 7. Changes in the primary production used in the two food web model developed.

6.2.2 Fishing effort

The fishing effort is a measure of the amount of fishing fleet's activity exerted I a certain amount of time. In several instances, the catches are assumed to be linearly dependent from biomass at sea of the exploited species and the effort exerted to catch them, i.e., catches are proportional to its fishing effort. Fishing effort, as a forcing driver, is applied relatively indicating the relative fishing



activity compared to the effort at the beginning of the simulation. The time series of the fishing effort cover the whole duration of the simulations (2004-2018).

Obtaining an exhaustive time series for fishing effort is not a straightforward task, as there are different sources for this driver that can be used as a proxy (total fishing days, total engine power, total number of vessels, overall vessel length and satellite-based Vessel Monitoring System (*VMS*)): within these sources data may be unavailable, showing gaps and inconsistencies in time series. Therefore a combination of data across different sources might be used to create the forcing function of fishing effort. The differences in fishing fleets, the properties of the gears used and their management need to be considered in order to build a time series of fishing effort that can be used as a temporal driver in Ecosim.

Italy (ITA) and Croatia (HRV) have the largest and most relevant fishing fleets in the Adriatic Sea and have been given a focus when analysing the fishing capacity and fishing effort. Available sources for Italy's fishing fleet came from Mably and Fisher Dependent Information data call (Table). Several data sources were used for Croatia's fleet capacity and effort data calls, FAO's spatial effort data, Croatian Bureau of Statistic, Croatian Ministry of Agriculture fishery management plans, annual fleet report for EU and repository available at the Institute of Oceanography and Fisheries (Table). An additional fishing effort measure comes from Vessel Monitoring System (VMS) analysis conducted in FAIRSEA activity 4.5 (Deliverable 4.5.1).

An exploratory analysis by fishing gear and country was conducted for Italy and Croatia to compare the trends of the fishing capacity and effort. Among different measures of fishing capacity we selected four: number of vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and a displacement index (LOA³), and one measure for fishing effort: fishing days (FD). The individual detailed fleet we grouped by fishing gear according to the fleet grouping specifications of the model. Further the different fleet length segments were grouped according to fleet specifications of the models.

In the Adriatic sea (GSA17 & 18) the results indicate a general reduction trend of the fishing fleet capacity (Figures). According to the data, Italy has a marked reduction of its fishing fleet, while Croatia's fleet shows some mixed trends. The dredge boats fleet (DRB) in Italy maintained a similar number of fishing vessels and other capacity indicators as in 2004 and had only a reduction of the fishing effort (Figure). In Croatia, on the contrary, there is an increase of all indicators from 2012 to 2015, followed by a decrease (Figure). All passive gears in Italy, namely set nets (GNX), long



lines (LLX) and mixed and other fishing gears (MIX), show a reduction in both fishing capacity and effort (Figure). The trend of passive gears in Croatia is not clearly identifiable, showing stable values between 2012 and 2018 (Figure). Otter trawlers (OTB) show a constant trend of decreasing the fishing fleet and halving its fishing effort In Italy. Although indicators of capacity and effort for otter trawlers in Croatia are discontinued between the different sources, they seem to indicate a relatively stable fishing fleet (Figure). The purse seines (PS) in Italy show the biggest reduction of the fishing effort although the capacity indicators show a stable situation, with a short increase observed between 2004 and 2009. Croatian purse seiners seem to show a trend of increase in number of vessels between 2008 and 2012, followed by a stable fleet and a reduction in 2016-18. However the fishing effort of Croatian purse seines indicate a relatively similar level of fishing effort, with its minimum in 2015, and a constant reduction since 2015 (Figure). Mid-water pair pelagic trawlers (PTM) are only present in Italy, and both the fishing capacity and the effort show a constant decreasing trend (Figure). A decreasing trend of both fishing capacity The fleet of rapido trawlers (TBB) in Italy has a decreasing trend of fishing capacity indicators until 2014, followed by a recovery in following years and a final increase in 2018 (Figure).

The analysis of fishing effort based on VMS data indicates a completely different trend of the different fleets activity when compared to reported data of fishing capacity and fishing effort. There is a general increasing trend of measured fishing effort from 2008 on, and only in the last three years (2016-18) stabilizes at a certain level.









Fishing capacity and fishing enore of utedge boats (DKD) for ftary (FA) and croata (HKV) in dSA F/ & Fo. Fiols. Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).









Fishing capacity and fishing effort of long lines (LLX) for Italy (ITA) and Croatia (HRV) in GSA 17 & 18. Plots: Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).





Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).





Trend of fishing capacity and fishing effort of otter trawlers (OTB) for Italy (ITA) and Croatia (HRV) in GSA 17 & 18. Plots: Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).





Trend of fishing capacity and fishing effort of purse seines (PS) for Italy (ITA) and Croatia (HRV) in GSA 17 & 18. Plots: Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).





displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).





Plots: Fishing capacity and fishing effort of rapido trawlers (TBB) for fday (ITA) and Croatia (HRV) in GSA 17 & 18. Plots: Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call, HRV-CAP – Croatian capacity data call, HRV-EFF – Croatian fishing effort data call and VMS data, HRV-FAOTECH – Croatian FAO spatial effort data, ITA-FDI – Croatian FDI data call, HRV-HR_DZS – Croatian department of statistics (DZS), HRV-HR_MPS_MP – Croatian Ministry of Agriculture (MPS) fishery management plans, HRV-HR_REP – Croatian annual EU fleet report, HRV-IZOR – Data from IZOR repository (http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex).



Ionian Sea (GSA 19)

In the Ionian sea (GSA 19) the fleet indicators show a similar trend of the italian fishing fleet as in the Adriatic sea. Dredge boats (DRB) were only registered in 2018 (Figure). The set nets (GNX) and long lines (LLX) present discontinuous fleet capacity data but with an apparent decreasing trend that could find support in the decreasing effort data (Figure). Mixed fisheries (MIX) have a relatively stable level of fishing vessels, while other capacity indicators show an increase until 2009 and a following decrease, observable also in the fishing effort (Figure). Otter trawlers (OTB) have a gradual decrease of both the fishing fleet capacity and effort throughout the time series (Figure). A decreasing trend is also observed for purse seines (PS), both in capacity and effort, showing an increase in the last two years (2017-18) (Figure).

The indicators of the fishing effort measured with VMS in the Ionian fleet show a general increasing trend, contrary to all other indicators, exhibiting the same behaviour as in the Adriatic sea (Figure).





capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call.





(LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call.





Plots: Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call.





capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call.





Trend of fishing capacity and fishing effort of purse seine (PS) for Italy (ITA) in GSA 19. Plots: Fishing capacity: number of total vessels, total gross tonnage (GT), total engine power (kW) and displacement index (LOA³); Fishing effort: fishing days from reports, fishing days from VMS data. Legend: ITA-CAP – Italian fishing capacity from Mably, ITA-EFF – Italian fishing effort from Mably landing data and VMS data, ITA-FDI – Italian FDI data call.



Effort forcings time series for Adriatic sea (GSA 17 & 18)

The observations of fishing capacity and effort indicators show difficulties in collecting and comparing this type of data. The VMS data show an increasing trend, contrary to the rest of the indicators, and further analysis needs to be conducted to explain this behavior. Where possible we preferred using fishing effort data for simulations of the fishing activity in the model (Table), and in some cases we applied interpolations to remove outliers from the trend. For Italy's Adriatic mid-water pair pelagic trawlers (PTM) the fishing effort trends per LOA segment (VL--18, VL1824, VL24++) showed erratic behavior (not shown in the plots) difficult to explain, and therefore we preferred to use a much more stable index of displacement (LOA3) as a proxy for fishing effort. Similar erratic behavior of fishing effort required creating hybrid time series by combining and scaling different series and values. When possible we preferred using the reported fishing effort, but it also required combining series from the Croatian Bureau of Statistic, Croatian Ministry of Agriculture fishery management plans, annual fleet report for EU and repository available at the Institute of Oceanography and Fisheries (Table).

For Slovenia (SLO) we used the fishing capacity data based on EU Fleet Register records available in the North-East Adriatic Sea (NEAS) model (Celić et al. 2018). For passive gears, like the small scale fishery (SSF) we used the number of vessels as a proxy for the fishing effort of Slovenia's set nets (GNX), long lines (LLX) and mixed and other fishing gear (MIX) (Table). The number of fishing vessels was chosen assuming that these fishing gears are similar between them and are not proportional to the size of the vessels. For active gears, such as otter trawlers (OTB), mid-water pair pelagic trawlers (PTM), and purse seines (PS), the displacement index (cubic LOA, LOA³) was selected as a proxy of the fishing capacity of the vessel, assuming that engine power and sea handling capabilities (i.e. possibility to fish in bad weather conditions) are proportional to the vessels displacement (Table).

For Albania (ALB), Bosnia and Herzegovina (BIH) and Montenegro (MNT) we didn't have either fishing fleet capacity or effort indicators. We used the relative total catch index as a proxy for fishing effort, obtained by dividing the total catch time series by the total catch in 2004 (Table).



Table: Specification of reference time series data used for simulating the fishing effort of Adriatic fishing fleets (GSA 17 & 18). Fishing fleets: ONE - all fishing gears, DRB – dredge boats, GNX – set nets, LLX – long lines, MIX – mixed and other fishing gears, OTB – otter trawlers, PS – purse seine, PTM – mid-water pair pelagic trawl, TBB – rapido trawl. Fleet length over all (LOA) segments: VL-ONE – all vessel sizes, V--18 – vessel smaller than 18 meters, VL18++ – vessel larger than 18 meters, VL1824 – vessel between 18 and 24 meters, VL24++ – vessel larger than 24 meters. Other abbreviations: GT – gross tonnage, FD – fishing days, N – number of vessels.

| Country | Fleet | LOA segment | Value | Description |
|---------|-------|----------------|-------------------------------------|---|
| Albania | ONE | VL-ONE | Total catch index | Index of Relative total catch |
| BiH | ONE | VL-ONE | Total catch index | Index of Relative total catch |
| Croatia | DRB | VL-ONE | Hybrid (GT+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL_15++ scaled to FD 2013 (2004-12), FD_max (2013-18) |
| Croatia | GNX | VL-ONE | Hybrid (GT+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL15 scaled to FD 2012 (2004-11), FD_max (2012-18) |
| Croatia | LLX | VL-ONE | Hybrid (GT+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL15 scaled to FD 2012 (2004-11), FD_max (2012-18) |
| Croatia | MIX | VL-ONE | Hybrid (GT+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL15 scaled to FD_max 2012 (2004-11), FD_max (2012-16), FDI FD scaled to FD_max 2016 (2017-18) |
| Croatia | ОТВ | VL—18 | Hybrid (GT+N+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL_15++ scaled to Vessels in OTB management plan 2008 (2004-07), Vessels in OTB management plan scaled to Vessels OTB statistics 2011 (2008-10), Vessels OTB statistics scaled to FD 2012 (2011), FD (2012-18) |
| Croatia | ОТВ | VL1824 | Hybrid (GT+N+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL_15++ scaled to Vessels in OTB management plan 2008 (2004-07), Vessels in OTB management plan scaled to Vessels OTB statistics 2011 (2008-10), Vessels OTB statistics scaled to FD 2012 (2011), FD (2012-18) |
| Croatia | OTB | VL24++ | Hybrid (GT+N+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL_15++ scaled to Vessels in OTB management plan 2008 (2004-07), Vessels in OTB management plan scaled to Vessels OTB statistics 2011 (2008-10), Vessels OTB statistics scaled to FD 2012 (2011), FD (2012-18) |
| Croatia | PS | VL—18 | Hybrid (GT+N+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL_15++ scaled to Vessels in PS management plan 2008 (2004-07), Vessels in PS management plan scaled to FD 2012 (2008-11), FD (2012-18) |
| Croatia | PS | VL18++ | Hybrid (GT+N+FD) (FD equivalent) | GT VL_15++ scaled to Vessels in PS management plan 2008 (2004-07), Vessels in PS management plan scaled to FD 2012 (2008-11), FD (2012-18) |



| Croatia | TBB | VL—18 | Hybrid (GT+FD) | GT VL_15++ scaled to FD 2013 (2004-13), FD (2014- |
|------------|-----|--------|-------------------|---|
| | | | (FD equivalent) | 18) |
| Italy | DRB | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (04-15), FDI FD scaled to Mably FD 2015 |
| - | | | | (16-18) |
| Italy | GNX | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | LLX | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | MIX | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | OTB | VL—18 | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | OTB | VL1824 | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) with interpolation (2014-16) |
| Italy | OTB | VL24++ | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | PS | VL—18 | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) with interpolation (2006-07) |
| Italy | PS | VL18++ | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | PTM | VL—18 | Displacement | Capacity from Mably LOA ³ (2004-18) |
| Italy | PTM | VL1824 | Displacement | Capacity from Mably LOA ³ (2004-18) |
| Italy | PTM | VL24++ | Displacement | Capacity from Mably LOA ³ (2004-18) |
| Italy | TBB | VL—18 | EnginePower | Capacity from Mably kW (2004-18) |
| Italy | TBB | VL18++ | EnginePower | Capacity from Mably kW (2004-18) |
| Montenegro | ONE | VL-ONE | Total catch index | Index of Relative total catch |
| Slovenia | GNX | VL-ONE | Vessel number | From Fleet register vessel number (Celić et al. 2018) |
| Slovenia | LLX | VL-ONE | Vessel number | From Fleet register vessel number (Celić et al. 2018) |
| Slovenia | MIX | VL-ONE | Vessel number | From Fleet register vessel number (Celić et al. 2018) |
| Slovenia | OTB | VL-ONE | Displacement | From Fleet register vessel LOA (Celić et al. 2018) |
| Slovenia | PS | VL-ONE | Displacement | From Fleet register vessel LOA (Celić et al. 2018) |
| Slovenia | PTM | VL-ONE | Displacement | From Fleet register vessel LOA (Celić et al. 2018) |























Effort forcings time series for Ionian sea (GSA 19)

For Ionian sea fishing effort available in MABLY data call was prefered as effort forcing time series, requiring few interpolations for otter trawlers (VL1824) and purse seine (VL--18) (Table). In case of purse seines larger than 18 meters the available effort data was poor and discontinuous, therefore we used the displacement index based on cubic LOA from MABLY capacity data. The dredge boats (DRB) in the Ionian sea resulted having some reported landings but no relevant data on fishing effort were available, therefore we choose to use as proxy the same fishing effort as in the Adriatic sea.

Table: Specification of reference time series data used for simulating the fishing effort of Ionian fishing fleets (GSA 19). Fishing fleets: ONE - all fishing gears, DRB – dredge boats, GNX – set nets, LLX – long lines, MIX – mixed and other fishing gears, OTB – otter trawlers, PS – purse seine,. Fleet length over all (LOA) segments: VL-ONE – all vessel sizes, V--18 – vessel smaller than 18 meters, VL18++ – vessel larger than 18 meters, VL1824 – vessel between 18 and 24 meters, VL24++ – vessel larger than 24 meters. Other abbreviations: GT – gross tonnage, FD – fishing days, N – number of vessels.

| Country | Fleet | LOA | Value | Description |
|---------|-------|---------|--------------|--|
| - | | segment | | |
| Italy | DRB | VL-ONE | FishingDays | DRB FD time series from GSA 17&18 |
| Italy | GNX | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | LLX | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | MIX | VL-ONE | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | OTB | VL—18 | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18) |
| Italy | OTB | VL1824 | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18), with interpolation (2005) |
| Italy | PS | VL—18 | FishingDays | Mably FD (2004-18), with interpolation (2005) |
| Italy | PS | VL18++ | Displacement | Capacity from Mably LOA ³ (2004-18), with interpolation |
| | | | | (2005-06, 2014) |







6.3 Time series of biomasses and catches for calibration

Time-series of biomasses and catches were analysed using box-plots in order to identify differences in magnitude across species and potential outliers. Within the identified outliers (1.5 times the interquartile range, i.e., the 25th and 75th percentiles of the boxplot) only a few were considered "true" outliers assessing the time-series one a time considering ecological aspects of the functional group (e.g. pelagic groups are expecting higher variations than demersal groups).





Figure 8. Box plots of biomass time-series for both GSAs ranked from order of magnitude.

69

GSA17/18 Biomass





GSA17/18 Catches

Figure 9. Box plots of catches time-series for both GSAs ranked from order of magnitude.





Figure 10. Whisker plots of biomass time-series per functional group for GSA 17&18





Figure 11. Whisker plots of biomass time-series per functional group for GSA 19



Figure 12 Whisker plots of catches time-series per functional group for GSA 17&18




Figure 13. Whisker plots of catches time-series per functional group for GSA 19



7 Fitting strategy: preliminary testing results

Only time series of groups well represented in the specific GSA were used for the fitting.

GSA 1718. Firstly the model was fitted using relative biomasses (type=0) and observed biomasses for stock assessment data (type=1) and catches as temporal drivers (forced catches, type -6). Manually fitting 48 parameters (49 time series of biomasses).

| G01_SBR: 0.0627679 | G02_TTL: 5.819427 | G07_BATs: 2.189559 | G08_BATh: 2.413713 | G09_SELs: 1.093318 | G10_SELh: 2.569893 | G11_SH0: 1.600098 |
|---------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | ° i | ° ° ° . | • | | · · | °°°° |
| | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | e 0 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 0 0 0 0 |
| G13_PMS: 26.61158 | G14_DPSs: 2.551633 | G15_DPSh: 2.080902 | G16_EPI: 2.080486 | G17_MCF: 2.458846 | G19_DEMs: 0.488461 | G20_DEMh: 1.147922 * |
| | | 0 | | · | | · · · · |
| | | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | - · · | |
| G21_FLX: 1.375386 | G22_FTB: 4.137137 | G23_GUR: 0.712027 | G24_GDX: 1.466903 | G25_SPX: 13.75616 | G26_MCK: 5.321435 | G27_LOP: 8.170966 |
| | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | ° . | · | |
| | 0 <u>0 0 0 0 0 0</u> 0 | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | · · · · | • • • • |
| G28_PIL0: 16.13908 | G29_PIL1: 3.513280 | G30_ANE0: 5.769783 | G31_ANE1: 2.022547 | G32_SOL0: 1.186975 | G33_SOL1: 2.880179 | G34_SOL2: 6.780706 |
| ° | | • | | · · · · · · · | · · · · · | ··· |
| | en in interest | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| G35_MUT0: 0.587639 | G36_MUT1: 0.556345 | G37_HKE0: 0.551370 | G38_HKE1: 0.846325 | G39_HKE2: 4.011835 | G40_CPXs: 5.956074 | G41_CPXh: 1.631581 |
| | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | ° ° |
| | | * | | * o a o e a | ····· | ******** |
| G42_SQD: 2.554474 | G43_CTC: 0.938516 | G44_OCM: 1.634998 | G45_MTS0: 0.734964 | G46_MTS1: 2.119371 | G48_NEP1: 11.37522 | G49_ARA: 35.94706 |
| · _ ^ · | • • • • <u> </u> | • • [•] • | h 200 Mond | | * | |
| | 0,00000 | · · · · · · · · | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | . * |
| G50 ARS-2 096584 | G51 DPS0: 2.009063 | 052 DPS1: 0.696857 | 053 TOS: 0 738730 | G54 REP+ 42 01950 | G55 BEPN 5 209641 | G56 NATe: 1.857093 |
| | 601_01-00.2.00000 ° | 9 | 0.000 | | 000_10_11.0.000011 | * * |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | ********** | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | °°.• | · · · | |
| | ~~ <u>~~</u> ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | | | • | | · · · · · |
| G66_ZME: 0.000000 | G67_ZMI: 0.000000 | G68_BPL: 0.000000 | G69_PDM: 0.000000 | G70_PDF: 0.000000 | | |
| and and prove and | con do con dy | con for a my day | one per por e o pe | 0 215° 2, 2, 2, 5, 5, 5, 6, 2, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, 5, | | |
| | | | | | | |
| 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 |

• Fitting by predator SS=561.9 \rightarrow 258.7

• Fitting by predator/prey SS= $561.9 \rightarrow 291.3$



| C01 SBD-0.0493030 | C02 TTI - 6 782689 | C07 BATe: 2 040449 | C08 BATH 2 676221 | C09 SEL =: 0.704763 | C10 SELN 3 830868 | G11 SHO: 1 857972 |
|---------------------|--|--|---------------------|---|--|---------------------|
| | Gu2_11C 5.762669 | GUT_DATS. 2.040445 | G00_DATH 2.076231 | G09_32LS. 0.794763 | G10_3ELR 3.620666 | G11_5H0. 1.05/5/2 |
| | | · · · · | | - ee · · · · · | | |
| | | | | · · · | | ···· ·· · · · · |
| | | | | | ······································ | |
| G13_PMS: 34.25662 | G14_DPSs: 2.807118 | G15_DPSh: 2.313832 | G16_EPI: 2.594824 | G17_MCF: 1.880107 | G19_DEMs: 0.506809 | G20_DEMh: 1.201036 |
| | | | ••• | - | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| | | · · · · | 1. · · · · ~ | · _ · · · · · | | · · · · · · · |
| | | | ··· · ···· | | 1 | |
| 001 511 1 001007 | 000 570 4 500003 | 000 010 1 000370 | 001 001 1 010500 | 005 004 10 03414 | 000 1000 5 105010 | 002 100 11 0000 |
| G21_FLX: 1.681067 | G22_F18: 4.539297 | G23_GUR: 1.229750 | G24_GDX: 1.618506 | G25_SPX: 13.87444 | G26_MCK: 5.465318 | G27_LOP: 11.20207 |
| · · · · · · · | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | · · · · | | · . | ••• |
| | | | | • •. | | · |
| , | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | ···· | ···· |
| G28_PIL0: 16.54999 | G29_PIL1: 3.164363 | G30_ANE0: 5.107160 | G31_ANE1: 4.426080 | G32_SOL0: 1.345200 | G33_SOL1: 2.503559 | G34_SOL2: 7.219241 |
| | | · · . | | | | · · · · · |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | |
| | | | | | | 1 |
| | | ** | | | | |
| G35_M010: 0.915/1/ | G36_M011: 0.804981 | G37_HKE0: 0.962966 | G38_HKE1: 3.188269 | G39_HKE2 12.02558 | G40_CPX8: 5.879145 | G41_CPXh: 1.642393 |
| home. | | | | | · ·. | |
| • . • • | | | | | Livin | |
| | | | | * • • • • • • | | |
| G42_SQD: 2.685649 | G43_CTC: 0.962064 | G44_OCM: 2.171681 | G45_MTS0: 1.048565 | G46_MTS1: 4.570530 | G48_NEP1: 12.48086 | G49_ARA: 36.09476 |
| ···. | | | $\land \land \land$ | | | 1 ' |
| | ······································ | | f \ / / \ / · \~~. | \sim | | |
| | - | | | | ******* | |
| 050 400 0 110707 | 051 0000 0 400305 | 052 0001 0 045277 | 052 700 0 529169 | 054 050+ 40 40007 | 055 DED: 5 344594 | OSE NAT- 1 252021 |
| G50_ARS: 2.116727 | G51_DPS0: 2.420305 | G52_DPS1: 0.945277 | G53_1G5: 0.538168 | G54_REPS: 42.42307 | G55_REPR: 5.344684 | G56_NA15: 1.753031 |
| · · · · · · · | | ······································ | | | | · · . |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | - | · · | | 1 [.] |
| G66_ZME: 0.000000 | G67_ZMI: 0.000000 | G68_BPL: 0.000000 | G69_PDM: 0.000000 | G70_PDF: 0.000000 | | |
| and some sources | and the states | and the second | a man and | · • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | |
| | | - · · | www. core or | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | |
| 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 |
| | 2010 2010 | 2010 2010 | 2010 2010 | 2010 2010 | 2010 2010 | 2010 2010 |

GSA 19. Firstly the model was fitted using relative biomasses (type=0) and catches as temporal drivers (forced catches, type -6). Manually fitting 46 parameters (47 time series of biomasses).

• Fitting by predator SS= $607.3 \rightarrow 319.9$



| G01_SBR: 2.92885 | G02_TTL: 23.7333 | G03_ODO: 0.23609 | G04_DBO: 21.4790 | G05_DST: 15.5759 | G06_FIW: 0.82519 | G07_BATs: 3.53583 |
|---|---------------------------------------|---|--|---------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|
| | • | | | 0 00 | | • |
| | • * | Ŷ | | · · · · · | | |
| о | A | - | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | ÷ 4 |
| G08_BATh: 3.86293 | G09_SELs: 0.92083 | G10_SELh: 11.1897 | G11_SHO: 4.89209 | G13_PMS; 23.9326 | G14_DPSs: 2.27528 | G15_DPSh: 2.55725 |
| ** * | the second | | | | | |
| ********* |] • • • | | *** | ° ° | ** ** | ··· · ··· |
| G16_EPI: 4.57991 | G17_MCF: 1.94950 | G19_DEMs: 2.41642 | G20_DEMh: 2.38575 | G21_FLX: 5.10006 | G23_GUR: 3.00702 | G24_GDX: 2.93284 |
| - ° ° | | · · · · | · · · | • • | · · · | ° ° ° ° |
| | · | | | 1 | | |
| | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | · · · · | · · · · | | * * * | · ···· |
| G25_SPX: 45.0060 | G26_MCK: 21.3082 | G27_LOP: 2.62547 | G28_PIL0: 4.82900 | G29_PIL1: 4.70630 | G31_ANE1: 8.61583 | G36_MUT1: 1.49612 |
| • | · · | · · · · · · · · | 1 | | | · · ···· |
| | · · · · · | • • • | | | | ···· ···] |
| 002 14/50 0 20201 | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | C00 LB/C0. 0 00700 | e ⁰ ⁰ ⁰ ⁰ ⁰ | 0 0 0 0 | 8 8 8 0 0 10 00D 0 00027 | 012 070 6 10002 |
| G37_HKEU: 2.76721 | G30_HKE1: 2.9/202 | G39_HKE2 3.22/36 | G40_CPXS: 3.05338 | G41_CPXR: 3.49705 | G42_SQU, 3.88757 | G43_C1C: 6.10007 |
| · ···································· | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | 6 0 | | |
| | · · · · · | · · · · · | - Vor | | *** *** | |
| G44_OCM: 4.54461 | G46_MTS1: 4.95562 | G47_NEP0: 8.18390 | G48_NEP1: 4.37575 | G49_ARA: 1.52516 | G50_ARS: 12.5793 | G51_DPS0: 1.00898 |
| · · · · | ~ ~ | • | * | | | ·~· |
| | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 | | | 0 000 NAT- 0.03500 | 053 1075-10 0000 | 0 é 0 | 002 704 0 00000 |
| G52_DPS1: 0.60641 | G04_REPS: 3.54931 | G55_REPT: 8.32265 | G56_NATS: 2.2/522 | 6 ° | 666_ZME: 0.0000 | G6/_2MI: 0.0000 |
| | | • • • | iner i | °. • | | |
| ~~~~* | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | |
| G68_BPL: 0.00000 | G69_PDM: 0.00000 | G70_PDF: 0.00000 | | | | |
| | han anon a d | for a for the | | | | |
| | 0.0.0.0.0.0 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 |

• Fitting by predator/prey SS= $607.3 \rightarrow 339.8$



| | | | | | 0.00 5.111 0.00010 | |
|---|--|--|--|---|--------------------|---|
| G01_SBR: 3.52502 | G02_TTL: 24.1149 | G03_ODO: 0.19681 | G04_DBO: 21.4712 | G05_DST: 16.1841 | G05_FIW: 0.80849 | G07_BATs: 3.63438 |
| / | 1 . | | | | | • |
| | | | ••• | | | |
| · . | ***** | | | | 1 * * | |
| G08 BATh: 3.95336 | G09 SEL 0 99497 | G10. SELb: 12.2467 | G11 SHO: 5.06733 | G13 PMS 23 2939 | G14_DPSs: 2.44192 | G15 DPSh 1 13129 |
| | | | · | | | |
| ··· · | ······ | 1 • • ./ | 1 | | | · · · · · |
| | 1 | · · · · | | 1 | | |
| •• | | · · · · | •••• | | 1 * | |
| G16_EPI: 4.66419 | G17_MCF: 2.31775 | G19_DEMs: 2.34348 | G20_DEMh: 2.50652 | G21_FLX: 5.22855 | G23_GUR: 2.96953 | G24_GDX: 3.91877 |
| · · · | | · · · . | | · · | | ··· ·· . |
| | · · · · | | | 1 | · · · · · | |
| | ····· | | | ······································ | | • |
| | | 0.00 / 0.00 / 0.000 F | - | *** | - | |
| G25_SPX: 43.7132 | G26_MCR: 5.83815 | G27_LOP: 4.97265 | G28_PIL0: 6.68515 | G29_PIL1: 5.64530 | G31_ANE1: 12.2155 | G36_MUT1: 4.49281 |
| · · | · . | | | | | |
| | | | | | | ··_ ·⁄ ··· |
| in in i | | | | | | |
| G37 HKE0: 3.69718 | G38_HKE1: 2.91421 | C39 HKE2: 4 06046 | C40 CPXe: 7.41618 | 041 00%+ 3 56084 | 040.000.00000 | 043_CTO_5 93334 |
| | COULT IN SECTION AND IN SECTION AND A SECTIO | 000 HNL2 4.00040 | G40_GF AS. 7.41010 | G41_CPAR 3.00004 | G#2_3GD: 3.09033 | 043_010.5.02234 |
| * * - | | 4005_NRE2.4.00040 | * * | GH1_CPAR. 3.560.04 | G42_SQL: 3.69533 | * |
| | | | * | | G42_500/ 3.69533 | |
| سنب بنب | | | · · · | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | GH2_SQL 3.69533 | |
| ······································ | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Gil That 2000 | Gez 3407 3 68533 | |
| G44_OCM: 5.45756 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 | G47_NEP0: 9.81173 | G48_NEP1: 7.96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 | G50_ARS: 12 7291 | G51_DPS0: 3.66016 |
| GH_OCM 5.45756 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 | G47_NEP0: 9.81173 | G48_NEP1: 7.96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0: 3.66016 |
| G44_OCM: 5.45756 | G46_MTS1: 4. 18115 | G47_NEP0.9.81173 | G48,NEP1,7,96458 | G49_ARA 2.02974 | G50_ARS: 12 7291 | G51_DPS0: 3.66016 |
| GH4_OCM 5.45756 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 | G47_NEP0.9.81173 | G48_NEP1.7.96458 | G49_ARA: 2:02974 | G50_ARS: 12 7291 | G51_DPS0.3.66016 |
| G44_0CM: 5.45756 | G46_MTS1:4.18115 | G47, NEP0, 9, 81173 | G48_NEP1.7.36458 | G49_ARA: 2.00374 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0.3.66016 |
| GH4_OCM 5.45756 G52_DPS1: 1.58726 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.96446 | G47_NEP0.9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 | G48_NEP1: 7.96458 G56_NATs: 2.51361 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0.3.66016 |
| G44_OCM: 5.45756 G52_DPS1: 1.58726 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.96446 | G47_NEP0: 9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 | G48_NEP1: 7:96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0 3 66016 |
| G44, OCM: 5.45756 | G46_MTS1:4.18115 G54_REPs:3.396446 | G47_NEP0: 9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 | G48_NEP1:7.96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G60_ARS: 12 7291 | G51_DPS0: 3.66016 |
| GH4_OCM_545756 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.96446 | G57_NEP0.9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 | G48_NEP1: 7.96458 G56_NATs: 2.51361 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0_3.66016 |
| G44_OCM: 5.45756 G52_DPS1: 1.58726 G52_DPS1: 0.0000 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.96446 G69_PDM: 0.00000 | G52_PEPh 8 45997 | G48_NEP1: 7.96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_INATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12 7291 | G51_DPS0.3.66016 |
| G44_OCM: 5.45756 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.96446 G69_PDM: 0.00000 | G47_NEP0 9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 G70_PDF: 0.00000 | G48_NEP1.7.96458 | G49_ARA 2.02974 G49_ARA 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0.3.66016 |
| G44_OCM_5.45756 G52_DPS1: 1.58726 G68_BPL: 0.0000 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.36446 G69_PDM: 0.00000 | G47_NEP0: 9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 G70_PDF: 0.00000 Cr0_PDF: 0.00000 | G48_NEP1: 7.96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0_3.66016 |
| G64_OCM 5.45756 G52_DPS1: 1.58726 G68_BPL: 0.00000 | G46_MTS1: 4.18115 G54_REPs: 3.96446 G69_PDM: 0.00000 | G47_NEP0.9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 G70_PDF: 0.00000 | G48_NEP1: 7.56453 G56_NATs: 2.51361 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G50_ARS: 12 7291 | G51_DPS0.3.66016 |
| G44_OCM: 5.45756 | G46_MTS1:4.18115 G54_REPs:3.96446 G669_PDM: 0.00000 G669_PDM: 0.00000 | G47_NEP0: 9.81173 G55_REPh: 8.45997 G70_PDF: 0.00000 | G48_NEP1:7:96458 | G49_ARA: 2.02974 G57_NATh: 16.0968 | G60_ARS: 12.7291 | G51_DPS0 3.66016 |

- For GSA19 different fitting were tested also with the stepwise plug-in using effort as temporal driver (total fishing days). We used a simplified time-series (only groups strongly represented in the GSA 19), and we tested different weightings:
 - All series with weight=1, <u>BEST fitting by predator/prey AICc= -985.5 \rightarrow -1002.7 (Fishing + 5 Vs)</u>
 - Modified weight (10) for SHO, DEMh, GDX, DPS1, MUT1, CPXs, CPXh, OCM, ARS, REPs. <u>BEST fitting by predator/prey AICc= 264.17 → 255.55 (Fishing + 7 Vs)</u>
 - All weighting were standardised across time-series based on number of time-series availability per group (e.g. seabirds weight= 1 as only biomass available; *Lophius* spp. weight =0.5 for biomass and catches; sardine weight= 0.25 as two series of biomasses and two for catches were available (juvenile-adults). <u>BEST fitting by</u> predator/prey AICc=-1902 →-1920.6 (Fishing + 7 Vs)

This time-series did not perform well on replicating declining trends for important groups such as gadoids (G24_GDX), mackerel (G26_MCK), *Lophius* spp. (G27_LOP), shelf- and slope-cephalopods (G40_CPXh and G41_CPXs) and Eledone spp. (G44_OCM). Negative biomass accumulations (BAs) were added in Ecopath in order to force the model to hindcasting higher biomasses at the beginning of the time-series.



Negative biomass accumulation added:

G24_GDX (-0.5 t/km2), G26_MCK (-0.9 t/km2), G27_LOP (-0.008 t/km2), G40_CPXh (-0.99 t/km2), G41_CPXs (-0.99 t/km2), G44_OCM (-0.06 t/km2).

o All weighting were standardised across time-series, with added negative BAs. BEST fitting by predator/prey AICc= $-1506.2 \rightarrow -1607.2$ (Fishing + 29 Vs)

Negative BAs for shelf- and slope-cephalopods (G40_CPXh and G41_CPXs) did not improve the fitting and was removed. Negative BA was added for slope decapods reptantia (G54_REPs, BA= - 1.5 t/km2) and positive BA was added for Aristeomorpha foliacea (G50_ARS, BA= 0.05 t/km2) that showed increasing temporal observed trends.

o All weighting were standardised across time-series, with added the updated BAs. BEST fitting by predator/prey AICc= $-1586.5 \rightarrow -1680.7$ (Fishing + 29 Vs)

o Weighting standardised across time-series and modified weight (20) for SHO, DEMh, GDX, DPS1, MUT1, CPXs, CPXh, OCM, ARS, REPs. BEST fitting by predator/prey AICc= 918.7 →568.9 (Fishing + 41 Vs).



| G01_SBR: 3.03726 | G03_ODO: 0.18262 | G04_DBO: 3.09267 | G05_DST: 0.43626 | G07_BATs: 2.07230 | G08_BATh: 2.24591 | G09_SELs: 0.85458 |
|---------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|
| | · | * * | | * | · · | • |
| | | • | | . • • | ••. • | |
| | | · | | | | |
| • • | | | | • | * . | |
| G10_SELh: 4.72520 | G11_SHO: 97.4607 | G14_DPSs: 0.95364 | G15_DPSh: 0.44362 | G16_EPI: 2.34016 | G17_MCF: 1.35393 | G19_DEMs: 1.05757 |
| | • • | | | | | • • • • |
| · · · · | | | | | | |
| | · · · · · · | •• • | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| G20_DEMb: 56 2860 | G21 FLX: 2.82138 | G23 GUB 2 24877 | G24_GDX: 57 6333 | G26_MCK: 2.02665 | G27 LOP: 0.93681 | G29 PIL1: 5 46384 |
| ° | • | ° | * | o | * * * | * |
| · · | | | | · . | ···· | • |
| | · · · · | | · · · · · · · · · | · · · · · | • • | |
| • • • | | · · · · · | 0 e o | · · · · · · · · | | |
| G31_ANE1: 5.04842 | G36_MUT1: 26.8643 | G38_HKE1: 0.69495 | G39_HKE2: 0.72969 | G40_CPXs: 111.442 | G41_CPXh: 54.5490 | G42_SQD: 1.84522 |
| , , | · · · · · · · · | • | | • ° | ° | · · · |
| | | l'i | | • | • • • | • • • • • |
| | • • | | ···· | | مىنىپ <u>ب</u> ىپ | • • • • • |
| ** * * | | - | 0.50 1.00 005 117 | * * *** | • | * |
| G44_OCM: 83.1914 | G48_NEP1: 1.90684 | G49_ARA: 1.01256 | G50_ARS: 235.417 | G51_DPS0: 0.99987 | G52_DPS1: 55.9946 | G54_REPs: 73.0150 |
| | | **. * | . • • ⁄ | ** . * | · · · · | • • |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | · · · · · · | | | | hining |
| · · · · | ••••• | • • • | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | • • • • | * * * * * | • • • • |
| G55_REPh: 4.13142 | G56_NATs: 1.10590 | G57_NATh: 21.1540 | G66_ZME: 0.00000 | G67_ZMI: 0.00000 | G68_BPL: 0.00000 | G69_PDM: 0.00000 |
| | · | | ····· | A A AA | $\wedge \wedge \wedge \wedge$ | enviriani |
| | · · · · · | • | | \sim | « ~~ | |
| · · · · · | | • | | | V V | |
| | | ····· | | | | |
| G70_PDF: 0.00000 | | | | | | |
| me for for bore | | | | | | |
| U U | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 |
| | | | | | | |



| G07_BATs: 1.52976 | G08_BATh: 0.85995 | G09_SELs: 2.82758 | G10_SELh: 13.0653 | G11_SHO: 29.4194 | G12_PLS: 7.01429 | G13_PMS: 4.80761 |
|---|--|--|---------------------|--|---------------------|---------------------------|
| ۹٬۰ ^۰ . ۰ , ۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ | | ·- · | | | - J. S. marken | |
| | | | | • • • • • • • • | · · · · · · · · | مرا بر مر مر الم |
| G14_DPSs: 6.37670 | G15_DPSh: 4.98390 | G16_EPI: 0.98284 | G17_MCF: 1.21546 | G19_DEMs: 1.82219 | G20_DEMh: 68.3959 | G21_FLX: 0.87795 |
| · · · · · | · · · · · · · | ······································ | Linger | **** · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | - | |
| · · · | | · · · · | · · · . | | ···· | . لر |
| G23_GUR: 0.65040 | G24_GDX: 116.780 | G26_MCK: 9.23762 | G27_LOP: 2.96820 | G29_PIL1: 19.8821 | G31_ANE1: 7.42084 | G36_MUT1: 3.85869 |
| - le Le | | ···· | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | Juner M |
| | · ···································· | L | | °°*,**,.** | | о * ₉ * Ъ * |
| G38_HKE1: 0.34512 | G39_HKE2: 1.08877 | G40_CPXs: 38.5490 | G41_CPXh: 42.8447 | G42_SQD: 1.53861 | G43_CTC: 3.24488 | G44_OCM: 101.849 |
| ····· | h | Linger . | n. Inderingen | | · | |
| 046 MT01 61 7242 | 049 NED1-0 47675 | 040 ADA 5 22742 | 050 400 0020 | 052 0001 1 65502 | 054 DED:: 100 927 | * • |
| 040_W131.01.7545 | 040_NEP1. 2.47075 | 9 Store State | G50_AR3. 00.5070 | ସର୍ଥ_DF31, 1,65503 ଶିଂଂ | 004_REPS. 102.007 | 6005_REPII: 1.05250 |
| | himmen | • • • | | man | N | ~ |
| " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " | · · · · · · · | ····· | بالمرين | | L'and the | · L'annier, in |
| G56_NATs: 3.23564 | | | | 1 | 1 | |
| rui i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i | | | | | | |
| 2004 2007 2010 2013 |] 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 | 2004 2007 2010 2013 |



8 REFERENCES

Abdelkader B. and Ktari M. (1986) Régime alimentaire des Dentés (genre Dentex), Poissons, Sparidés de Tunisie. Bull. Soc. Sc. Nat. Tunisie, 17: 19–25.

Abelló P. (1989) Feeding habits of *Macropipus tuberculatus* (Brachyura, Portunidae) off the Catalan coast (NW Mediterranean). Misc. Zool., 13: 45-50.

Agnetta D., Badalamenti F., Colloca F., et al. (2019) Benthic-pelagic coupling mediates interactions in Mediterranean mixed fisheries: An ecosystem modelling approach. PLoS ONE, 14(1): e0210659. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0210659

Agnetta D., Bonaviri C., Badalamenti F., Scianna C., Vizzini S., Gianguzza P. (2013) Functional traits of two co-occurring sea urchins across a barren/forest patch system. J. Sea Res., 76: 170–177.

Akadje C., Diaby M., Le Loc'h F., et al. (2013) Diet of the barracuda *Sphyraena guachancho* in Côte d'Ivoire (Equatorial Eastern Atlantic Ocean). Cybium, 37: 285–293.

Anastasopoulou A. and Kapiris K. (2008) Feeding ecology of the shortnose greeneye *Chlorophthalmus agassizi* Bonaparte, 1840 (Pisces: Chlorophthalmidae) in the eastern Ionian Sea (eastern Mediterranean). J. Appl. Ichthyol., 24: 170-179.

Arculeo M., Froglia C., Riggio S. (1993) Food partitioning between *Serranus scriba* and *Scorpaena porcus* (Perciformes) on the infralittoral ground of the South Tyrrhenian Sea. Cybium, 17: 251–258.

Arreguín-Sánchez F., Arcos E., Chávez E.A. (2002) Flows of biomass and structure in an exploited benthic ecosystem in the Gulf of California, Mexico. Ecol. Model., 156: 167–183.

Bacha M., Moali A., Benmansour N.E., et al. (2010) Relationships between age, growth, diet and environmental parameters for anchovy (*Engraulis encrasicolus* L.) in the Bay of Bénisaf (SW Mediterranean, west Algerian coast). Cybium, 34(1): 47-57.

Barría C., Marta Coll M., Navarro J. 2015. Unravelling the ecological role and trophic relationships of uncommon and threatened elasmobranchs in the western Mediterranean Sea. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 539: 225–240. https://doi.org/10.3354/meps11494.



Başçınar N.S. and Sağlam H. (2009) Feeding habits of black scorpionfish *Scorpaena porcus*, in the South-Eastern Black Sea. Turk. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci., 9: 99-103.

Battaglia P., Musolino S., Esposito V., et al. (2014) Feeding habits of juvenile fishes belonging to three medusivorous species (Centrolophidae and Nomeidae) from the Strait of Messina (central Mediterranean Sea). Mar. Biol. Res., 10: 927–933.

Battaglia P., Andaloro F., Consoli P., et al. (2013) Feeding habits of the Atlantic bluefin tuna, *Thunnus thynnus* (L. 1758), in the central Mediterranean Sea (Strait of Messina). Helgol. Mar. Res., 67: 97–107.

Bell J.D. and Harmelin-Vivien M.L. (1983) Fish fauna of French Mediterranean *Posidonia oceanica* seagrass meadows. 2. Feeding habits. Tethys, 11: 1-14.

Bello G. (1993) Stomach content of a specimen of *Stenella coeruleoalba* (Cetacea: Delphinidae) from the Ionian Sea. Soc. Ital. Sci. Nat. Museo Civ. Storia Nat., 133: 41-48.

Bello G. (1991) Role of Cephalopods in the Diet of the Swordfish, *Xiphias gladius*, from the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Bullet. Mar. Sci., 49(1-2): 312-324.

Belluscio A., Scacco U., Colloca F., et al. (2000) Feeding strategies of two species of demersal Chondrichthyans, *Galeus melastomus* (Rafinesque, 1810) and *Etmopterus spinax* (Linnaeus, 1758), in the Central Tyrrhenian Sea. Biol. Mar. Mediterr., 7(1): 417-426.

Bergstad O.A. (1991) Distribution and trophic ecology of some gadoid fish of the Norwegian Deep. 1. Accounts of individual species. Sarsia, 75: 269-313.

Bergstrom O. (1985) Aspects of natural foraging by *Sepietta oweniana* (Mollusca, Cepalophoda). Ophelia, 24(1): 65-74.

Bernardez C., Freire J., Gonzalez-Gurriaran E. (2000) Feeding of the spider crab *Maja squinado* in rocky subtidal areas of the Ria de Arousa (north-west Spain). J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 80: 95-102.

Berthon J. (1987) Relations trophiques entre quelques espèces d'échinodermes et le phytobenthos dans la baie de Port-Cros (Var, France).

Beverton RJH, Holt SJ (1957) On the dynamics of exploited fish populations. Fish Invest Minist Agric Fish Food G B Ser II 19.533p



Blanco C., Raduán A.M., Raga J.A. (2006) Diet of Risso's dolphin (*Grampus griseus*) in the western Mediterranean Sea. Sci. Mar., 70(3): 407-411.

Blanco C., Salomón O., Raga J.A. (2001) Diet of the bottlenose dolphin (*Tursiops truncatus*) in the Western Mediterranean Sea. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 81: 1053-1058.

Borme D., Tirelli V., Palomera I. (2013) Feeding habits of European pilchard late larvae in a nursery area in the Adriatic Sea. J. Sea Res., 78: 8–17.

Borme D., Tirelli V., Brandt S.B., et al. (2009) Diet of *Engraulis encrasicolus* in the northern Adriatic Sea (Mediterranean): ontogenetic changes and feeding selectivity. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 392: 193-209.

Boudaya L., Neifar L., Taktak A., et al. (2007) Diet of *Chelidonichthys obscurus* and *Chelidonichthys lastoviza* (Pisces: Triglidae) from the Gulf of Gabes (Tunisia). J. Appl. Ichthyol., 23: 646–653.

Bozzano A., Recasens L., Sartor P. (1997) Diet of the european hake *Merluccius merluccius* (Pisces: Merluciidae) in the Western Mediterranean (Gulf of Lions). Sci. Mar., 61: 1-8.

Brey T. (2001) Population dynamics in benthic invertebrates. A virtual handbook. Version 01.2. http://www.thomas-brey.de/science/virtualhandbook

Bradai M., Ghorbel M., Jarboui O., et al. (1998) Feeding habits of *Spondyliosoma cantharus, Diplodus puntazzo* and *Diplodus vulgaris* (Teleostei, Sparidae) in the Gulf of Gabes Tunisia. Rapport de la Commission Internationale de la Mer Méditerranée no. 35, 380–381.

Bradai M.N. and Bouain A. (1990) Régime alimentaire de *Scorpaena porcus* et de *S. scrofa* (Teleostei, Scorpaenidae) du Golfe de Gabès, Tunisie. Cybium, 14: 207-216.

Brando V.A., Ceccarelli R., Libralato S., et al. (2004) Assessment of environmental management effects in a shallow water basin using mass-balance models. Ecol. Model., 172: 213–232.

Butler M., Bollens S.M., Burkhalter B., et al. (2001) Mesopelagic fishes of the Arabian Sea: Distribution, abundance and diet of *Chauliodus pammelas, Chauliodus sloani, Stomias affinis*, and *Stomias nebulosus*. Deep-Sea Res. Part II, 48: 1369–1383.

Cabral E.N., Lopes M., Loeper R. (2002) Trophic niche overlap between flatfishes in a nursery area on the Portuguese coast. Sci. Mar., 66(3): 293-300.



Cabral H.N., Murta A.G. (2002) The diet of blue whiting, hake, horse mackerel and mackerel off Portugal. J. Appl. Ichthyol. 18:14-23.

Cabral H.N. (2000) Comparative feeding ecology of sympatric *Solea solea* and *S. senegalensis*, within the nursery areas of the Tagus estuary, Portugal. J. Fish Biol., 57(6): 1550-1562.

Cammen L.M. (1980) Ingestion rate: an empirical model for aquatic deposit feeders and detritovores. Oecologia, 44: 303-310.

Campo D., Mostarda E., Castriota L., et al. (2006) Feeding habits of the Atlantic bonito, *Sarda sarda* (Bloch, 1793) in the southern Tyrrhenian sea. Fish. Res., 81: 169-175.

Canepa A., Fuentes V., Sabatés A., et al. (2014) *Pelagia noctiluca* in the Mediterranean Sea. In: Jellyfish Blooms, Vol. 9789400770. Springer Netherlands, Dordrecht, pp 237–266.

Capezzuto F., Ancona F., Calculli C., et al. (2020) Feeding of the deep-water fish *Helicolenus dactylopterus* (Delaroche, 1809) in different habitats: from muddy bottoms to cold-water coral habitats. Deep-Sea Research Part I, 159: 10325, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dsr.2020.103252

Cardinale M.F., Colloca F., Ardizzone G.D. (1997) Feeding ecology of Mediterranean razorfish *Xyrichthys novacula* in the Tyrrhenian Sea (Central Mediterranean Sea). J. Appl. Ichthyol., 13(3): 105-111.

Carlucci R, Cipriano G, Paoli C, et al. (2018) Random Forest population modelling of striped and common bottlenose dolphins in the Gulf of Taranto (Northern Ionian Sea, Central-eastern Mediterranean Sea). Estuar. Coast. Shelf Sci., 204: 177-192.

Carlucci R., Capezzuto F., Maiorano P., et al. (2009) Distribution, population structure and dynamics of the black anglerfish (*Lophius budegassa*) (Spinola, 1987) in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Fish. Res., 95: 76–87.

Carlucci, R., Capezzuto, F., Cipriano, G., D'Onghia, G., Fanizza, C., Libralato, S., et al., 2020. Assessment of cetacean-fishery interactions in the marine food web of the Gulf of Taranto (Northern Ionian Sea, Central Mediterranean Sea). Rev. Fish Biol. Fish. 10.1007/s11160-020-09623-x

Carpentieri, P., Serpetti, N., Colloca, F., et al. (2016) Food preferences and rhythms of feeding activity of two co-existing demersal fish, the longspine snipefish, *Macroramphosus scolopax*



(Linnaeus, 1758), and the boarfish *Capros aper* (Linnaeus, 1758), on the Mediterranean deep shelf. Mar. Ecol., 37: 106–118.

Carpentieri P., Colloca F., Ardizzone G. (2007) Rhythms of feeding activity and food consumption of two Mediterranean burrowing fishes: *Gnathophis mystax* (Delaroche) and *Chlopsis bicolor* Rafinesque. Mar. Ecol., 28: 487–495.

Carpentieri P, Colloca F, Belluscio A, et al. (2006) Diel feeding periodicity and daily ration of shelf break species. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 86(04): 853 – 860.

Carrassón M. and Matallanas J. (2002) Diets of deep-sea macrourid fishes in the western Mediterranean. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 234:215–228.

Carrassón M., Matallanas J., Casadevall M. (1997) Feeding strategies of deep-water morids on the western Mediterranean slope. Deep-Sea Res I, 44: 9-10.

Cartes J.E. (1995) Diets of, and trophic resources exploited by, bathyal penaeoidean shrimps from the western Mediterranean. Mar. Freshw. Res., 46: 889-96.

Cartes J.E., Abello P. (1992) Feeding of Mediterranean polychelid lobsters. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 84: 139-150.

Cartes J.E. (1993a) Diets of deep-sea brachyuran crabs in the Western Mediterranean Sea. Mar. Biol., 117: 449-457.

Cartes J.E. (1993b) Diets of two deep-sea decapdos: *Nematocarcinus exilis* (caridea: nematocarcinidae) and *Munida tenuimana* (Anomura: Galatheidae) on the western mediterranean slope. Ophelia, 37(3): 213-229.

Cartes J.E. (1993c) Diets of deep-water pandalid shrimps on the Western Mediterranean Slope. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 96: 49-61.

Cartes J.E. (1993d) Feeding habits of pasiphaeid shrimps close to the bottom on the Western Mediterranean slope. Mar. Biol., 117: 459-468.

Casadevall M., Matallanas J., Bartolv T. (1994) Feeding habits of *Ophichthus rufus* (Anguilliformes, Ophichthidae) in the western Mediterranean. Cybium, 18: 431-440.



Casadevall M., Matallanas J. (1990) Feeding habits of *Gnathophis mystax* (Delaroche, 1809), (Anguilliformes, Congridae) in the western Mediterranean. J. Fish Biol., 37: 827-829.

Casale P., Simone G., Conoscitore C., et al. (2012) The Gulf of Manfredonia: a new neritic foraging area for loggerhead sea turtles in the Adriatic Sea. Acta Herpetologica, 7(1): 1-12.

Casale P., Abbate G., Freggi D., et al. (2008) Foraging ecology of loggerhead sea turtles *Caretta caretta* in the central Mediterranean Sea: evidence for a relaxed life history model. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 372: 265–276.

Casale P., Mazaris A.D., Freggi D., et al. (2007) Survival probabilities of loggerhead sea turtles (*Caretta caretta*) estimated from capture-mark-recapture data in the Mediterranean Sea. Sci. Mar., 71(2): 365-372.

Castro JJ and Hernandez-Garcìa V. (1995) Ontogenetic changes in mouth structures, foraging behaviour and habitat use of *Scomber japonicus* and *Illex coindetii*. Sci. Mar., 59(3-4): 347-355.

Castro B.G. and Guerra A. (1990) The diet of *Sepia officinalis* (Linnaeus, 1758) and *Sepia elegans* (D'Orbigny, 1835) (Cephalopoda, Sepioidea) from the Ría de Vigo (NW Spain). Sci. Mar., 54: 375-388.

Childress J.J., Taylor S.M., Cailliet G.M., et al. (1980) Patterns of growth, energy utilization and reproduction in some meso- and bathypelagic fishes off southern California. Mar. Biol., 61: 27-40.

Civitarese, G., Gačić, M., Lipizer, M., & Eusebi Borzelli, G. L. (2010). On the impact of the Bimodal Oscillating System (BiOS) on the biogeochemistry and biology of the Adriatic and Ionian Seas (Eastern Mediterranean). Biogeosciences, 7(12), 3987-3997.

Coelho M., Domingues P., Balguerias E., et al. (1996) A comparative study of the diet of *Loligo vulgaris* (Lamarck, 1799) (Mollusca: Cephalopoda) from the south coast of Portugal and the Saharan Bank (Central-East Atlantic). Fish. Res., 29(I 997): 245-255.

Coll M., Santojanni A., Palomera I., Tudel S., Arneri E. (2007) An ecosystem model of the Northern and Central Adriatic Sea: analysis of ecosystem structure and fishing impacts. J. Mar. Syst., 67: 119–154.



Colloca F., Cardinale M., Ardizzone G.D. (1997) Biology, spatial distribution and population dynamics of *Lepidotrigla cavillone* (Pisces: Triglidae) in the Central Tyrrhenian Sea. Fish. Res., 32: 21-32.

Coma, R., Gili, J., Zabala, M. (1995) Trophic ecology of a benthic marine hydroid, *Campanularia everta*. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 119: 211–220.

Consoli P, Battaglia P, Castriota L, et al. (2010) Age, growth and feeding habits of the bluemouth rockfish, *Helicolenus dactylopterus dactylopterus* (Delaroche 1809) in the central Mediterranean (southern Tyrrhenian Sea). J. Appl. Ichthyol., 26: 583–591.

Cortes E. (1999) Standardized diet compositions and trophic levels of sharks. ICES J Mari Sci 56:707-717

Costa, M.J., 1988. Écologie alimentaire des poissons de l'estuarie du Tage. Cybium 12(4):301-320.

Cristo M. and Cartes J.E. (1998) A comparative study of the feeding ecology of *Nephrops norvegicus* L. (Decapoda: Nephropidae) in the bathyal Mediterranean and the adjacent Atlantic. Sci. Mar., 62(Suppl. 1): 81-90.

D'Onghia G, Sion L, Maiorano P, et al. (2006) Population biology and life strategies of *Chlorophthalmus agassizii* Bonaparte, 1840 (Pisces: Osteichthyes) in the Mediterranean Sea. Mar. Biol., 149: 435-446.

D'Onghia G., Mastrototaro F., Maiorano P. (2000) Biology of silver scabbard fish, *Lepidopus caudatus* (Trichiuridae), from the Ionian Sea (Eastern-Central Mediterranean). Cybium, 24(3): 249-262.

Danovaro, R. (1998) Do Bacteria Compete with Phytoplankton for Inorganic Nutrients? Possible Ecological Implications. Chem. and Ecol., 14(2): 83-96.

Deflorio M., Aprea A., Corriero A., et al. (2005) Incidental captures of sea turtles by swordfish and albacore longlines in the Ionian Sea. Fish. Sci., 71: 1010–1018.

Derbal F. and Kara M. (2008) Composition du régime alimentaire du bogue *Boops boops* (Sparidae) dans le golfe d'Annaba (Algérie). Cybium 32: 325–333.



Fabi G., Panfili M., Spagnolo A., et al. (1998) Note on feeding of *Sciaena umbra* (Osteichthyes: Sciaenidae) in the central Adriatic Sea. Rapp. Comm. int Mer Médit. 35: 426–427.

Fanelli E, Badalamenti F, D'Anna G, et al. (2011) Food partitioning and diet temporal variation in two coexisting sparids, *Pagellus erythrinus* and *Pagellus acarne*. J. Fish. Biol., 78: 869-900.

Fanelli, E., Rey, J., Torres, P. et al. (2009a) Feeding habits of blackmouth catshark *Galeus melastomus* Rafinesque, 1810 and velvet belly lantern shark *Etmopterus spinax* (Linnaeus, 1758) in the western Mediterranean. J. Appl. Ichthyol., 25: 83–93.

Fanelli E., Badalamenti F., D'anna G., et al. (2009b) Diet and trophic level of scaldfish *Arnoglossus laterna* in the southern Tyrrhenian Sea (western Mediterranean): trasting trawled versus untrawled areas. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 89(4): 817–828.

Fanelli E., Cartes, J.E., Badalamenti, F., et al. (2009c) Trophodynamics of suprabenthic fauna on coastal muddy bottoms of the southern Tyrrhenian Sea (western Mediterranean). J. Sea Res., 61: 174–187.

Fanelli E. and Cartes J.E. (2004) Feeding habits of pandalid shrimps in the Alboran Sea (SW Mediterranean): influence of biological and environmental factors. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 280: 227–238.

FAO EastMed (2014) A study to investigate the potential exploitation of the venus clam *Chamelea gallina* in Egypt. GCP/INT/041/EC – GRE – ITA/TD-2.

Fasola M., Bogliani G., Saino N., et al. (1989) Foraging, feeding and time-activity niches of eight species of breeding seabirds in the coastal wetlands of the Adriatic Sea. Boll. Zool., 56: 61-72.

Fauchald K, Jumars PA (1979) The diet of worms: a study of Polychaete feeding guilds. Oceanogr. Mar. Biol. Ann. Rev., 17: 193-284.

Filiz H. and Toğulga M. (2009) Age and growth, reproduction and diet of the black goby, (*Gobius niger*) from Aegean Sea, Turkey. J. Fish. Sci., 3: 243–265.

Follesa M.C., Mulas, A., Cabiddu, S., et al. (2010) Diet and feeding habits of two skate species, *Raja brachyura* and *Raja miraletus* (Chondrichthyes, Rajidae) in Sardinian waters (Central-western Mediterranean). Italian J. Zool., 77: 53–60.



Frantzis A., Berthon J., Maggiore F. (1988) Relations trophiques entre les oursins *Arbacia lixula* et *Paracentrotus lividus* et le phytobenthos infralittoral dans la baie de Port-Cros. Sci. Report Port-Cros Nat. Park 14: 81–140.

Freire J (1996) Feeding ecology of *Liocarcinus depurator* (Decapoda: Portunidae) in the Ría de Arousa (Galicia, north-western Spain): effects of habitat, season and life history. Mar. Biol., 126: 297-311.

Froese R.J. and Pauly D. (2008) Fishbase. World wide web electronic publication. Available from http://www.fishbase.org.

Froglia C. and Giannini S. (1989) Field observations on diel rhythms in catchability and feeding of *Squilla mantis* (L.) (Crustacea, Stomatopoda) in the Adriatic Sea. In: in: E.A. Ferrero (ed.), Biology of Stomatopods. Selected Symposia and Monographs U.Z.I., Vol. 3. Mucchi, pp 221–228.

Froglia C. (1988) Food preferences of juvenile Red mullet *Mullus barbatus* in Western Adriatic nursery ground (Osteichthyes: Mullidae) Rapp. Comm. int. Mer Medit., 31(2): 263.

Froglia C. (1973) Osservazioni sull'alimentazione del merluzzo (*Merluccius merluccius* L.) del medio Adriatico. Atti V. Congr. Naz.Coc. It. Biol. Mar., Ed. Salentina nardo, 327-341.

Garibaldi F. and Podestà M. (2014) Stomach contents of a sperm whale (*Physeter macrocephalus*) stranded in Italy (Ligurian Sea, north-western Mediterranean). J. Mar. Biol. Ass. UK, 94(06): 1087-1091.

Gorelova T.A. and Krasil'nikova N.A. (1990) On the diet of *Maurolicus muelleri* in the vicinity of Seamounts Discovery, Nasca, and Mt. Africana. J. Ichthyol., 30(7): 42-52.

Greze I.I. (1968) Feeding habits and food requirements of some amphipods in the Black Sea. Mar. Biol., 1: 316–321.

Guerao G. and Ribera C. (1996) Locomotor Activity Patterns and Feeding Habits in the Prawn *Palaemon serratus* (Pennant, 1777) (Decapoda, Palaemonidae) in the Alfacs Bay, Ebro Delta, Spain.

Barańska A. (2008) What is the diet of *Palaemon elegans* Rathke, 1837 (Crustacea, Decapoda), a non-indigenous species in the Gulf of Gdańsk (southern Baltic Sea)? Oceanologia, 50 (2): 221–237



Guerra A. and Rocha F. (1994) The life history of *Loligo vulgaris* and *Loligo forbesi* (Cephalopoda: Loliginidae) in Galician waters (NW Spain). Fish. Res., 21(1-2): 43-69.

Guidetti, P., Verginella, L., Viva, C., Odorico, R., & Boero, F. (2005). Protection effects on fish assemblages, and comparison of two visual-census techniques in shallow artificial rocky habitats in the northern Adriatic Sea. Marine Biological Association of the United Kingdom. Journal of the Marine Biological Association of the United Kingdom, 85(2), 247.

Halpin P.N., Read A.J., Fujioka E. et al. (2009) OBIS-SEAMAP: The world data center for marine mammal, sea bird and sea turtle distributions. Oceanography, 22(2): 104-115.

Harmelin-Vivien M.L., Kaim-Malka R.A., Ledoyer M., et al. (1989) Food partitioning among scorpaenid fishes in Mediterranean seagrass beds. J. Fish. Biol., 34: 715-734.

Heymans S. (2005) Ecosystem models of the western and central Aleutian Islands in 1963, 1979 and 1991. In: Guénette S, Christensen V (eds) Foodweb models and data for studying fisheries and environmental impact on Eastern Pacific ecosystems. Fisheries Centre, The University of British Columbia, Vancouver, pp 8–82

Heymans, J. J., Coll, M., Libralato, S., Morissette, L., & Christensen, V. (2014). Global patterns in ecological indicators of marine food webs: a modelling approach. PloS one, 9(4), e95845.

Heymans, J. J., Coll, M., Link, J. S., Mackinson, S., Steenbeek, J., Walters, C., & Christensen, V. (2016). Best practice in Ecopath with Ecosim food-web models for ecosystem-based management. Ecological modelling, 331, 173-184.

Hopkins T.L., Sutton T.T., Lancraft T.M. (1996) The trophic structure and predation impact of a low latitude midwater fish assemblage. Prog. Oceanog., 38: 205-239.

Hopkins T.L. and Baird R.C. (1985) Feeding ecology of four hatchetfishes (Sternoptychidae) in the eastern Gulf of Mexico. Bull. Mar. Sci., 36: 260-277.

ICCAT (2010) Collective Volume of Scientific Papers—International Commission for the Conservation of Atlantic Tunas. ICCAT, Madrid

Jardas I., Šantić M., Pallaoro A. (2004) Diet composition and feeding intensity of horse mackerel, *Trachurus trachurus* (Osteichthyes: Carangidae) in the eastern Adriatic. Mar. Biol., 144: 1051–1056.



Jukic S. (1972) Nutrition of the hake (*Merluccius merluccius*), bogue (*Boops boops*), striped mullet (*Mullus barbatus*) and pandora (*Pagellus erythrinus*) in the Bay of KaÅ_itela. Acta Adriat 14:3-40

Jukic-Peladic, S., Vrgoc, N., Krstulovic-Sifner, S., Piccinetti, C., Piccinetti-Manfrin, G., Marano, G., & Ungaro, N. (2001). Long-term changes in demersal resources of the Adriatic Sea: comparison between trawl surveys carried out in 1948 and 1998. Fisheries research, 53(1), 95-104.

Kadri H., Saïdi B., Marouani S., et al. (2013) Food habits of the rough ray *Raja radula* (Chondrichthyes: Rajidae) from the Gulf of Gabès (central Mediterranean Sea). Italian J. Zool., 80: 52–59.

Kapiris K. and Thessalou-Legaki M. (2011) Feeding ecology of the deep-water blue–red shrimp *Aristeus antennatus* (Decapoda: Aristeidae) in the Greek Ionian Sea (E. Mediterranean). J. Sea Res., 65: 151-160.

Kapiris K., Thessalou-Legaki M., Petrakis G., et al. (2010). Ontogenetic shifts and temporal changes the trophic patterns of deep-sea red shrimp *A. foliacea* (Decapods, Aristeidae) in the E. Ionian Sea (E. Mediterranean). Mar. Ecol., 31(2): 341-354.

Kapiris K. (2004) Feeding ecology of *Parapenaeus longirostris* (Lucas, 1846) (Decapoda: Penaeidae) from the Ionian Sea (Central and Eastern Mediterranean Sea). Sci. Mar., 68: 247-256.

Karakulak F.S., Salman A., Oray I.K. (2009) Diet composition of bluefin tuna (*Thunnus thynnus* L. 1758) in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Turkey J. Appl. Ichthyol., 25: 757–761.

Khoury C. (1984) Ethologies alimentaires de quelques espèces de poisons de l'herbier de Posidonies du Parc National de Port-Cros. In Boudouresque CF, Jeudy de Grissac A, Olivier J (eds) International Workshop Posidonia Oceanica Beds, GIS Posidonie Publications, France 1, pp 335-347

Kitsos M.S., Tzomos, T., Anagnostopoulou, L. et al. (2008a) Diet composition of the seahorses, *Hippocampus guttulatus* Cuvier, 1829 and *Hippocampus hippocampus* (L., 1758) (Teleostei, Syngnathidae) in the Aegean Sea. J. Fish Biol., 72: 1259–1267.

Kitsos M.S., et al. (2008b) Diet Composition of the Pandalid Shrimp, *Plesionika Narval* (Fabricius, 1787) (Decapoda, Pandalidae) in the Aegean Sea. Crustaceana, 81(1): 23–33.



Labropoulou M. and Eleftheriou A. (1997) The foraging ecology of two pairs of congeneric demersal fish species: importance of morphological characteristics in prey selection. J Fish Biol., 50: 324-340.

Labropoulou M. and Machias A. (1998) Effect of habitat selection on the dietary patterns of two triglid species. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 173: 275-288.

Laran S., Joiris C., Gannier A., et al. (2010) Seasonal estimates of densities and predation rates of cetaceans in the Ligurian Sea, northwestern Mediterranean Sea: an initial examination. J. Cetacean Res. Manage., 11(1): 31-40.

Lazzari P, Solidoro C, Ibello V, Salon S, Teruzzi A, Béranger K, Colella S, Crise A (2012) Seasonal and inter-annual variability of plankton chlorophyll and primary production in the Mediterranean Sea: a modelling approach. Biogeosciences 9:217-233

Lelli S., Belluscio, A., Carpentieri, P. et al. (2005) Ecologia trofica di *llex coindetti* e *Todaropsis eblanae* (Cephalopoda:Ommastrephidae) nel Mar Tirreno centrale. Biol. Mar. Mediterr., 12: 531–534.

Libralato, S., Coll, M., Tempesta, M., Santojanni, A., Spoto, M., Palomera, I., ... & Solidoro, C. (2010). Food-web traits of protected and exploited areas of the Adriatic Sea. Biological Conservation, 143(9), 2182-2194.

Lomiri S., Scacco U., Mostarda E., et al. (2008) Size-related and temporal variation in the diet of the round sardinella, *Sardinella aurita* (Valenciennes, 1847), in the central Mediterranean Sea. J. Appl. Ichthyol., 24: 539–545.

Longo C., Colloca F., Carpentieri P., et al. (2005) Strategie adattative e segregazione trofica tra *Argentina sphyraena* e *Glossanodon leioglossus* (Teleostea, Argentinidae). Biol. Mar. Medit., 12(1): 540-543.

Lopez S. (2013) L'ecosistema del Mar Tirreno: aspetti strutturali, funzionali, effetti della pesca e delle interazioni trofiche. PhD Thesis, University of Rome "La Sapienza". http://hdl.handle.net/11573/768393;



Mackinson S. and Daskalov G. (2007) An ecosystem model of the North Sea for use in research supporting the ecosystem approach to fisheries management: Description and parameterisation. Cefas Science Series Technical Report, pp 142

Macpherson E. (1981) Resource partitioning in a Mediterranean demersal fish community. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 4: 183-193.

Macpherson E. (1979) Relations trophiques des poisons dans la Méditerranée occidentale. Rapp. Comm. Int. Explor. Sci. Mer. Méditerr., 25/26: 49-58.

Madurell T. and Cartes J.E. (2005) Trophodynamics of a deep-sea demersal fish assemblage from the bathyal eastern Ionian Sea (Mediterranean Sea). Deep-Sea Res. I, 52: 2049-2064.

Maglietta R., Renò V., Cipriano G., et al. (2018) DolFin: an innovative digital platform for studying Risso's dolphins in the Northern Ionian Sea (North-eastern Central Mediterranean). Sci. Rep., 8: 171-85.

Maiorano P., Sion L., Carlucci R., et al. (2010) The demersal faunal assemblage of the NW Ionian Sea (Central Mediterranean): current knowledge and perspectives. Chem. and Ecol., 26: 219–240.

Malej A. (1989) Behaviour and trophic ecology of the jellyfish *Pelagia noctiluca* (Forsskaal, 1775). J. Exp. Mar. Biol. Ecol., 126(3): 259–270.

Mannini P., Massa F. (2000) Brief overview of Adriatic fisheries landing trends (197297). In: F. Massa and P. Mannini (eds), Report of the First Meeting of the AdriaMed Coordination Committee. FAO MiPAF Scientific Cooperation to Support Responsible Fisheries in the Adriatic Sea. GCP/RER/010/ITA/TD01: 3149.

Martinho, F., Sá, C., Falcão, J., et al. (2012) Comparative feeding ecology of two elasmobranch species, *Squalus blainvile* and *Scyliorhinus canicula*, off the coast of Portugal. Fish. Bull., 110: 71–84.

Maynou F. and Cartes J.E. (1998) Daily ration estimates and comparative study of food consumption in nine species of deep-water decapod crustaceans of the NW Mediterranean. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 171: 221-231.

Megalofonu P. and Chatzispyrou A. (2006) Sexual maturity and feeding of the gulper shark, *Centrophorus granulosus*, from the eastern Mediterranean Sea. Cybium, 30(4): 67-74.



Merz G. and Myers R.A. (1998) A simplified formulation for fish production. Can. J. Fisheries Aquatic. Sci., 55(2): 478–484.

Meyer M. and Smale M.J. (1991) Predation patterns of demersal teleosts from the Cape south and west coasts of South Africa.1. Pelagic predators. S. Afr. J. mar. Sci., 11: 173-191.

Mili S., Bouriga N., Ennouri R., et al. (2013). Food and biochemical composition of the spot-tail mantis shrimp *Squilla mantis* caught in three Tunisian Gulfs: Tunis, Hammamet and Gabes. Cah. Biol. Mar., 54: 271-280.

Milić D. (2012) Biological and ecological characteristics of whiting (*Merlangius merlangus*, L.) in the Adriatic Sea. PhD thesis, University of Zagreb, Faculty of Science, Department of Geology, 135 pp.

Milisenda G., Rosa S., Fuentes V.L., et al. (2014) Jellyfish as prey: Frequency of predation and selective foraging of *Boops boops* (vertebrata, actinopterygii) on the mauve stinger Pelagia *noctiluca* (cnidaria, scyphozoa). PLoS ONE, 9: e94600.

Mirto S., La Rosa T., Mocciaro G., et al. (2004) Meiofauna and benthic microbial biomass in semienclosed Mediterranean marine system (Stagnone of Marsala). Italy. Chem. and Ecol., 20 (1): 387-396.

Molinero A. and Flos R. (1991) Influence of sex and age on the feeding habits of the common sole *Solea solea*. Mar. Biol. 111, 493-501.

Morato T., Solà E., Grós MP, et al. (2001) Feeding habits of two congener species of seabreams, *Pagellus bogaraveo* and *P. acarne*, off the Azores (Northeastern Atlantic) during spring of 1996 and 1997. Bull. Mar. Sci., 69(3): 1073-1087.

Morato T., Solà E., Grós M.P., et al. (1999) Diets of forkbeard (*Phycis phycis*) and conger eel (*Conger conger*) off the Azores during spring of 1996 and 1997. Life Mar. Sci., 17A: 51-64.

Moreno-Amich R. (1992) Feeding habits of red gurnard, *Aspitrigla cuculus* (L. 1758) (Scorpaeniformes, Triglidae), along the Catalan coast (Northwestern Mediterranean). Hydrobiologia 228:175-184.

Moreno-Amich R. (1994) Feeding habits of grey gurnard, *Eutrigla gurnardus* (L., 1758), along the Catalan coast (Northwestern Mediterranean). Hydrobiologia 273, 57-66.



Moreno T. and Castro, J.J. (1995) Community structure of the juvenile of coastal pelagic fish species in the Canary Islands waters. Sci. Mar., 59, 405-413.

Morote E., Olivar M.P., Villate F. et al. (2008) Diet of round sardinella, *Sardinella aurita*, larvae in relation to plankton availability in the NW Mediterranean. J. Plank Res., 30: 807–816.

Morte M.S., Redon M.J., Sanz-Brau A. (1997) Feeding habits of juvenile *Mustelus mustelus* (Carcharhiniformes, Triakidae) in the western Mediterranean. Cah. Biol. Mar., 38: 103-107.

Morte M.S., Redòn M.J., Sanz-Brau A. (2002) Diet of *Phycis blennoides* in relation to fish size and season in the Western Mediterranean (Spain). Mar. Ecol., 23(2): 141-155.

Morte, S., Redon, M., Sanz-Brau A. (2001) Diet of *Scorpaena porcus* and *Scorpaena notata* (Pisces: Scorpaenidae) in the western Mediterranean. Cah. Biol. Mar., 42: 333–344.

Morte, S., Redon, M.J. and Sanz-Brau, A. (1999a) Feeding habits of *Trachinus draco* off the eastern coast of Spain (western Mediterranean). Vie et Milieu, 49: 287–291.

Morte S, Redon MJ, Sanz-Brau A (1999b) Feeding ecology of two megrims *Lepidorhombus boscii* and *Lepidorhombus whiffiagonis* in the western Mediterranean (Gulf of Valencia, Spain). J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 79: 161-169.

Moutopoulos D.K., Libralato S., Solidoro C., et al. (2013) Toward an ecosystem approach to fisheries in the Mediterranean Sea: Multi-gear/multi-species implications from an ecosystem model of the Greek Ionian Sea. J. Mar. Syst., 113–114: 13–28.

Mulas A., Bellodi A., Cannas R., et al. (2019) Resource partitioning among sympatric elasmobranchs in the central western Mediterranean continental shelf. Mar. Biol., 166: 153. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00227-019-3607-0.

Mulas, A., Bellodi, A., Cannas, R., et al. (2015) Diet and feeding behaviour of longnosed skate *Dipturus oxyrinchus*. Journal of Fish Biology 86, 121–138.

Nagy K.A., (1878) Field methabolic rate and food requirement scaling in mammals and birds. Ecol. Monogr., 57: 111-127.



Navarro J., Coll M., Preminger M. et al. (2013) Feeding ecology and trophic position of a Mediterranean endemic ray: Consistency between sexes, maturity stages and seasons. Env. Biol. Fish., 96: 1315–1328.

Nikolioudakis N., Isari S., Pitta P., et al. (2012) Diet of sardine Sardina pilchardus: an 'end-to-end' field study. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 453: 173–188.

O'Sullivan S., Moriarit C., Davenport J. (2004) Analysis of the stomach contents of the European conger eel *Conger conger* in Irish waters. J. Mar. Biol. Ass. UK, 84(4): 823-826.

Olaso I., Rodriguez-Marin E. (1995) Alimentación de veinte especies de peces demersales pertenecientes a la división VIIIc del ICES. Otoño 1991. Informes Técnicos, Centro Oceanográfico de Santander, Instituto Español de Oceanografía, pp 56

Opitz S. (1996) Trophic interactions in Caribbean coral reefs, ICLARM. International Center for Living Aquatic Resources Management, Manila.

Ouannes-Ghorbel A., Jarboui O., Bradai M., et al. (2005) Régime alimentaire de *Symphodus (crenilabrus) cinereus* (Bonnaterre, 1788) des côtes de la région du golfe de Gabès (Tunisie). Bull. Mus. Hist. Nat. Marseille, 61: 17–22.

Pakhomov E.A., Perissinotto R., McQuaid C.D.I. (1996) Prey composition and daily rations of myctophid fishes in the Southern Ocean. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 134: 1-14.

Pauly D., Trites A.W., Capuli E., et al. (1998) Diet composition and trophic levels of marine mammals. ICES J. Mar., Sci., 55: 467–481.

Pauly D. (1980) On the interrelationships between natural mortality, growth parameters, and mean environmental temperature in 175 fish stocks. J. Cons. Int. Explo.r Mer., 39: 175-192.

Pauly D, Christensen V, Sambilay V (1990) Some features of fish food consumption estimates used by ecosystem modellers. ICES CM/G:17, pp 8

Pearson M. and Gage J.D. (1984) Diets of some deep-sea brittle stars in the Rockall Trough. Mar. Biol., 82: 247–258.

Pierce G.J., Boyle P.R., Hastie L.C., et al. (1994) Diets of squid *Loligo forbesi* and *Loligo vulgaris* in the northeast Atlantic. Fish. Res., 21: 149–163.



Piroddi C., Coll M., Liquete C., et al (2017) Historical changes of the Mediterranean Sea ecosystem: modelling the role and impact of primary productivity and fisheries changes over time. Sci. Rep., 7: 44491. doi:10.1038/srep44491

Piroddi C., Coll M., Steenbeek J., et al. (2015) Modelling the Mediterranean marine ecosystem as a whole: Addressing the challenge of complexity. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 533: 47–65.

Piroddi, C., Bearzi, G., Christensen, V. (2010). Effects of local fisheries and ocean productivity on the northeastern Ionian Sea ecosystem. Ecol. Model., 221:1526–1544.

Podrazhanskaya S.G. (1993) Feeding habits of mesopelagic species of fish and estimation of plankton graze in the Northwest Atlantic. NAFO Sci. Coun. Studies, 19:79–85

Polunin N.V.C., Morales-Nin B., Pawsey W.E., et al. (2001) Feeding relationships in Mediterranean bathyal assemblages elucidated by stable nitrogen and carbon isotope data. Marine Ecol. Progr. Ser., 220: 13–23.

Prato E., Pastore M., Parlapiano I., et al. (2010) Alimentazione e predazione in natura di *Melicertus kerathurus*. 25 e 26 novembre 2010 Legnano Padova - Convegno - La risorsa Crostacei nel Mediterraneo: ricerca, produzione e mercato.

Quetglas A., Alemany F., Carbonell A., et al. (1998) Biology and fishery of *Octopus vulgaris* Cuvier, 1797, caught by trawlers in Mallorca (Balearic Sea, Western Mediterranean). Fish. Res., 36: 237-249.

Quetglas A., de Mesa A., Ordines F., et al. (2010) Life history of the deep-sea cephalopod family Histioteuthidae in the western Mediterranean. Deep-Sea Res. I, 57: 999–1008.

Quetglas A., Ordines F., Gonzalez M., et al. (2009) Life history of the bathyal octopus *Pteroctopus tetracirrhus* (Mollusca, Cephalopoda) in the Mediterranean Sea. Deep-Sea Res. I, 56:1 379–1390.

Quetglas A., Gonzalez M., Franco I. (2005) Biology of the upper-slope cephalopod *Octopus salutii* from the western Mediterranean Sea. Mar. Biol., 146: 1131–1138.

Quetglas A., González M., Carbonell A., et al., (2001) Biology of the deep-sea octopus *Bathypolypus sponsalis* (Cephalopoda: Octopodidae) from the western Mediterranean Sea. Mar. Biol., 138: 785–792.



Quetglas A., Alemany F., Carbonell A., et al. (1999) Diet of the European flying squid *Todarodes sagittatus* (Cephalopoda: Ommastrephidae) in the Balearic Sea (western Mediterranean). J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 79: 479-486.

Raicevich, S. 2008. Discard in the Northern Adriatic Sea multi-gear fishing activities: ecological consequences and implications for mitigation strategies. Presented at "Workshop on discards organized by DGMARE", Brussels, 27–28 May 2008.

Rasero M., Gonzalez A.F., Castro B.G., et al. (1996) Predatory relationships of two sympatric squid, *Todaropsis eblanae* and *Illex coindetii* (Cephalopoda: ommastrephidae) in Galician waters. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 76: 73-87.

Renones O., Polunin N.V.C., Goni R. (2002) Size related dietary shifts of *Epinephelus marginatus* in a western Mediterranean littoral ecosystem: an isotope and stomach content analysis. J. Fish Biol., 61: 122–137.

Ribes M., Coma, R. Gili, J.M. (1999) Natural diet and grazing rate of the temperate sponge *Dysidea avara* (Demospongiae, Dendroceratida) throughout an annual cycle. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 176: 179–190.

Ricci P., Ingrosso M., Carlucci R., et al. (2020) Quantifying the dolphins-fishery competition in the Gulf of Taranto (Northern Ionian Sea, Central Mediterranean Sea). IMEKO TC-19 International Workshop on Metrology for the Sea Naples, Italy, October 5-7, 2020

Ricci P., Libralato S., Capezzuto F. et al (2019) Ecosystem functioning of two marine food webs in the North-Western Ionian Sea (Central Mediterranean Sea). Ecol. Evol., 9: 10198–10212.

Riccioni, G., Stagioni, M., Piccinetti, C., & Libralato, S. (2018). A metabarcoding approach for the feeding habits of European hake in the Adriatic Sea. Ecology and evolution, 8(21), 10435-10447.

Ristow D., Feldmann F., Scharlau W., et al. (1990) Population structure, phylopatry and mortality of Cory's Shearwater *Clonectris d. diomedea*. Die Vogelwelt, 111: 172-181.

Roberts S.M. (2003) Examination of the stomach contents from a Mediterranean sperm whale found south of Crete, Greece. J Mar Biol Ass UK, 83(03): 667-670.

Romanelli M., Consalvo I., Vacchi M., et al. (2006) Diet of *Torpedo torpedo* and *Torpedo marmorata* in a coastal area of Central Western Italy (Mediterranean Sea). Mar. Life, 16: 21-30.



Rosa R., Marques A.M., Nunes M.L., et al. (2004) Spatial-temporal changes in dymetil acetal (octadecanal) levels of *Octopus vulgaris* (Cephalopoda): relation to feeding ecology. Sci. Mar., 68(2): 227-236.

Rosecchi E. (1987) L'alimentation de *Diplodus annularis, Diplodus sargus, Diplodus vulgaris* et *Sparus aurata* (Pisces, Sparidae) dans le Golfe du Lion et les lagunes littorales. Rev trav Inst pêches marit 49 :125-141.

Russo T., E.B. Morello, A. Parisi, G. Scarcella, S Angelini, L. Labanchi, M. Martinelli, L. D'Andrea, A Santojanni, E. Arneri, , S. Cataudella, 2018. A model combining landings and VMS data to estimate landings by fishing ground and harbor. Fisheries Research, 199, 218-230

Sabatés, A., Pagès, F., Atienza, D., et al. (2010) Planktonic cnidarian distribution and feeding of *Pelagia noctiluca* in the NW Mediterranean Sea. Hydrobiologia, 645: 153–165.

Sala E. and Ballesteros E. (1997) Partitioning of space and food resources by three fish genus *Diplodus* (Sparidae) in a Mediterranean rocky infralittoral ecosystem. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 152: 273-283.

Samir I. (2008) Feeding habits of the Atlantic stargazer fish *Uranoscopus scaber* Linnaeus, 1758 (Family: Uranoscopidae) in Egyptian Mediterranean waters. Egypt J. Aqua. L. Biol. Fish, 12: 1-11.

Šantić M. (2010) Diet of striped sea bream *Lithognathus mormyrus* (Sparidae) from eastern central Adriatic Sea. Cybium, 34(4): 345-352.

Šantić M., Jardas I., Pallaoro A. (2003) Feeding habits of Mediterranean horse mackerel, *Trachurus mediterraneus* (Carangidae), in the central Adriatic Sea. Cybium, 27(4): 247-253.

Šantić M., Jardas I., Pallaoro A. (2005) Feeding habits of horse mackerel, *Trachurus trachurus* (Linneaus, 1758), from the central Adriatic Sea. J. Appl. Ichthyol., 21: 125-130.

Sanz A. (1985) Contribución al estudio de la biología de *Uranoscopus scaber* Linnaeus, 1758 (Osteichthyes, Uranoscopidae) del Mediterráneo occidental. Investigación pesquera, 49: 35-46.

Sever T.M., Bayhan B., Bilecenoglu M., et al. (2006) Diet composition of the juvenile chub mackerel (*Scomber japonicus*) in the Aegean Sea (Izmir Bay, Turkey). J. Appl. Ichthyol., 22: 145-148.



Sifner SK, Vrgoc N (2009) Diet and feeding of the musky octopus, *Eledone moschata*, in the northern Adriatic Sea. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 89(2): 413-419.

Sirotenko M.D. and Sorokalit L.K. (1979) Seasonal changes in the food of the Mediterranean sprat, *Sprattus sprattus phalericus*. J. Ichthyol., 19(5): 37-51.

Smale M.J. (1996) Cephalophods as prey. IV Fishes Phil. Trans. R. Soc. Lond. B, 351: 1067-1081.

Soares M.S.C., Sousa L., Barreiros J.P. (2003) Feeding habits of the lizardfish *Synodus saurus* (Linnaeus, 1758) (Actinopterygii: Synodontidae) from the Azores. Aqua. J. Ichthyol. Aquat. Biol., 7(1): 29-38.

Souplet A. (1996). Calculation of abundance indices and length frequencies in the MEDITS survey. In: J.A. Bertrand et al. (eds), Campagne internationale du chalutage démersal en Méditerraneé. Campagne 1995. EU Final Report, Vol. III.

Stagioni M. (2013) Feeding habits of anglerfish, *Lophius budegassa* (Spinola, 1807) in the Adriatic Sea, north-eastern Mediterranean. J. Appl. Ichthyol., 29: 374–380.

Stagioni M. (2012) Feeding of tub gurnard *Chelidonichthys lucerna* (Scorpaeniformes: Triglidae) in the north-east Mediterranean. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 92(3): 605–612.

Stagioni M., Montanini S., Vallisneri M. (2011) Feeding habits of European hake, *Merluccius Merluccius* (Actinopterygii: Gadiformes: Merlucciidae), from the Northeastern Mediterranean Sea. Acta Ichthyol. Piscat., 41(4): 277–284.

STECF (20-15) Scientific, Technical and Economic Committee for Fisheries: Stock Assessments in the Mediterranean Sea – Adriatic, Ionian and Aegean Seas (STECF-20-15). EUR 28359 EN, Publications Office of the European Union, Luxembourg, 2020, ISBN 978-92-76-27168-0, doi:10.2760/877405, JRC122994.

Stefanescu C. and Cartes J.E. (1992) Benthopelagic habits of adult specimens of *Lampanyctus crocodilus* (Risso 1810) (Osteichthyes, Myctophidae) in the western Mediterranean deep slope. Sci. Mar., 56(1): 69-74.

Stergiou K.I. (1993) Abundance-depth relationship, condition factor and adaptive value of zooplanktophagy of red bandfish, *Cepola macrophthalma*. J. Fish Biol., 42: 645-660.



Stergiou K.I. and Fourtouni H. (1991) Food habits, ontogenetic diet shift and selectivity in *Zeus faber* Linnaeus, 1758. J. Fish Biol., 39: 589-603.

Tecchio S., Coll M., Christensen V., et al. (2013) Food web structure and vulnerability of a deep-sea ecosystem in the NW Mediterranean Sea. Deep-Sea Res. I, 75: 1–15.

Terrats A., Petrakis G., Papacostantinou C. (1999) Feeding habits of *Aspitrigla cuculus* (L., 1758) (red gurnard), *Lepidotrigla cavillone* (Lac., 1802) (large scale gurnard) and *Trigloporus lastoviza* (Brunn., 1768) (rock gurnard) around Cyclades and Dodecanese Islands (E. Mediterranean). Mediterr. Mar. Sci., 1/1: 91-104.

Tomas J., Aznar F.J., Raga J.A. (2001) Feeding ecology of the loggerhead turtle *Caretta caretta* in the western Mediterranean. J. Zool., 255: 525-532.

Trites A.W. and Pauly D. (1998) Estimating mean body masses of marine mammals from maximum body lengths. Can. J. Zool., 76: 886–896.

Tsarin S.A. (1994) Age, growth, and some production characteristics of *Ceratoscopelus warmingii* (Myctophidae) in the tropical zone of the Indian Ocean. J. Ichthyol., 34(6): 59-72.

Tudela S. and Palomera I. (1995) Diel feeding intensity and daily ration in the anchovy *Engraulis encrasicolus* in the northwest Mediterranean Sea during the spawning period. Mar. Ecol. Progr. Ser., 129: 55-61.

Tuncay M.S., Bahar B., Semih L. (2010) Feeding habits of *Cepola macrophthalma* (Pisces: Cepolidae) in Izmir Bay, Aegean Sea. Rapp Comm Int Mer Médit, 39: 598.

Tuncay M.S., Halit F., Bahar B., et al. (2008) Food habits of the hollowsnout grenadier, *Caelorinchus caelorhincus* (Risso, 1810), in the Aegean Sea Turkey. Belg. J. Zool., 138(1): 81-84.

UNEP-MAP-RAC/SPA. 2014. Status and Conservation of Fisheries in the Adriatic Sea. By H. Farrugio & Alen Soldo. Draft internal report for the purposes of the Mediterranean Regional Workshop to Facilitate the Description of Ecologically or Biologically Significant Marine Areas, Malaga, Spain, 7-11 April 2014.

Vannucci S., Mancusi C., Serena F., et al. (2006) Feeding ecology of rays in Ligurian Sea. Biol. Mar. Medit., 13(2): 296-297.



Vassilopoulou V. (2006) Dietary habits of the deep-sea flatfish *Lepidorhombus boscii* in northeastern Mediterranean waters. J. Fish Biol., 69: 1202-1220.

Vinagre C., Silva A., Lara M., et al. (2011) Diet and niche overlap of southern populations of brill *Scophthalmus rhombus* and turbot *Scophthalmus maximus*. J Fish Biol., 79: 1383–1391.

Wells J.M. and Clarke A. (1996) Energetics: the cost of living and reproducing for an individual cephalopod. Philos. Trans. R. Soc. Lond. B Biol. Sci., 351(1343): 1083-1104.

WGSASP-GFCM (2019) Working Group on Stock Assessment of Small Pelagic Species (WGSASP), FAO headquarters, Rome, Italy, 9–14 December 2019. Report, pp. 61.

WGSAD-GFCM (2018) Working Group on Stock Assessment of Demersal Species (WGSAD) FAO headquarters, Rome, Italy, 19–24 November 2018. Report, pp. 79

Würtz M. and Marrale D. (1993) Food of striped dolphin, *Stenella coeruleoalba*, in the Ligurian Sea. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK, 73: 571-578.

Yeldan H., Avsar D., Manasırlı M. (2009) Age, growth and feeding of the common stingray (*Dasyatis pastinaca*, L., 1758) in the Cilician coastal basin, northeastern Mediterranean Sea. J. Appl. Ichthyol., 25(1): 98–102.

Yigin C. and Ismen A. (2010) Age, growth, reproduction and feed of longnosed skate, *Dipturus oxyrinchus* (Linnaeus, 1758) in Saros Bay, the north Aegean Sea. J. Appl. Ichthyol., 26: 913–919.

Zenatello M., Baccetti N., Borghesi F. (2014). Risultati dei censimenti degli uccelli acquatici vernanti in Italia. Distribuzione, stima e trend delle popolazioni nel 2001-2010. ISPRA, Serie Rapporti, 206/2014.

Zghidi W., Ezzeddine-Najai S., Charfi-Cheikhrouha F., et al. (2003) Régime alimentaire du poulpe commun *Octopus vulgaris* Cuvier, 1797. Mar. Life, 13: 45–52.



9 ANNEXES

9.1 A1 Input data and data sources of the Adriatic and Ionian Sea models

| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|--|--|
| <u>1.</u> <u>Seabirds</u> | | Gelochelidon nilotica, Larus spp., Mergus serrator, Phalacrocorax carbo, Podiceps spp., Puffinus velkouan. Sterna spp. |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Zenatello et al., 2014 | 5 |
| P/B (y ⁻¹) | Ristow et al., 1990; Brando et al 2004 | |
| Q/B (y ⁻¹) | Nagy, 1878 | |
| Diet | Fasola et al., 1989; Agnetta et al., 2019; Ricci et al., 2019; Coll et al., 2007 | |
| <u>2.</u> Marine turtles | | Caretta caretta. |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | OBIS Sea Map (Halpin et al. 2009; Deflorio et al., 2005 | Abundance data transformed by means mean individual weight (Deflorio et al. 2005; Casale et al., 2012)) |
| $P/B(y^{-1})$ | Casale et al., 2007 | |
| Q/B (y-1) Diet | Ricci et al., 2019 Tomas et al., 2001; Casale et al., 2008 | |
| <u>3.</u> <u>Mid-large odontocetes</u> | | Grampus griseus, Physeter macrocephalus, Ziphius cavirostris |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Maglietta et al., 2018 | in the Gulf of Taranto; Abundance data transformed by means mean individual weight (Piroddi et al. 2010) |
| P/B (y-1) | Mackinson and Daskalov, 2007; Coll et al., 2007; | |
| Q/B (y-1) | Trites and Pauly, 1998; Laran et al., 2010 Milani et al., 2017: Blanco | |
| Diet | et al., 2006; Roberts, 2003; Garibaldi and Podestà, 2014 | |
| <u>4.</u> <u>Common Bottlenose</u> dolphin | | Tursiops truncatus |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Carlucci et al., 2018 | Monitoring surveys Jonian Dolphin Conservation in the Gulf of Taranto; Abundance data |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|---|---|
| | | transformed by means mean individual weight (Piroddi et al. 2010; Ricci et al., 2020) |
| P/B (y-1) | Mackinson and Daskalov, 2007; Coll et al., 2007 | |
| Q/B (y ⁻¹) | Trites and Pauly, 1998; Laran et al. 2010 | |
| Diet | Milani et al., 2017; Blanco et al., 2001 | |
| <u>5.</u> Strined dolphin | | Stenella coeruleoalba |
| <u>Striped dorphin</u> | | Monitoring surveys Jonian Dolphin Conservation |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Carlucci et al., 2018 | in the Gulf of Taranto; Abundance data transformed by means mean individual weight (Piroddi et al. 2010; Ricci et al., 2020) |
| P/B (y-1) | Mackinson and Daskalov, 2007; Coll et al., 2007 | |
| Q/B (y-1) | Trites and Pauly, 1998; Laran et al., 2010 | |
| Diet | Milani et al., 2017; Bello, 1993; Würtz and Marrale, 1993 | |
| <u>6.</u> Fin whole | | Balaenoptera physalus |
| <u>Fin whate</u> | OBIS Sea Map (Halpin et | Abundance data transformed by means mean |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | al., 2009) | individual weight (Piroddi et al. 2010) |
| P/B (y ⁻¹) | Coll et al., 2007 | |
| Q/B (y-1) | Laran et al., 2010 | |
| Diet | Pauly et al., 1998; Piroddi et al., 2017 | |
| <u>7.</u> Demersal rays & skates_Slope | | Chimaera monstrosa, Dipturus oxyrinchus, Leucoraja circularis, Leucoraja fullonica, Leucoraja melitensis, Mobula mobular, Rhinoptera marginata Tormado nobiliana |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) P/B (y ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Pauly, 1980; Lopez, 2013 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Z=F+M Empirical equation |
| Q/B (y ⁻¹) | Froese and Pauly, 2008; Lopez 2013 | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Macpherson, 1979, 1981; Yıgın and Ismen, 2010; Barrìa et al., 2015; Mulas et al., 2015 | - 1 , |
| <u>8.</u> | | Dasyatis centroura, Dasyatis marmorata, Dasyatis pastinaca, Dasyatis spp., Gymnura altavela, |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|--|--|
| <u>Demersal rays-</u> | | Myliobatis aquila, Pteromylaeus bovinus, |
| <u>skates_Shelf</u> | | Pteroplatytrygon violacea, Raja alba, Raja |
| | | asterias, Raja batis, Raja brachyura, Raja clavata, |
| | | Raja miraletus, Raja montagui, Raja ocellata, Raja |
| | | polysligina, Raja radiala, Raja radula, Raja spp., Paja undulata Sauating sauating Tornodo |
| | | marmorata Tornedo tornedo Tornedo son |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| $P/B(y^{-1})$ | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation |
| , , | 5. | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B (y ⁻¹) | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | | equation |
| | Morte et al., 1997; Cortes, | |
| | 1999; Romanelli et al., | |
| | 2006; Vannucci et al., 2006; Valdan et al., 2000; | |
| Diet | Eolless et al. 2010: Kadri | |
| | et al 2013: Navarro et al | |
| | 2013; Barría et al., 2015; | |
| | Mulas et al., 2019 | |
| | | Carcharhinus plumbeus, Centrophorus granulosus, |
| <u>9. Demersal</u> | | Dalatias licha, Etmopterus spinax, Galeorhinus |
| <u>sharks_Slope</u> | | galeus, Heptranchias perio, Hexanchus griseus, Isurus operinghus Openatus contring Sculiarhinus |
| | | canicula Saualus hlainvillei |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B (y ⁻¹) | Pauly 1980; Lopez, 2013 | Z=F+M Empirical equation |
| | Pauly et al., 1990; Froese | |
| | and Pauly, 2008; Madurell | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B (y-1) | and Cartes, 2005; Merz and | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | Myers, 1998; Martinno et | equation |
| | Macnherson 1981 Smale | |
| | 1996: Belluscio, et al. | |
| Dist | 2000; Madurell and Cartes, | |
| Diet | 2005; Megalofonu and | |
| | Chatzispyrou, 2006; Fanelli | |
| | et al., 2009a | |
| | | Alopias vuipinus, centrophorus uyato, Mustelus |
| | | Mustelus snn Prionace alauca Scyliorhinus snn |
| <u>10. Demersal</u> | | Scyliorhinus stellaris, Squalus acanthias, Saualus |
| <u>snarks_Shelf</u> | | spp., Squatina aculeata, Squatina oculata, Sphyrna |
| | | spp. |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|--|--|
| R_{i} (t km-1 v-1) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006; EE=0.95 in Ionian |
| טי (נ גווו - א -) | (ADR); Estimated (ION) | Sea |
| P/B (y ⁻¹) | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation |
| | | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B (y-1) | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | | equation |
| | Morte et al., 1997; Cortes, | |
| Diet | 1999; Romanelli et al., | |
| | 2006; Yeldan et al., 2009; | |
| 11 | Mulas et al., 2019 | |
| <u>11.</u> Blackmouth catsbark | | Galeus melastomus |
| $\frac{\text{Diackinoutli catshark}}{\text{Ri} (t \text{ km}^{-1} \text{ v}^{-1})}$ | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average higmass 2004-2006 |
| $P/R(y^{-1})$ | Pauly 1980 | 7=F+M Empirical equation |
| 170(3) | 1 duly, 1900 | www.fishbase.org. estimated on average local |
| 0/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| 0 | | equation |
| Dist | Macpherson, 1979; Cortes, | |
| Diet | 1999; Fanelli et al., 2009a | |
| 12 | | Istiophoridae, Katsuwonus pelamis, Tetrapturus |
| Large nelagics | | belone, Thunnus alalunga, Thunnus albacares, |
| <u>harge penagres</u> | | Thunnus obesus, Thunnus thynnus, Xiphias gladius |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻¹) | ICCAT 2020 | ION: EE fixed 0.95; Other Production – |
| | Direddietal 2015 | Immigration = $0.300 \text{ t km}^{-2} \text{ y}^{-1}$ |
| Р/В | Piroddi et al., 2015 | |
| Q/B | $\begin{array}{c} \text{PIFOUULI et al., 2015, 2017;} \\ \text{Montopoulos at al. 2013} \end{array}$ | |
| | Bello 1991 Karakulak et | |
| Diet | al 2009: Battaglia et al | |
| Diet | 2013 | |
| | | Auxis rochei, Auxis spp., Brama brama, |
| 10 | | Coryphaena hippurus, Euthynnus alletteratus, |
| <u>13.</u> Modium polagics | | Lichia amia, Pomatomus saltatrix, Sarda sarda, |
| Meurum peragics | | Seriola dumerili, Seriola fasciata, Sphyraena |
| | | sphyraena, Sphyraena spp., Trachinotus ovatus |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| 0 /D | Encode and Devil- 2000 | www.fishbase.org_estimated on average local |
| Q/В | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | Akadia at al 2012. Campa | equation |
| Diet | et al., 2006 | |
| 14. | | Chauliodus sloani. Conger conger. Evermannella |
| Demersal | | balbo, Molva dipterygia, Molva molva, Polyprion |
| <u>piscivorous_Slope</u> | | americanus, Stomias boa, Sudis hyalina, |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|---|--|
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980; Merz and Myers, 1998, Guènette and Morato, 2001 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | www.fishbase.orgestimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Morato et al., 1999; Butler et al., 2001, O'Sullivan et al., 2004 | |
| <u>15.</u> <u>Demersal</u> piscivorous_Shelf | | Dentex dentex, Dentex gibbosus, Dentex macrophthalmus, Dentex maroccanus, Dentex spp., Dicentrarchus labrax, Epinephelus aeneus, Epinephelus alexandrinus, Gymnothorax unicolor, Lepidopus caudatus, Muraena helena, Scorpaena elongata, Scorpaena porcus, Scorpaena scrofa, Scorpaena spp., Synodus saurus, Trachinus araneus, Trachinus draco, Trachinus spp., Trachinus vipera. Uranoscopus scaber. Zeus faber. |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Pauly, 1980 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| Diet | Sanz, 1985; Abdelkader and Ktari, 1986; Bradai and Bouain, 1990; Stergiou and Fourtouni, 1991; Arculeo et al., 1993 ; D'Onghia et al., 2000; Morte et al., 1999a, 2001; Renones et al., 2002; Soares et al., 2003; Samir, 2008; Başçınar and Sağlam, 2009 | equation |
| <u>16.</u> Epipelagic fish Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MFDITS) | Aphia minuta, Atherina boyeri, Atherinidae, Belone belone, Boops boops, Chelon labrosus, Chromis chromis, Liza aurata, Liza ramada, Liza saliens, Liza spp., Mola mola. Mugil cephalus, Mugil spp., Spicara flexuosa, Spicara maena, Spicara smaris, Spicara spp. Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Brando et al., 2004; | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|---|---|
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | www.fishbase.orgestimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Moreno and Castro, 1995, Derbal and Kara, 2008; Milisenda et al., 2014 | |
| 17. <u>Mesopelagic</u> <u>fish_crustacean feeders</u> | | Arctozenus risso, Argentina sphyraena, Argyropelecus hemigymnus, Benthocometes robustus, Benthosema glaciale, Capros aper, Ceratoscopelus maderensis, Chlorophthalmus agassizi, Cyclothone spp., Diaphus holti, Diaphus metopoclampus, Diaphus rafinesquii, Diaphus spp., Electrona rissoi, Epigonus constanciae, Glossanodon leioglossus, Gonichthys coccoi, Gonostoma denudatum, Hygophum benoiti, Hygophum hygomii, Hygophum spp., Hymenocephalus italicus, Ichthyococcus ovatus, Lampanyctus crocodilus, Lampanyctus spp., Lampris guttatus, Lestidiops spp., Lobianchia dofleini, Lobianchia gemellarii, Macroramphosus scolopax, Maurolicus muelleri, Microichthys coccoi, Myctophum punctatum, Myctophidae, Nansenia oblita, Nemichthys scolopaceus, Nettastoma melanurum, Nezumia aequalis, Nezumia sclerorhynchus, Notacanthus bonapartei, Notolepis rissoi, Notoscopelus bolini, Notoscopelus elongatus, Notoscopelus spp., Paralepis coregonoides, Paralepis speciosa, Symbolophorus veranyi, Trachipterus trachypterus, Vinciguerria attenuata |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Tsarin, 1994; Arreguín- Sánchez et al., 2002; Stanford et al., 2002; Heymans 2005; Rosas-Luis et al. 2009; Pauly 1980; | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| Р/В | Silvestre et al. 1993; Vega- Cendejas et al. 1993; Merz and Myers 1998; Guènette et al. 2002; Heymans, 2005; Anastasopoulou et al., 2006, Rosas-Luis et al., 2009 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |


| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|---|---|
| Q/B | Childress et al., 1980; Pakhomov et al., 1996; Pauly et al., 1990; Madurell and Cartes, 2005; Froese and Pauly, 2008 Podrazhanskaya 1993; Pakhomov et al. 1996; | www.fishbase.org; estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Macpherson 1981; Hopkins et al. 1985, 1996; Stefanescu and Cartes,1992; Gorelova and Krasil'nikova, 1990; Longo et al., 2005; D'Onghia et al., 2006; Anastasopoulou and Kapiris, 2008; Carpentieri et al., 2006, 2007, 2016 | |
| <u>18.</u> Fish zooplancton-jelly feeders | | Centrolophus niger, Cubiceps gracilis, Schedophilus ovalis, Stromateus fiatola |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Agnetta et al., 2019 | |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008; Agnetta et al., 2019 | www.fishbase.org; estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Battaglia et al., 2014 | - |
| <u>19.</u> Demersal fish Slope | | Aulopus filamentosus, Bathophilus nigerrimus, Bathypterois dubius, Caelorhynchus caelorhynchus, Callanthias ruber, Cataetyx alleni, Chlopsis bicolor, Dysomma brevirostre, Echiodon dentatus, Epigonus denticulatus, Epigonus telescopus, Gnathophis mystax, Helicolenus dactylopterus, Hoplostethus mediterraneus, Lepidion lepidion, Macrouridae, Ophisurus serpens, Pagellus bogaraveo, Synchiropus phaeton, Trachyrhynchus scabrus |
| Bi P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Pauly, 1980 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Macpherson, 1979; Casadevall and Matallanas, 1990; Meyer and Smale, 1991; Morato et al., 2001; | |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|----------------------------|------------------------------|---|
| | Carrassón et al., 2002; | |
| | Madurell and Cartes, 2005; | |
| | Carpentieri et al., 2007; | |
| | Tuncay et al., 2008; Consoli | |
| | et al., 2010; Capezzuto et | |
| | al., 2020 | Acantholabrus nalloni Ammodutes enn Anguilla |
| 20. Demersal fish_Shelf | | Acantholabrus palloni, Ammodytes spp., Anguilla Anguilla, Anthias anthias, Apogon imberbis, Ariosoma balearicum, Balistes carolinensis , Bellottia apoda, Blenniidae, Blennius ocellaris, Callionymus fasciatus, Callionymus lyra, Callionymus maculatus, Callionymus risso, Callionymus spp., Carapus acus, Centracanthus cirrus, Cepola macrophthalma, Coris julis, Dalophis imberbis, Deltentosteus quadrimaculatus, Diplodus annularis, Diplodus puntazzo, Diplodus sargus, Diplodus spp., Diplodus vulgaris, Echelus myrus, Gobius geniporus, Gobius niger, Gobius spp., Gymnammodytes cicerellus, Hippocampus guttulatus, Hippocampus hippocampus, Hippocampus spp., Labridae, Labrus merula, Labrus mixtus, Lappanella fasciata, Lepadogaster lepadogaster, Lesueurigobius friesii, Lesueurigobius sanzi, Lesueurigobius suerii, Lithognathus mormyrus, Mullus surmuletus, Nerophis ophidion, Oblada melanura, Ophichthus rufus, Ophidion barbatum, Pagellus acarne, Pagellus erythrinus, Pagellus spp., Pagrus caeruleostictus, Pagrus pagrus, Parablennius gattorugine, Parablennius tentacularis, Pomatoschistus marmoratus, Pomatoschistus minutus, Serranus scriba, Scorpaena notata, Serranus atricauda, Serranus cabrilla, Serranus hepatus, Serranus scriba, Sparisoma cretense, Sparus aurata, Sphoeroides pachygaster, Spondyliosoma cantharus, Symphodus cinereus, Symphodus mediterraneus, Symphodus cinereus, Symphodus spp., Syngnathus acus, Syngnathus tenuirostris, Syngnathus spp., Sumathus tubala, Thalacoma nava, Umbria |
| | | cirrosa. Xvrichtvs novacula. Zosterisessor |
| | | ophiocephalus |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|----------------------|---|--|
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | www.fishbase.orgestimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical |
| Diet | Jukic, 1972; Khoury C (1984); Rosecchi, 1987; Arculeo et al., 1993; Stergiou, 1993; Casadevall et al., 1994; Sala and Ballesteros, 1997; Cardinale et al., 1997; Bradai et al., 1998; Fabi et al., 1998; Morte et al., 2001; Filiz and Toğulga 2009, Ouannes-Ghorbel et al., 2005; Kitsos et al., 2008a; Šantić, 2010; Tuncay et al., 2010; Fanelli et al., 2011, | equation |
| 21 Other flatfishes | | Argyrosomus regius, Arnoglossus imperialis, Arnoglosuss kessleri, Arnoglossus laterna, Arnoglossus rueppelii, Arnoglossus spp., Arnoglossus thori, Bothus podas, Buglossidium luteum, Citharus linguatula, Dicologlossa cuneata, Lepidorhombus boscii, Lepidorhombus spp., Lepidorhombus whiffiagonis, Microchirus boscanion, Microchirus ocellatus, Microchirus variegatus, Monochirus hispidus, Pegusa impar, Pegusa lascaris, Platichthys flesus, Pleuronectiformes nd, Solea aegyptiaca, Solea lascaris, Synapturichthys kleinii, Symphurus ligulatus, Symphurus nigrescens, Symphurus spp., Zeuaonterus regius |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Macpherson, 1981; Morte et al., 1999b; Cabral et al., 2002; Fanelli et al., 2009b | - |
| 22. Turbot and brill | | Psetta maxima, Scophthalmus rhombus |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--------------------------|--|--|
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | www.fishbase.org <u></u> estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Vinagre et al., 2011 | |
| 23. Gurnards | | Aspitrigla cuculus, Chelidonichthys lucerna, Chelidonichthys obscurus, Dactylopterus volitans, Eutrigla gurnardus, Lepidotrigla cavillone, Lepidotrigla dieuzeidei, Peristedion cataphractum, Trigla lyra, Trigla spp., Trigloporus lastoviza, |
| Bi P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Pauly, 1980 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| Q/B | Colloca et al., 1997; Froese and Pauly, 2008 | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Moreno-Amich, 1992, 1994; Labropoulou and Machias, 1998; Terrats et al., 1999; Boudaya et al., 2007; Stagioni, 2012 | |
| 24. Other gadids | | Antonogadus spp., Gadella maraldi, Gadiculus argenteus, Gaidropsarus biscayensis, Gaidropsarus mediterraneus, Gaidropsarus spp., Merlangius merlangus, Micromesistius poutassou, Mora moro, Phycis blennoides, Phycis phycis, Trisopterus minutus canelanus |
| Bi P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Pauly, 1980 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Macpherson, 1981; Bergstad 1991; Olaso et al., 1995; Carrassón et al., 1997; Morato et al., 1999; Cabral and Murta, 2002; Morte et al., 2002; Milic et al., 2012 | |
| 25. Other small pelagics | | Alosa alosa, Alosa fallax, Alosa spp., Clupeidae, Naucrates ductor, Sardinella aurita, Sprattus sprattus |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980; | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|--|---|
| | Pauly et al., 1990; Froese | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B | and Pauly, 2008; Tudela | biomass of the species group using empircal |
| | and Palomera, 1995 | equation |
| | Sirotenko and Sorokalit, | |
| Diet | 1979, Lomiri et al., 2008; | |
| | Morote et al., 2008 | |
| 26. Mackarels | | Carangidae, Scomber colias, Scomber scombrus, Scomber spp., Trachurus mediterraneus, Trachurus picturatus, Trachurus trachurus, Trachurus spp. |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Pauly, 1980 | Z=F+M Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| | | www.fishbase.org,_estimated on average local |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Castro and Hernandez- Garcìa, 1995; Šantić et al., 200, 2005; Jardas et al., 2004; Sever et al., 2006 | |
| <u>27. Anglers</u> | | Lophius budegassa, Lophius piscatorius |
| Bi | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Carlucci et al., 2009; | Z=M+F Empirical equation, www.fishbase.org |
| , | Maiorano et al., 2010 | |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Stagioni, 2013 | • |
| <u>28. Sardine 0</u> | | Sardina pilchardus (age 0) |
| Bi (t km ⁻² y ⁻¹) | Estimated | Multi-stanza routine |
| P/B | WGSASP-GFCM, 2019 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly 2008 | www.fishbase.org,_estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Nikolioudakis et al., 2012; Borme et al., 2013 | edunion. |
| 29. Sardine 1+ | | Sardina pilchardus (age 1+) |
| | WGSASP-GFCM, 2019 | |
| Bi (t km ⁻² y ⁻¹) | (ADR); Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | (MEDITS) (ION) | |
| P/B | WGSASP-GFCM, 2019 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| Diet | Nikolioudakis et al., 2012; Borme et al., 2013 | |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|-------------------------------------|---|
| <u>30. Anchovy 0</u> | | Engraulis encrasicolus (age 0) |
| Bi | Estimated | Multi-stanza routine |
| P/B | WGSASP-GFCM, 2019 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| , | | www.fishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| 0/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| 0, | ····· | equation |
| | | Integrate with Tudela and Palomera 1995, Bacha |
| Diet | Borme et al., 2009 | et al 2010 |
| 31 Anchovy 1+ | | Engraulis encrasicolus (200 1+) |
| <u>51. Allellovy 1 -</u> | WGSASP-GFCM 2019 | Lingi uulis enerusicolus (age 1+) |
| Bi | (ADR): Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| DI | (MEDITS) (ION) | Average biolilass 2004-2000 |
| D/D | (MEDITS) (ION) | 7- weighted evenege by age biomage (E+M) |
| Р/В | WG5A5P-GFCM, 2019 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| 0.45 | | www.fishbase.org,_estimated on average local |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | | equation |
| Diet | Borme et al., 2009 | Integrate with Tudela and Palomera, 1995; Bacha |
| | | et al. 2010 |
| <u>32. Sole 0</u> | | Solea solea (age 0) |
| Bi (t km ⁻² y ⁻¹) | Estimated | Multi-stanza routine |
| P/B | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| | | www.fishbase.orgestimated on average local |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | | equation |
| Diet | Costa, 1988 | |
| <u>33. Sole 1</u> | | Solea solea (age 1) |
| | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | |
| Bi (t km ⁻² y ⁻¹) | (ADR); Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | (MEDITS) (ION) | 5 |
| P/B | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| , | | www.fishbase.org. estimated on average local |
| 0/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| <i>z</i> / <i>z</i> | 110000 and 1 addy, 2 000 | equation |
| Diet | Cabral 2000 | equation |
| 34 Sole 2+ | Sabrai, 2000 | Solea solea (age 2+) |
| 51.5010 2+ | STECE 20-15 GSA 17 | Soled Soled (age 2+) |
| $Bi(t lm^{-1} u^{-1})$ | (ADP): Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004 2006 |
| DI (CKIII y | (MEDITS) (ION) | Average biolilass 2004-2000 |
| D / D | (MEDIIS) (ION) $STECE 20 1E CSA 17$ | 7- weighted average by age biomage (E+M) |
| 1/0 | 51 EGF, 20-13, G3A 17 | L- weighten average by age Diolilass (F+M) |
| 0 /B | Errosse and Dauly 2000 | hismony of the anasies group using empirical |
| Q/ D | FIGESE allu Pauly, 2008 | original of the species group using empirical |
| Dist | Moliners and Elss 1001 | equation |
| | Molinero and Flos, 1991 | |
| <u>35. Ked Mullet U</u> | | Mullus barbatus (0) |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹⁾ | Estimated | Multi-stanza routine |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|------------------------------------|--|
| · · · | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17-18 | |
| P/B | (ADR): Maiorano et al. | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| - / - | 2010. Ricci et al., 2019 | |
| | 2020, 10001 00 an, 2023 | www.fishbase.org_estimated_on_average_local |
| 0/B | Froese and Pauly 2008 | hiomass of the species group using empirical |
| | 110ese and 1 daily, 2000 | equation |
| Diet | Jukic 1972: Froglia 1988 | equation |
| 36 Red Mullet 1+ | Junie, 1972, 110gna, 1900 | Mullus harbatus (1+) |
| <u>50. Red Mullet 1+</u> | STECE 20-15 GSA 17-18 | Mailus barbacus (1+) |
| $Bi(t km^{-1} v^{-1})$ | (ΔDR) : Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| Di (t kiii y | (MEDITS) (ION) | Average biolitass 2004-2000 |
| | STECE 20-15 CSA 17-18 | |
| D/R | (ADR): Majorano et al | 7- weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| I / D | 2010 Diggi et al. 2010 | 2- weighted average by age biomass (1+M) |
| | 2010, Ricci et al., 2019 | www.fishbase.org_ostimated_on_average_local |
| 0/P | Freese and Pauly 2009 | hiomass of the species group using ompirical |
| Q/B | Floese and Fauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | Jultic 1072, Labranoulou | equation |
| Diet | and Eleftheriou, 1007 | |
| 27 Halza 0 | and Eleftheriou, 1997 | Marluggiug marluggiug (0) |
| $\frac{57. \text{ make } 0}{\text{Pi} (t \text{ l} \text{m}^{-1} \text{ ur})}$ | Estimated | Meriaccias meriaccias (0) Multi stanga routino |
| D / D | | Multi-Staliza Toutille 7- weighted average by age biomage (E+M) |
| F/B | 31ECF, 20-13, GSA 17-18 | 2- weighted average by age biolitass (F+M) |
| O /P | Encode and Dauly, 2000 | www.lishbase.org, estimated on average local |
| Q/B | Floese and Pauly, 2008 | biomass of the species group using empirical |
| | Julia 1072 Eroglia 1072 | equation |
| Diet | $P_{0,1}$ | |
| Diet | Stagioni et al. 2010 | |
| 20 Halza 1 | Stagioni et al., 2010 | Marluggiug marluggiug (1) |
| <u>50. 11ake 1</u> | STECE 20 15 CSA 17 19 | Mertuccius mertuccius (1) |
| Bi(t lzm-1 zz) | (ADR): Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| Di (t kili y) | (MEDITS) (ION) | Average biolilass 2004-2000 |
| | STECE 20 15 CSA 17 19 | |
| D/R | (ADR): Majorano et al | 7- weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| F/D | (ADK), Maiorano et al., 2010 (ION) | L- weighted average by age biomass (1+M) |
| | 2010 (1011) | unun fichbase org_ estimated on average local |
| 0/B | Freese and Pauly 2008 | hiomass of the species group using empirical |
| Q/B | Fibese and Fauly, 2008 | oquation |
| | Julzic 1972 Fraglia 1972 | equation |
| Diat | Jukic, 1972 ; Floglia, 1973 ; | |
| Diet | Stagioni et al. 2010 | |
| 20 Halza 2 | Stagioiii et al., 2010 | Marluggius marluggius (2) |
| <u>ээ. паке 2+</u> | STECE 20 15 CSA 17 19 | mertuccius mertuccius (2+) |
| $Bi(t km^{-1} w)$ | (ADR), Trawl Survey | Average higmass 2004-2006 |
| DI (L KIII - Y J | (MEDITS) (ION) | Average Diolliass 2004-2000 |
| | | |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|---|--|
| P/B | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17-18 (ADR); Maiorano et al., 2010 (ION) | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| Q/B | Froese and Pauly, 2008 | www.fishbase.org,_estimated on average local biomass of the species group using empirical equation |
| Diet | Jukic, 1972; Froglia, 1973; Bozzano et al., 1997; Stagioni et al., 2010 | - |
| <u>40. Other</u> cephalopods Slope | | Abralia verany, Abraliopsis morisii, Ancistrocheirus lesueurii, Ancistroteuthis lichtensteinii, Bathypolypus sponsalis, Brachioteuthis riisei, Callistoctopus Macropus, Chtenopteryx sicula, Chiroteuthis veranii, Heteroteuthis dispar, Macrotritopus defilippi, Neorossia caroli, Octopoteuthis sicula, Octopus salutii, Ommastrephidae, Onychoteuthis banksii, Pteroctopus tetracirrhus, Pyroteuthis margaritifera, Rondeletiola minor, Rossia macrosoma, Sepietta oweniana, Sepietta spp., Thysanoteuthis rhombus |
| Bi P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Brey, 2001 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Boyle 1990, Wells and Clarke 1996; Cammen, 1980 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Bergstrom, 1985; Quetglas et al., 2001, 2005, 2009 | |
| <u>41. Other</u> <u>cephalopods Shelf</u> | | Alloteuthis media, Alloteuthis subulata, Alloteuthis spp., Argonauta argo, Octopus spp., Octopus vulgaris, Scaeurgus unicirrhus, Sepia elegans, Sepia orbignyana, Sepia spp., Sepietta obscura, Sepietta neglecta, Sepiola affinis, Sepiola intermedia, Sepiola robusta, Sepiola rondeletii, Sepiola spp. |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Brey, 2001 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980; Boyle, 1990; Wells and Clarke, 1996 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Castro and Guerra, 1990; Quetglas et al., 1998; Zghidi et al., 2003; Rosa et al., 2004 | |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|------------------------------|---|
| | | Histioteuthis bonnellii, Histioteuthis reversa, |
| 42 Sauids | | Histioteuthis spp., Illex coindetii, Illex spp., Loligo |
| <u>42. Squius</u> | | forbesi, Loligo vulgaris, Loligo spp., Todarodes |
| | | sagittatus, Todaropsis eblanae, |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Brey, 2001 | Empirical equation |
| 0/B | Cammen, 1980; Wells and | Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Clarke, 1996 | Empirical equation |
| | Pierce et al., 1994, Castro | |
| | and Hernandez-Garcìa, | |
| Diet | 1995; Coelho et al., 1996; | |
| Diet | Rasero et al., 1996; | |
| | Quetglas et al., 1999, 2010; | |
| | Lelli et al., 2005 | |
| <u>43. Common cuttlefish</u> | | Sepia officinalis |
| | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | |
| Bi (t km ⁻² y ⁻¹) | (ADR); Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| - (| (MEDITS) (ION) | |
| P/B | Brey, 2001 | Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980; Wells and | Empirical equation |
| Diat | Clarke, 1996 | |
| Diet | Castro and Guerra, 1990 | |
| <u>44. Musky-norned</u> | | Eledone cirrhosa, Eledone moschata |
| $\frac{\text{octopus}}{\text{Bi}(t trm^1 tr})$ | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004 2006 |
| D/R | Broy 2001 | Empirical equation |
| 170 | Cammen 1980: Wells and | Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Clarke 1996 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Sifner and Vrgoc. 2009 | |
| 45. Mantis shrimp 0 | | Squilla mantis (0) |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Estimated | Nulti-stanza routine |
| | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | |
| Р/В | (ADR) | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Mili et al., 2013 | |
| <u>46. Mantis shrimp 1+</u> | | Squilla mantis (1+) |
| | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | (ADR), Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | (MEDITS) (ION) | |
| P/B | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Froglia and Giannini, 1989; | |
| Dict | Mili et al., 2013 | |
| <u>47. Norway lobster 0</u> | | Nephrops norvegicus (0) |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Estimated | Multi-stanza routine |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|--------------------------|--|
| P/B | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| 0/B | Cammen 1980; Maynou | Empirical equation |
| | and Cartes, 1998 | 2p |
| Diet | Cristo and Cartes, 1998 | Northrough any origina (1) |
| 48. Norway lobster 1+ | STECE 20 1E CSA 17 | Nephrops horvegicus (1+) |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻) | (ADR): Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| Di (chini y j | (MEDITS) (ION) | Inverage biolinass 2001 2000 |
| | STECF, 20-15, GSA 17 | |
| P/B | (ADR); Maioarano et al., | Z= weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| | 2010 (ION) | |
| 0/B | Cammen 1980; Maynou | Empirical equation |
| | and Cartes, 1998 | 2p |
| Diet | Cristo and Cartes, 1998 | |
| <u>49. Blue and Red Shrimp</u> | Estimated (ADD), Trawl | Aristeus antennatus |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Survey (MEDITS) (ION) | EE=0.78 (ADR); Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | WCSAD-GFCM (2018) | |
| P/B | Majorano et al 2010 , | Z=F+M Empirical equation |
| | Cammen 1980: Maynou | |
| Q/B | and Cartes, 1998 | Empirical equation |
| Dist | Kapiris and Thessalou- | |
| Diet | Legaki, 2011 | |
| <u>50. Red Giant shrimp</u> | | Aristaeomorpha foliacea |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻) | Estimated (ADR); Trawl | EE=0.83 (ADR); Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | Survey (MEDITS) (ION) | (ION) |
| P/B | WGSAD-GFCM (2018); | Z=F+M Empirical equation |
| | Maiorano et al., 2010 | |
| Q/B | Cammen 1980 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Kapiris et al., 2010 | |
| 51. Deep water rose | | |
| <u>shrimp 0</u> | | Parapenaeus longirostris (0) |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Estimated | Multi-stanza routine |
| P/B | STECF, 20-15 GSA 17-18- | Z = weighted average by age biomass (F+M) |
| | 19 | |
| Q/B Dist | Cammen 1980 | Empirical equation |
| E2 Deep water rose | Kapiris, 2004 | |
| <u>shrimn 1+</u> | | Parapenaeus longirostris (1+) |
| | STECF. 20-15 GSA 17-18- | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | 19 | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| D/P | STECF, 20-15 GSA 17-18- | 7- waighted average by age biomass (E+M) |
| <u>מן</u> ז | 19 | 2- weighten average by age biolilass (r+M) |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980 | Empirical equation |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|---|--|
| Diet | Cartes 1995, Kapiris, 2004 | |
| 53. Caramote prawn | | Penaeus kerathurus |
| - | STECF, 20-15 GSA 17 | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | (ADR); Trawl Survey | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | (MEDITS) (ION) | |
| P/B | STECF, 20-15 GSA 17 | Z=M+F |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Prato et al., 2010 | |
| <u>54.</u> <u>Decapods Reptantia Slop</u> <u>e</u> | | Aegaeon lacazei, Bathynectes maravigna, Bathynectes spp., Calocaris macandreae, Geryon longipes, Macropipus tuberculatus, Monodaeus couchii, Munida iris, Munida perarmata, Munida tenuimana, Pagurus alatus, Paromola cuvieri, Polycheles typhlops, Rissoides desmaresti, Rissoides pallidus |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) | Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| P/B | Brey, 2001 | Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Cammen, 1980; Maynou and Cartes, 1998 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Abelló, 1989; Cartes and Abelló, 1992; Cartes, 1993a, b | |
| <u>55.</u> Decapods Reptantia Shel <u>f</u> | | Aegaeon cataphractus, Alpheidae, Alpheus glaber, Alpheus spp., Anamathia rissoana, Anapagurus bicorniger, Anapagurus breviaculeatus, Anapagurus laevis, Anapagurus spp., Atelecyclus rotundatus, Atelecyclus spp., Brachynotus gemmellari, Brachynotus sexdentatus, Brachynotus spp., Calappa granulata, Calappa rissoana, Calappa tuerkayana, Callianassidae, Callinectes sapidus, Carcinus aestuarii, Corystes cassivelaunus, Crangon spp. Crangonidae, Dardanus arrosor, Dardanus calidus, Diogenes pugilator, Diogenes spp. Dromia personata, Ebalia cranchii, Ebalia edwarsi, Ebalia nux, Ebalia spp., Eriphia verrucose, Ethusa mascarpone, Eurynome aspera, Medorippe lanata, Galathea dispersa, Galathea intermedia, Galathea strigosa, Galathea spp., Goneplax rhomboides, Homarus gammarus, Homola barbata, Ilia nucleus, Inachus communissimus, Inachus dorsettensis, Inachus thoracicus, Inachus spp., Jaxea nocturna, Latreillia elegans, Liocarcinus maculatus, Liocarcinus depurator, Liocarcinus maculatus, Liocarcinus |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|---|---|
| | | spp., Liocarcinus vernalis, Lissa chiragra, Macropodia linaresi, Macropodia longipes, Macropodia longirostris Macropodia rostrata, Macropodia spp., Maja crispata, Maja goltziana, Maja squinado, Maja spp., Medorippe lanata, Munida intermedia, Munida rugosa, Munida rutllanti, Munida spp, Necora puber, Nepinnotheres pinnotheres, Paguridae, Pagurus prideaux, Pagurus spp., Palicus caroni, Palinurus elephas, Partenope angulifrons, Parthenope massena, Pilumnus hirtellus, Pilumnus spinifer, Pilumnus spp., Pilumnus villosissimus, Pinnotheres pisum, Pisa armata, Pisa muscosa, Pisa nodiopes, Pisa spp., Pisidia longicornis, Pisidia spp., Polybius henslowi, Porcellana platycheles, Portunus hastatus, Portunus spp., Pseudosquillopsis cerisii, Pycnogonida, Scyllarus arctus, Scyllarides latus, Scyllarus pygmaeus, Scyllarus spinosus, Typton spongicola, Upogebia tipica, Upogebia spp., Xantho spp. |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) P/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Brey, 2001 | Average biomass 2004-2006 Empirical equation |
| Q/B | Cammen 1980; Maynou and Cartes, 1998 | Empirical equation |
| Diet | Freire, 1996; Bernardez et al., 2000 | |
| <u>56.</u> Decapods Natantia Slope | | Acanthephyra eximia, Acanthephyra pelagica, Acanthephyra spp., Chlorotocus crassicornis, Deosergestes arachnipodus, Eusergestes arcticus, Funchalia woodwardi, Gennadas elegans, Ligur ensiferus, Nematocarcinus exilis, Pandalina profunda, Pasiphaea multidentata, Pasiphaea sivado, Pasiphaea spp., Philocheras echinulatus, Philocheras spp., Plesionika acanthonotus, Plesionika antigay, Plesionika edwardsii, Plesionika gigliolii, Plesionika heterocarpus, Plesionika martia, Plesionika spp., Pontophilus norvegicus, Pontophilus spinosus, Pontophilus spp., Processa canaliculate, Processa edulis, Processa modica, Processa nouveli, Processa spp., Sergestidae, Sergestes robustus, Solenocera membranacea, |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|---|--|
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ v ⁻) | Estimated (ADR); Trawl | EE= 0.96 (ADR); Average biomass 2004-2006 |
| | Survey (MEDITS) (ION) | (ION) |
| P/B | Brey, 2001 | Empirical equation |
| Q/B | cammen, 1980; Maynou | Empirical equation |
| | Cartes 1993c d 1995 | |
| Diet | Fanelli and Cartes, 2004 | |
| 57. Decapods Natantia Shelf Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) P/B Q/B | Trawl Survey (MEDITS) Brey, 2001 Cammen 1980; Maynou and Cartes 1998 | Hippolyte spp., Palaemon macrodactylus, Palemon serratus, Palemon spp., Pandalina spp., Pandalus borealis, Pandalus spp., Plesionika narval, Sicyonia carinata Average biomass 2004-2006 Empirical equation Empirical equation |
| Diet | Guerao and Ribera, 1996; Barańska, 2008; Kitsos et al., 2008b | |
| <u>58.</u> | | Amphipods, Isopods, Misidiaceans, Cumaceans, |
| Suprabenthic macrocrust | | Ostracoda, Tanaidacea |
| aceans | SOLEMON Survey (ADR): | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Estimated in ION | EE=0.99 (ION) |
| P/B | Ricci et al., 2019 (ION) | |
| Q/B | Ricci et al., 2019 (ION) | |
| Diet | Greze et al., 1968; Fanelli et al. 2009c, Polunin et al. 2001 | |
| <u>59. Clams</u> | | Chamelea gallina, Callista chione, Ruditapes decussatus, Venerupis aurea, Venus verrucosa, Venus spp. |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | DRES survey (ADR); Estimated (ION) | Average 2004-2006 (ADR); EE=0.90 and P/Q=0.15 (ION) |
| P/B | Coll et al., 2007; FAO FastMed 2014 | |
| Q/B | Coll et al., 2007 | |
| Diet | Coll et al., 2007 | |
| <u>60. Scallops</u> | | Aequipecten opercularis, Pecten jacobeus, Pecten spp., |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | SOLEMON Survey (ADR); Estimated in ION | Average biomass 2005-2006 (ADR); EE=0.90 and P/Q=0.15 (ION) |
| P/B Q/B Diet | | , , , , , , |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|--|--|---|
| <u>61. Other benthic</u> | | 405 taxa: mega-macro, Echinoderms, Molluscs, |
| <u>invertebrates</u> | | Poriferas, Sessile tunicates, Anthozoans |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | SOLEMON Survey (ADR); | Average biomass 2005-2006 (ADR); EE=0.90 |
| | Estimated in IUN | (ION) |
| P/B | Con et al., 2007 (ADK); Ricci et al. 2019 (ION) | |
| | Coll et al., 2007 (ADR): | |
| Q/B | Ricci et al., 2019 (ION) | |
| | Fauchald and Jumars, | |
| | 1979; Pearson and Gage | |
| | 1984; Berthon, 1987; | |
| Diet | Frantzis et al., 1988; Coma | |
| | et al., 1995; Upitz, 1996; Bibos et al. 1000; Agnetta | |
| | Alles et al., 1999; Aglietta | |
| | 2013 | |
| <u>62. Seagrasses</u> | | Posidonia oceanica, Cymodocea nodosa |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Estimated in ION | EE=0.50 (ION) |
| | Buia and Marzocchi 1995; | |
| P/B | Banaru et al. 2013; Agnetta | |
| | et al. 2019; Ricci et al. 2019 | |
| (2 Saarwaada | | Benthic macroalgae, Chlorophyta nd, Codium |
| <u>63. Seaweeus</u> | | Spp., <i>Cystosen a</i> Spp., Dictyotales, Pilaeopilyta ilu, Rhodophyta nd <i>Illua</i> spp. Vegetalia |
| Bi $(t \text{ km}^{-1} \text{ v}^{-})$ | Estimated in ION | FF=0.50 (ION) |
| bi (e kiii y j | Buja and Marzocchi 1995 | |
| P/B | Banaru et al. 2013: Agnetta | |
| , | et al. 2019; Ricci et al. 2019 | |
| | | Pelagia noctiluca, Pyrosoma atlanticum, |
| <u>64. Jellyfish</u> | | Rhizostoma pulmo, Salpidae, Scyphozoa, |
| \mathbf{P} : (t large 1 as) | | Siphonophora, <i>Thalia democratica</i> , Thaliacea, |
| BI (t Km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | (ADP): Picci et al. 2019 | EE=0.70 (ION) |
| P/B | (ION) | |
| | (ADR): Ricci et al., 2019 | |
| Q/B | (ION) | |
| | Malej, 1989; Sabatés et al., | |
| Diet | 2010; Tecchio et al. 2013; | |
| | Canepa et al., 2014 | |
| <u>65. Macrozooplankton &</u> | | Chaetognatha, Copepoda, Cymbulia peronii, |
| Euphasiacea | | Euphasiacea, Macrozooplankton, Pteropoda |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻¹) | BFM?? (ADR); Estimated in | EE=0.90 (ION) |
| D/R | (ION) | |
| r/b A/B | | |
| <u>ر</u> ا | | |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|-----------------------------|---|
| Diet | Tecchio et al. 2013; | |
| | Agnetta et al., 2019; Ricci | |
| 66 Magazaanlanktan | et al., 2019 | Magazaanlanktan Lawal stagaa |
| <u>66. Mesozoopiankton</u> | FAIRSFA WP4.2 - | Mesozoopiankton, Larvai stages |
| | Deliverable D 4 2 1 – | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | Production patterns in the | |
| | Adriatic Sea | |
| P/B | | |
| Q/B | A | |
| Diet | Agnetta et al., 2019; Ricci | |
| 67. Microzoonlankton | | Cladocera, Foraminifera, Microzooplankton |
| <u></u> | FAIRSEA WP4.2 - | |
| Bi (t km-1 v-) | Deliverable D 4.2.1 – | |
| Di (t Kili y j | Production patterns in the | |
| ח/ ח | Adriatic Sea | |
| P/B O/B | | |
| | Agnetta et al., 2019: Ricci | |
| Diet | et al., 2019 | |
| <u>68. Bacterioplankton</u> | | Bacteria |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | | |
| - (| FAIRSEA D 4.2.1– | |
| P/B | Production patterns in the | |
| O/B | Auriauc Sea | |
| Q/D | Agnetta et al., 2019: | |
| Diet | Danovaro, 1998; Mirto et | |
| | al., 2004 | |
| <u>69. Phytoplankton</u> | | Diatoms |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | FAIRSEA D 4.2.1– | |
| | Adviation Soc | |
| P/B | Auriane Sea | |
| 70. Picophytoplankton | | Dinoflagellates |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | FAIRSEA WP4.2 - | |
| | Deliverable D 4.2.1 – | |
| | Production patterns in the | |
| P/B | Auf latit sea | |
| <u>71. Discards</u> | | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | | |
| 72. Suspended detritus | | |



| FG, input parameter | Source | Taxa/Notes |
|---|----------------------------|------------|
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | FAIRSEA WP4.2 - | |
| | Deliverable D 4.2.1 – | |
| | Production patterns in the | |
| | Adriatic Sea | |
| <u>73. Bottom detritus</u> | | |
| Bi (t km ⁻¹ y ⁻) | FAIRSEA D 4.2.1– | |
| | Production patterns in the | |
| | Adriatic Sea | |



9.2 Landing data treatment

The plots represent the available data of landings collected from different sources in the three Geographical Sub Areas (GSAs) included in the FAIRSEA framework, north and central Adriatic Sea (GSA 17), southern Adriatic Sea (GSA18) and Ionian Sea (GSA 19). All data are represented as total landings in tons per group and per country, disregarding the division by fleet segment. The time series from available sources are visualized on the same plot for the sake of comparing and inspecting the data.

| Source code | Descrition |
|-------------|--|
| FSJ | FAO FishStatJ - Software for Fishery and Aquaculture Statistical Time Series |
| | http://www.fao.org/fishery/statistics/software/fishstatj/en |
| FAO | FAO GFCM data collection |
| EUR | EU Eurostat's database for Landings of fishery products (fish_Id) |
| | https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/fisheries/data/database |
| FDI | Fishery Dependent Information data |
| DZS | Croatian Bureau of Statistic (Državni zavod za statistiku) |
| | https://www.dzs.hr/ |
| IZR | Institute of Oceanography and Fisheries database (IOF) (Institut za oceanografiju i |
| | ribarstvo, baza podataka i pokazatelja stanja morskog okoliša, marikulture i ribarstva) |
| | http://baltazar.izor.hr/azopub/bindex |
| MBL1 | Mably 1st data call |
| MBL2 | Mably 2nd data call |
| ANN | Report on status of resources and productive structure in the Italian seas (Maiorano P., |
| | Sabatella R.F., Marzocchi B.M. (eds) (2019) – Annuario sullo stato delle risorse e sulle |
| | strutture produttive dei mari italiani. 432 pp.) |
| BIW | BiosWeb - Biological database of the Fisheries Research Institute of Slovenia |
| | http://www.biosweb.org/?task=stat#tabs-year |
| FSR | Reconstructed data of FishStatJ (FSJ) landings for Croatia |
| MBLR | Reviewed data of 2nd MABLY data call. |
| MAR | Albanian Ministry of Agriculuture and Rural Development |
| | http://www.instat.gov.al/en/themes/agriculture-and-fishery/fishery/#tab1 |
















































































145





146





147